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1 EXHIBITS _ 1 I'm appearing as counsel to the Commission,

2 EXHIBIT  DESCRIPTICHN RECEIVED N PAGE 2 MR, HIEB: Jack Hieb appearing on behalf of
e pEgmtow s 2 3 e Rl

4  demeanor 4 MR. WICHOLSOH: Tom Micholson appearing on

> F Fhoto of Judge Fuller's courtroom €1 5 behalf of Judge Ruller, and Judge Fuller is

j G gg%zrgg :Iigork T—— . S Slttblﬂ:g ?ZI)C;:‘:? UZb};zlely The way we're

4 H gr#i%ygﬁg?ﬁg;tﬁwgﬂtdﬂr o 8 ging :to proce&;d today, s0 f.;hat everybody knows

Star Fox Horn matter

9 : Mo to M. Rostzel from - 9 kind of how it's going to operate, Mr. Schaffer
19 mwl re Judge Filler's 10 will start with his witnessés as soon as we're
o 12-8-10 Tetter to Mr. Schaffer 134 11 done with this introductory material.

1 from Dr. Arnic, with attached CV 12 My understanding is that we're going to take
13 K Behavior Management Systems 170 13 a break at 11:00 to allow Mr. Holmes ard

4 progress motes 1 Dr. Armio to testify, so we can deal with that
R Affidavit of Judge Marshall Young 300 N e,

jp o Ton Comendhonts Tor e e e 16 Once Mike then Finishes ail of his

Evaluation form of Judge A. Peter 336

i Fuller, 2004 17 witnesses, Jack and Tom, you'll be allowed on

# 0 g;éﬁ%ge mngok]&ij;tem];; vfgui‘é Judges 376 18 behalf of Judge Fulier to present your

1 court assignments 13 witnesses. 2And then at that time we'll close

20 *p South Dakota Retirement System 384 20 the hearing.

2l peneris estisate 21 You'll have an cpportunity to make opening
2 e E‘;ﬁ‘;‘g@a};ﬁ;ﬂiﬁ?m‘; systen - 22 statements if you choose, closing statements, if

**Exhibits are separately sealed per recuest of
43 Commission. 23 you choose. And then we'll go in recess and
2 m mage 238, 1{;3 m iéga?e;est 24 make qur decision.
23 of Commission. pi] So you know, one of the things that we have
7

1 MR. PAIMER: Iet's go on the record. I'm 1 to do as set out by statute is, when we've

2 going fo go ahead and convene the — a special 2 concluded and made our decision, and with our

3 meeting of the South Dakota Judicial 3 recommendation to the Supreme Court we have to

1 Qualifications Commission. It's in re the 4 make findings. And our findings have to be

5 inquiry of Judge A.P. Fuller. It's Monday, 5 submitted to the Court with our recommendation.
6 Decarber 13, 201C. It's 8:47 as we commence 6 S0 I'm anticipating that we're going to have
7 these proceedings. 7 findings conclude at whatever decision we mke

8 I'm going to do some introductions or have 8 this week to submit to the Court. And at that

Y people introduce themselves so everybody knows L time, the Court, I've been advised by

10 who they are speaking to. First, our court 10 (hief Justice Gilberfson, intends to conduct

1 reporter is Jacque Perli today. I know 11 their own hearing.

12 everybody, but I'm Cris Palmer, the current 12 And they are going to have a proceeding

13 chairperson of the Judicial Qualifications 13 where Counsel would appear for — again,

14 Commission. I'm going to start on the far end 14 whatever the decision, Counsel —- they are going
15 with Judge Wilbur and ask evervbody to introduce 15 to have a hearing, Counsel would appear for each
16 themselves. 15 side. And Judge Fulier, I'm advised that they
17 JUDGE WILBUR: I'm Lorl Wilkur. 17 would vent to hear from you personally, also, at
18 MS. CHRISTENSCH: Sally Christenson. 18 such a proceeding.

14 MR, MCBRIDE: Ted McBride. 19 I want to make sure evervbody understands

20 JUDGE DBVIS: Jeff Davis. 20 once we send our materials to Pierrs, that this
7 MR. TRAVIS: Dick Travis. pil is all public then. I mean, it's a matter of
2 ¥R. DRAVEIAND: Tom Draveland, 22 mblic record. There will be a file in Pierre
23 ¥R. PAIMFR: Counsel, you want to make 23 that will contain the entire transcript of these
2 appearances, please. 24 proceedings, all exhibits, and the entire record
25 MR, SCHAFFER: My name is Mike Schaffer. 25 as we've compiled it,




9-12

1 With that, there's a couple things I want to 1 agresable that could be disseminated to the
2 make sure that we have stipulation on and 2 Commission?
3 clarification. One, I think it's been agreed 3 MR. HIEB: Yes, Chaimmon Palmer, and I've
§ that the original transcript of the Order to ¢ got extra copies with exhibit stickers for those
5 Show Cause procesding and its attached Exhibits 5 reports. We can mark those and put them in when
6 A through D are going to be entered as a part of 6 they testify,
7 this record. 2m I corvect, Mr. Schaffer? 7 MR, PAIMFR: Okay. The other item I had was
8 MR, SCHAFFER: That's correct. And actually 8 Marty Jackley was listed as a witness on behalf
3 I have an exfra copy of all of them that I 9 of Judge Fuller. Ted McBride, I think,
10 proposed to leave with you that has the tapes, 10 appropriately raised the isste since we sit at a
11 the exhibits, and the transcript. 1 quasi-judicial proceeding here that there might
12 MR, BAIMFR: Mr. Hieb. 12 be some issue regarding whether he would have to
13 ¥R, HIEB: The only concern I have in that 13 disqualify himself since he works for Marty and
b1 regard, Chaimman Palmer, we cid agree that all 1 any appearance of impartiality, and it's my
15 the testimony that was given at the previous 15 understanding that both sides have agreed it's
16 hearing could go in as if it were given here. 16 acceptable for Mr, McBride to proceed.
17 There's the report of Dave Nelscn, in 17 MR. NICHOLSOM: We would waive any objection
18 looking through it, I think it looks like it was 18 to that.
19 attached as an attachment to an ashibit in that 19 MR. HIEB: Yes.
20 Show Cause hearing. I've got some concerns 20 MR. SCHAFFER: Ve would, also.
21 about that simply because of there's a 21 MR. PAIMFR: Ckay. I think that's all the
2 significant amount of double hearsay and things 22 introcuctory material T have.
23 in there in terms of, I heard a story that, and 23 MR. NICHOLSON: Chairman Palmer, just cne
2 it goes in alwost as if it's substantive 2 other housekeeping --
25 evidence, 25 MR. PAIMER: Sure.
9 11
1 in looking at the rules, it does appear that 1 MR. NICHOLSON: — matter. Judge Simko had
2 the Rules of Evidence do apply to this hearing, 2 planned on being here and he got caught w in a
3 and I weuld cbject fo that report going in as 3 trial that he thought would be done last
4 substantive evidence. I think all of the people 4 Thursday, and it probably won't even be done
5 interviewed there have either testified or will 5 tomorrow.  So he has asked to appear by
6 be testifying or have the opporfunity to call 6 telephone, also, and he has a break in his trial
7 tham, 7 at 2:00 Central Time, 1:00 here. And I'm
8 50 I do have a concern abouf that and I 8 requesting that we be dble Lo get him on the
9 wanted to meke a record in that regard. g speakerphone at 1:00, right after our lunch
10 MR, FAIMFR: Sure. 10 hreak,
11 MR. RIEB: Thank you. 11 - MR. PAIMER: That sounds fine. That's
12 MR. PALMER: You're welcome. And we'll let 12 totally acceptable. And also it's my
13 you know what we're going to do with that before 13 understanding, just maybe in that vein, that
14 we're done today. 14 Marshall Young will not be testifying live and
15 MR, SCHAFTER: Well, T would just add, 15 there will be an affidavit on —
16 Your Honor, that that report is part of the 16 MR, NICHOLSON: Yeah, I have an affidavit.
1 formal complaint against Judge Ruller. It's an 11 I have copies for all. We can mark those at
18 exhibit and an attachment to that complaint, 18 some point and pass them cut. I assume that’s
19 which T would assume would be part of the record 19 the best way. Mike stipulated we could just
20 in this case. 20 sibmit the affidavit, so.
21 VR, DAIMER: Thank you, Mr, Schaffer. The 21 MR, PAIMER: Yeah, that's just fine. That's
22 cther issues that I had is, one, we do have 22 agreeable to you, Mr. Schaffer?
23 materials that have been submitted to us from 23 MR. SCHAFFER: That's agreesble.
2 Mr. Holmes and Dr. Arnio that all of the board 24 MR. PRIMER: Anything else that anybody has
25 members have. Is it my understanding it's 25 preliminarily before we proceed? If not,

10

12




13-16

1 Mr, Schaffer, do you choose to make an opening 1 CAROL FOSTER,

2 statement? 2 called as a witness herein, having been first duly

3 MR. SCHAFFER: I'm going to waive opening 3 gworn, was examined and testified as follows:

4 statement. I think that the Comission knows 4 DIRECT EXZMINATION BY MR, SCHAFTER:

5 what the issues are and what the factual issues 5 Q  Would you please state your name and spell your
6 are, 6 name for the record.

7 MR. PAIMER: Mr. Nicholson? 7 A Carol Foster, C-A-R-O-L, Foster, F-0-8-T-ER.

8 MR. NICHILSON: Very briefly. I think you 8 ¢  Carol, I'm going to ask you to spesk up because
9 all can tell from the answer that was sumitfed 5 sometimes with the equipment nuning in hers,

10 that Judge Fuller is not contesting what's 10 it's hard to hear, and I want everyhody to make
11 happened here, primarily the allegations in the i1 sure thay hear your testimony.

12 oomplaint. 12 8 Okay,
13 And he's here today to show you what he's 13 Q  Would you please tell the Commission what you
14 dene, what kind of mitigation this Commission 1 do, what your title is, and what your duties
15 should lcok at, and he's been ashamed, and this 15 are.
16 has had a very drastic impact on his life. He's 16 &  I'ma Clerk Magistrate 1 for Fall River and
17 done some real soul-searching. You'll hear some 17 Shannon Counties in Hot Springs, and I do the
18 of that today. 18 dities of a clerk of courts, scheduling,
18 I think you'll hear that he's a good person 19 supervising, operating the court.
20 overall. He has a lot of good qualities. That 20 @ Ms. Foster, you've here pursuant to & subpoena;
1 hasn't been brought out to you yet in the 21 is that correct?
22 proceedings that have been before you. He's a 22 & Correct.
23 very able and capable judge. He's very able and 23 Q  As I understand it, Mr, Nelson interviewed you
2 willing to make changes. 2nd I'd ask you all to ! in comection with the complaint against
25 keep a very open mind going forward in the first 25 Mr. Fuller some time ago; is that correct?

13 15

1 part of this morning and listen very carefully 12 Yes.

2 to the pecple we bring in today, and in 2 @ How long have you had the position as

3 perticular, the counselors. 3 Clerk Magistrate for Fall River Comnty?

4 The comselors will come in about 11:00 this ¢ A Hbout 15 years.

5 morning, and I think there will be some real 5 Q 50 you've seen a mmber of judges over the

6 instruction to you there about Judge Fuller's 6 oourse of those years?

7 capabilities as a person and his ability to make TA  Yes.

8 changes. And T think he'll be a real -- he's 8 Q Is that a fair statement?

g got the ability to be a very good judge. 9 B Yes,
10 And what we are going fo be asking the 10 @  When — do you remenber when Judge Fuller first
11 Commission here at the end of all of this is to i came on the bench and first sat in Fall River
12 consider his capabilify to make changes and not 12 County?
13 only to be a good judge, but a really good 11 A Yes, 1 do.
1 person. 1¢ ¢ Do you remember about what year it was?
15 Ard there's not -- vou're not going to hear 15 A& It was mid-2000s, maybe 'C4, '05, '06, somewhere
16 anything today that really contests any of these 16 in there,
7 facts that will ccme befcre you from 17 ¢ Ckay. 2And vhat was — tell the Commission your
18 Mr, Schaffer. We feel this is a matter of a 18 first experience or encomnter with Judge Fuller.
19 person who can make changes in his life, that 19 & On the first day he came, I went to him and I
20 he's received a wake-up call, and he's ready, 20 said that some of the compli —- I didn't know
21 willing, and able to be a good judge. Theark 21 what kind of law he had specialized in. And
22 you, 2 some of the more complicated cases, like the
23 WR. PAIMER: Okay. Call your first witness. 3 child support can be, come to us from all
bl MR, SCHAFFER: Call Carol Foster. 24 different directions, from referees, from
25 /Y 25 Pierre, Rapid City, state's attorney, divorce

14 16
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i cases. 12 Yes,

2 And that T would be happy to put notes on 2 Q  hat were those?

3 the files and say whether service had been done iR First, I had Kim Schnose, who was the regular

4 or whether there was something to look out for 4 clerk that did criminal cases, tickets,

5 or if something needed to be — he needed fo be 5 protection crders. She would go in for those

6 aware of samething before he would sign the 6 cases and she said that she didn't want to go in
7 legal documents. 1 oourt. anymore because she thought that the

8 ¢  Did you ask him about vhat type of law he had 8 coments from the Judge wers degrading.

9 practiced or that type of thing? 9 Q0  2nd what did you do to replace her then?

10 & Yes. 10 A Glenda Reder. I'd send Glenda Reder in. Glenda
11 @  And what was his response? 11 has worked for the court systems off and en for
12 & He said he was an expert in everything. 12 40 years and nothing phases Glenda, generally.
13 ¢ Ao expert in everything? 13 0 2nd what was her complaint?

14 & Yes. 14 A She came out of the courtroom, there was an

15 @ With the sticky notes, what was his response to 15 incident where scmebody had asked to put an —
16 that? i6 ad a case to the calendar, and it was —- we

17 B He would often say I was the sticky queen, and I 1 blocked things on the calendar so the Judge will
18 don't know what it was with — I use those 18 have arraiguments, then they'll have sentencings
19 PBost-it notes, we all use those Post-it motes in 19 and motions., And he had already done the
20 our business to have the cases flow, what needs 20 arraigrments and we had -~ samebody had added to
21 to be done. And he said he dich't like sticky P} the calendar for a fellow that wanted to come up
22 notes and he was going to throw them cut, which 22 from the jail, be arraigned in circult court,
23 he did. 23 plead, and then be ready for sentencing.
24 Q  Ckay. And did there —- was there any 24 Ind I don't know who added it on, that's not
25 consequences as a result of that? 25 something the clerks just decide to do. Bub

17 19

1A Yeah. Scme of the things that — well, T had 1 he — but Judge Fuller was extremely upset that
2 o — when he would have court, I would need to 2 he had to do the arraigmment again, and so he

3 go through the garbage after court because he 3 had been chewing on Glenda in the courtroom

1 would throw juvenile documents into the trash 4 about ~ what he often said was Goddamm clerk

5 can, and they have to be shredded. S0 I'd go 5 and the Goddamn schedule, and why did he have to
6 throwh there and I would find sticky notes in 6 do this again, So she came cut of the courtroom
7 the trash can. 7 and she was upset, real upset.

8 Some of them are things like if an attorney 8 Q What was her demeanor?

9 brings in a case on a cowt date, we get 9 A Her demeanor to that?
10 everything in 2 file, send it to the judges, but 09  Yes.
11 we don't pause to get anything else done, like 11 & She was shaken by it.
12 entering it into the computer, charging it out. 12 Q  ¥as she crying?
13 %o we'd put a sticky mote on it, say, Clerk 13 B No. Not at that poinf. She went dewn — she

14 charge out, or we would say, Attorney asked for 14 was mad. She went down the hall, she felt — to
15 three certified copies, (Cs. We put, Attorney 3 15 the — down the hall is both the men's room and
16 (C or something on there to remind us what 16 the women's room, bathrooms, and she felt

17 needed to be done. They were in the trash can, 11 Judge Fuller followed her down the hall. T kind
1% oo, 18 of thought that he probably was going to the
19 @  Did any mistakes get made as a result of that? 18 bathroom.
20 & Mot that T know of, Decause I went through the 20 Mevertheless, she came back in and she

Al trash, 21 was —- she was crying. She was mad. She was
22 Q  Ckay. And did your deputies go into court with 2 crying, and she said that he had stopped her in
23 you? 23 the hall, blocked her path, and used the ¥ word,
24 R Yes. 4 T don't think he -~ I think it was about the
25 Q  Did you have complaints from the deputies? 75 schedule or the cases or something. And again,
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1 the Goddamn clerks can't just do the schedule 12 Yes,
2 like this. Something about the F'ing 2 Q The date of —-
3 arraignwent or something, And she was — she 324 Two thousand —
1 said she will quit before she will ever ¢o in 4 Q  The date of the was what?
5 that courtroom again. 5 A o — June 28, 2004,
6 @  2nd you've known her how long? 6 Q  Ckay. Would that have been pwepared shortly
7 B Fifteen years. 7 after this incident with Ms. Reder?
8 @  2nd how long has she worked as a clerk? 8 A TWe have court on Fridays, so it probably wes the
9 A Forty-soie years. 9 next Monday.
10 @  &nd so she's seen a muber of judges over those 10 Q  Ckay. And what was your concern for authoring
11 years? 11 this memo and your concern with the sitmation?
122 Y 12 A Both Glenda, when she was so upset, and Kim were
13 Q  As a result of that, did you prepare a 13 talking about it, and they are together with
14 remcrandizm to the cowrt administyator? 14 their desks, I'm across the room, And she said
15 A Yes. That's my supervisor. 15 it's hostile treatment in the courtroom. 2nd
16 {Exhibit E was marked for identification.} 16 when — and Kim was agreeing with her,
17 MR. PAIMER: ‘'his has been marked as 17 Mnd when she said that, T felt that T — it
18 Ehibit E. We had 3 through D so we'll pick up 18 was time that I nesded to pass it on up to my
19 with E. 19 supervisor to advise them.
0 Q (BY MR. SCHAFFER:) Do you have in front of you 20 ¢ And what was your concern?
21 what the court reporter has marked as Exhibit E? 21 A T agreed.
2 A Yes, Ido. 22 Q  You agreed that it was hostile?
23 ¢ Is that the memorandmm that you sent to the 23 & Ibsolutely.
2 court administratar, Mr. Rrattermaker? 24 Q  Were you concerned about a hostile work
25 A Yes. i 25 enviromment in the courthouse there?
21 23
1 0 Andwas that prompted by this incident with 1A I was, and I — not only — you know, I can't,
2 Glenda? 2 as a supervisor, tolerate that. I don't like my
3 B Yes, it was. 3 amployees to be feeling like that, or myself.
4 MR. SCHAFTER: We would offer Exhibif E. ¢ Q0  Inyour memo, you indicated that this happens
5 MR. NICHOLSON: Just a minute, I haven't 5 weekly, in the middle paragraph. How often is
6 seen this before, so — 6 court achmlly held there?
7 MR. PAIMER: Okay. Take your time. 7 A Weekly would be when we have court, which is
8 MR, NICHOLSON: (Pause.) I would dbject on 8 every other week, or at this time it was every
9 relevance. This was six years ago., Unless they 9 other week,
10 can put some string of connection together to 10 ¢ Al right, Following this incident, did you
1 the present, T would say that it has no 11 then yourself handle court when Judge Ruller was
12 probative value to this hearing. 12 thexe?
13 MR, PALMFR: I'm going to overrule your 13 A Idid
14 chjection, and we're going to receive Exhibit E. 14 Q  And that was to what, so your staff wouldn't
15 Go ahead, Mr. Schaffer. 15 have to?
16 Q (BY MR, SCHRFFER:) Do you know what became of 16 A Right. To protect the staff from going in. I
17 this e-mail or memo to Mr. Krattemmsker? Do you 11 had two of them that didn't want to go in, s0...
18 know what was ever dene about this, if anything? 18 Q  How did that work out for you with your other
9 A I don't know, 1 — I'msure I discussed it with 18 duties?
20 Mr, Krattemmaker, and I believe he was going to 20 A It -- it put a strain on my duties because you
2 pass it on to Judge Trimble. Rnd that's 21 spend a day in a courtroom, it's a day you don't
py) probably what the note indicates at the bottom, 22 have processing cases.
23 but T don't know. 23 @ When you were in court with Judge Fuller
24 @  And does this help you with the tire frame as to 24 present, tell the Commission the type of
25 when this cccurred, this -- 25 language that he would use in open court.
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1 A It was — il was generally the Goddamn clerk, 1 Q  Tell us about that.

2 and the schedule, preblems with the schedule. 2 A Hehad a personal phone call, I assured it was

3 If 3 case would — an attormey would cancel at 3 his wife, it was about a bank account or

| the last minute, which is always very 4 checkbock or something, and it was the F'ing

5 inconvenient to everybody, then you have a 5 bank or checkbook, and — and just loud so that
g break, so your cases aren't tight together. 6 everybedy in my office, which sits off the

7 Or you have — you set it on for a motion 7 chambers, heard the entire conversation. So I

8 and you think it's going to be ten-minute motion 8 got up and I shut the chamber doors.

9 or it's an hour-long motien, and so there's not 9 Q  Wowas in your office at that time?

10 a whole lot that the clerks can do to contrel 10 A It would have been all of my staff, attorneys, I
11 the courtroom. We schedule the calendar, and 11 don't know who, exactly who was there. But

12 franily, I schedule a tight calendar. It 12 generally when the court is on a break, we've

13 operates pretty smoothly. 13 qot the attorneys, police officers, and staff.
16 Q  Vhat were the precise words that Judge Fuller 1 We don't — we have a very swall hallway so they
15 used in open cowrt, the swear words that you 15 don't fit cut there.

16 recall? 16 @  Have you ever heard Judge Fuller swear at

1T & Goddamn clerk. Yeah, that was... 17 lawyers in open court?

159 bid he refer to the schedile in the same 18 A Yes.

13 language? 19 @  Tell the Conmission about that.
20 A Yeah. The Goddamn schedule or the Goddam 20 & He had an incident with an attorney by the name
2 calendar. pil of Kari Nomdstrem over — she was talking about
22 Q@ Bnd how often -~ this would happen on a frequent 22 a juvenile matter. I don't know if it was 2
23 basis or? 23 Juvenile case or custody case, but it was a kid.
24 A Yes. 2 And she had the statutes with her and she
25 Q@ Virtally — 25 wanted to argue her point, and the Judge — she
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1 A Every time, 1 said vhat she wanted and he said what his

2 Q ~— ewery time he was there? 2 decision was.

3 A Yes, 3 And she continued to say she was going to

§ Q@  Ind this was from the bench? { read the statutes, and he told her to shut the
5 A Yes. 5 damn statutes, he had already made his decision
6 @  With the public there? 6 and he didn't need to be told what the law was.
T A Yes, 7 Q  Had - vere you ever contacted by Judge Fuller
§ Q  And you there? 8 in ccnnection with the judicial election?

9 A Yes. ¢ A Yes.
10 Q0 Bnd what, when he addressed the coment, quote, 10 ¢ Tell the Commission about that.
il Goddarm clerk, unquote, how did that make you i1 A He called me and said that he wanted to know
12 fieel? 12 that T had — that I would be the -- let's see,
13 B Very belittling., Although he would laugh, sc it 13 how did he... He was —- wanted to know that he
1 was a5 though he was saying it as though it was 1 had the support of —- my suppert in the judicial
15 supposed to be a joke, but it didn't feel like a 15 election.

16 joke. And I should add, the incident with 16 9 Vhat did you tell him?

17 Glenda in the hallway was, the hallway was 17 A T told him e were not allowed to be inwolved in
18 packed with people, the pablic. 18 Judicial elections.

19 Q  When he used the F word — 19 Q Wy is that?
20 A Yes. 20 & Igainst the mles. We just don't. We don't get
no -- and swore at her? 21 involved in any elections, if we can help it --
2 B Yes. 22 @ That's pretty clear?
23 Q  ¥ow, had you heard, overheard him screaming or 23 A Bt judicial is — absolutely.
] yelling or swearing in his chambers? 24 @ BEnd vhat did you tell hin?
% A Yes. 25 A That's — I just said we're not allowed to gel
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1 in judicial elections. 19 Ckay. Soall of those answers were, you were

2 ¢ vhat was his response to that? 2 relating incidents that happened in the year

3 B He said that he knew that, but that he knew how 3 2004; is that correct?

1 it really works, that the clerk in a small § A Correct.

5 comunity has & lot of clout. 5 Q0 Chay

6 @  Did you feel like he was still asking for your 6 A With the exception of whenever that election

1 support or endorsement even though you had told 7 was, I don"t know.

8 him that? 8 MR, NICHOLSOW: 1 have no further questioms.
9 A Yes. 9 REDIRECT EXPMINATION BY MR. SCHAFTER:
10 ¢ Youwre — 09 Just so the record is clear, Carol, my
11 & T responded again that I was not comfortsble 11 wierstanding is Judge Fuller was assigned to
12 getting involved in a judicial election. 12 the Fall River County regular schedule in 2004
13 Q  Ckay, Did he ever apologize for that? 13 for that calendar year; is that cerrect?
1¢ & Yes. He called me and apologized and said that 1 A Correct.
15 he was sorry that I had misinterpreted his 15 Q@  And the other occasions when he might be there
16 intentions, 16 would be on isolated cases; is that correct?
17 ¢ fhen he asked about the elections? 17 A Correct.
18 A Rignt. 18 @  And I think you said he was there recently or —-
19 @  Did he ever apologize for any of his other 19 A Hemight have had a hearing — we still got the
20 behavior in the courtroon? 20 Buck McColl case qoing on, and he might have had
21 B Not that I ever recall. 21 a hearing on that in the last couple years.
27 Q@  Has he ever apologized to you? 22 9  Did any of the clerk staff go in for that
23 A Mo i hearing?
24 @ Do you have any reascn to believe that he'll 24 B Tdon't think they did. I think that we asked
25 change or can change if he's put back on the 25 the state’s attorney's secretary that was in
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1 bench? 1 there to tell us if there was a new date

2 MR. NICHOLSON: I'm going to cbject; no 2 scheduled. I'm not sure if that's the right

3 foundation to answer that question. 3 case, either.

4 MR, PRIMER: I think that's — I'm going to 4 fie came down for a case, went imto a

5 sustain the objection. 5 hearing, they held the hearing and came out and
6 MR, SCHAFFER: Okay. That's all the 6 left. 2nd we relied on the attomeys or their
7 questions I have, 7 staff that were in there to give us the

8 CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. NICHOLSON: 8 informetion that we needed.

99 Is it Ms. or Mrs. Foster? 9 MR. SCHAFFER: That's all the questiens I
0 A Mrs. 10 had.

11 Mrs. Foster, when was the last time that 1 ¥R, PAIMER: Do any of the Commission

12 Judge Fuller had cotrt in Fall River Coumnty? 12 menbers have any questions?

13 A Well, he was here this year because we qo 13 {No questions were presented.)

14 January to December for a year. He did have oL MR. PAIMER: Thank you very much. You may
15 another occasion that I recall that he came down 15 be released from your subpoena.

16 for a hearing on - scmetimes the judges will 16 MR. SCHAFFER: May she be excused?

11 keep a case that they put sc much time into that 11 MR. PAIMER: Yes, You may be released from
18 they understand better than others or -- and he 18 your subpoena.

19 came down for a hearing on one of those other 19 (Witness left the room.}

20 cases. I don't recall the case. 20 MR. SCHAFFER: Cail Tonia Fischer.

21 ¢ ¥hen Mr. Schaffer was questioning you about 2l TONIA FISCHER,

22 these events of you going into the courtroom on 22 called as a witness herein, having been first duly

23 a I think a twice-monthly or every-other-week 23 gworn, was examined and testified as follows:

24 basis, what time frame are we talking about? 24 DIRECT EXEMINATION BY MR. SCHAFTER:

25 A During the year 2004. 25 0 Would you please state your name for the record
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or, What are the recemendations at this point?

1 ard spell your name. 1
2 Tonia, T-0-N-I-A, Fischer, F-I-5-C-H-E-R. 2 If — and we sometimes also cover other people's
3 Ms. Fischer, are you here pursuant to a subpoena 3 cases, So if our answers were, We're not sure,
4 that T issued? 4 this dossn't indicate, quite often he would
5 Yes, I am. 5 become irritated, and in a very stern evoice, I
6 And would you please intreduce yourself to the b don't know how to describe it, state, That's not
7 Commission, tell them what your title is and 7 the question I asked you. This would be done in
8 what your duties are. 8 open court. It was the best answers we could
g Ckay. I'm Tonia Fischer. I'm a juvenile court 9 give him at the time.
10 services officer for the Seventh Circuit Court 10 9  How did that make you feel?
1t Services. 11 A It makes you feel incompstent, even though
12 And how long have you held that position? 12 you're doing the best thing you can.
13 Tt will be eight years in May, 13 9 Bod have you had specific instances that you can
14 Brd prior to that, what have you done? Just 14 recall where he has called you on the carpet, so
15 give us a little thambnail sketch of your work 15 to speak?
1% history. 16 A T have. There was — there was an instance, T
17 Starting in "94, I went to work for the Juvenile 17 had a juvenile who had been in front of him on
18 Services Center. later, several years, a few 18 mmerous occasions and was back in front of hin
19 years later, moved over to the Court-Appointed 19 again. Goirg to be serving a sentence, and also
20 Special Advocates program and was a volunteer 20 had just completed a chemical dependency
21 ooordinator for them. Then I moved into the 21 evaluation.
22 Department of Social Services and did child 22 At the end of — or to the — towards the
23 protection for about five and a half years prior 23 erd or the closing of his hearing, I had stood
24 to coming to court services, pL] up and asked if home detention would be made
25 In comection with your job as court services it eligible for this juvenile, which he quickly
33 35
1 officer, have you had occasion to come into 1 said "no" to, and then turned zround and kind of
2 contact and deal with Judge Fuller? 2 leaned over the bench at — to me and said,
3 Yes, 3 really mudely, Why would you even ask me that?
4 BEnd have you had some — well, I will just ask | 4 Bnd T did attempt to explain, but it just
5 it this way. Bow would you describe 5 eventually becomes useless, 50...
§ Judge Fuller's cemesnor when dealing with you or ¢ @  Well, why did you thirk home detention in that
7 other court services workers? 7 case was appropriate?
B The last — he came on the bench in Jamuary of 8 A  The recommendation was for outpatient treatment
9 2010, It was the second time I had been in 9 for that juvenile at that time. J5C will mot
i0 front of him as a juvenile officer. And at 10 transport for cutpatient treatwent, so inmy --
1 first, it was ckay. I would say somewhere in 11 on home detention, he would have served a
12 February, March, it seemed like things changed 12 sentence as well as been corpleting. In my head
13 and it -~ he became disrespectful, demeaning, 13 I was thinking we would have been doing two
it rude, 1 things at once in 90 days. ALl T needed was a
15 Could you give the Comdssion some idea or 15 simple "o
16 exanples of what you mean by those comments. 16 Q  Did you ever get an apology from that
17 One of the things that comes to mind that 17 ineident —-
18 happened quite frequently is, with juveniles we 18 4 Mo
19 will set up 2 chemical dependency evaluation or 19 ¢ -- frem Judge Fuller?
20 psychological evaluation, things like that, that 20A T
21 need to be done.  May not always have the 21 Q  Did you ever get an apology from the juvenile?
2 results of those back as the juvenile is working 22 & 1did, actually, both him ang his mother at
23 their way through the court process. 23 separate instances, He was serving his
b There were times when we would get asked, 24 sentence, had written me a letter and thanked me
25 When will this juvenile be going to treatment, 25 for my attempts, and just in so many words
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was standing in fropt of Judge Fuller with that

1 stated he felt bad for the treatment I received, 1

2 as did his mother via a phone conversation. z juvenile, and the comment was made rather

3 So they basically apologized for Judge Fuller's 3 sarcastically, I wonder how 2 juvenile on

g treatment of you? 4 Department of Corrections could be drinking.

5 In a sense, yes. 5 The JCA kind of made a face, just was

6 Hawe you ever had any concern in his cowrtromm ] wncomfortable.

7 for safety? 7 MR, SCHAFFER: That's all.

8 Numerous times, yes. 8 MR. NICHOLSON: Mo questicns.

g Tell the Commission about that. 9 MR. PALMER: Do any of the Commission

10 The courtroon that Judge Fuller has is the 19 merbers —

1 smallest one I believe in our courtroom -- in 11 FAMINATION BY JUDGE WIIBUR:

12 our courthonse, Juvenile court days get very, 12 @ I just had a question. When you were talking

13 very full, very busy. 13 ahout the comment about home detention, that

14 It started out okay, but on numercus e wodd be like letting the juvenile out of

15 occasions on the larger days, there would be all 15 detention to be at home as opposed to staying in
15 of the parents, all the juveniles, all of the 16 detention or kid jail?

17 professionals brought in at once for advisories 17 3 Yeah, except for they wear a monitor, so they

18 and hearings, which then 1ines the courtroom 18 are still considered in detention. They were
19 literally with people standing, or chairs being 19 just wearing a monitor and are restricted on
20 maneuvered around so that even the deputy who is 20 monitors.
pal in your — in the witness box would be blocked 2 JUDGE WILBR:  Thank you.
22 in by chairs and people standing. 22 EXPMINATION BY MR. McBRIDE:
23 The railing, which would be behind us where 23 @  Ms. Fischer, you testified that you had asked
2 we would sit with our stuff, and then separate 2 Judge Fuller about vhether or not hame detention
25 the — the viewers' box would be lined with pi] might be appropriate, and T believe you said
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1 people directly behind us and in front of the 1 that he said, Wo, and then he leaned over and

2 people sitting, and it would be that way all the 2 said, Wy would you even ask me that?

3 way around. There would be no way to move. 3 I'm looking at a report that was prepared by
4 Have you expressed any concerns for your safety? q Dave Nelson, whe interviewed you previously, ard
5 Every time it happened, pretty much, T -1 5 in there the quote is: Vhy would you even ask

3 myself would take it to my boss, Judd Thompsen. 6 me that, that's just stupid, That's in quotes.
7 Vhat would account for all of these pecple all TA Correct.,

8 being in court at onee? § Q  Mow, what I want to clarify is, did it make you
P Doing mass advisories, lots of hearings, 9 feel stpid? Or were the words, That's just
10 essentially trying to move the docket through 10 stapid, used?
11 the day faster. 11 & Icaf't — I can't state for a fact that, That's
12 Was anything ever cone to address those safety 12 just stupid, was in there. I did feel stupid.
13 issues? 13 Q  Ckay. All right. I just wented to get that
i Vot to my knowledge, no. 14 clarified. Thark you.
15 Have you been in court when he's made 15 A That's fine.
16 inapreopriate coments to others that you can 16 EXAMINATION BY MR. TRAVIS:
1 recall? 17 Q The commnt that you just discussed with
18 Ido. There's one that comes to mind, there was 18 Mr. MBride, was that audible to other people in
19 othars, but for a specific that comes to mind 18 the cowrtroom, at least from your perspective?
20 would be in regards to a Department of 20 A Oh, it was - yeah, it was exceptionally loud.
n Corrections agent. There had been a juvenile 19 Did anyone who was in the courtroom make any
22 whe was with the Department of Corrections and 22 comments to you about that coment after it had
n was caught drinking in his backyard with some 23 heen said to you?
2 other juveniles. 24 A The other court services officers immediately
25 The JCA or his juvenile corrections agent 25 were like... Wow.
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1 Q  Youdescribed the systen that Judge Ruller would 1 Thompson, T-H-O-4-B-5-0H,
2 use to try to expedite and move the juvenile 20 M. Thompsm, tell the Comission what your

3 calendar aleng with the mass advisements of 3 title is and what your duties are.

t rights ard the concerns you had for your safety 4 & I apthe chief court service officer for the

5 and other court: service persommel. Are you 5 Seventh Circuit Court, which encompasses Custer,
6 aware of any other judges in this circuit who 6 Fall River and Shannon Counties, and Pennington.
7 would utilize the sate systen? 7 My job is to manage the court service office,

8 & I think that the same system is used. The 8 the probation office of the court, to memage all
9 difference is the size of the courtroom and the 9 the staff, provide supervision to their — to
10 ability to accommodate that mass awount of 10 the 23 court service officers and the

11 people. 11 5 secretaries, and handle the budget for that
12 MR. TRAVIS: That's all, 12 office,
13 MR. PAIMER: Mr. Schaffer? 13 Q@  ZEnd how Iong have you held that positien?

14 FEDIRECT EXAMINATICN BY MR. SCHRFYER: 14 A Since January of 1987.
15 @ I just had - have a followup. I'm trying to 15 @  Which mekes it how many years now?
1% get a -- I've been in his courtroom. How many 16 A Soon fo be 24,
11 people are we talking about that are in that 17 @ How many people work undermeath you,
18 roam when you're talking sbout this situation? 18 M. Thompson?
19 A Yell, essentially, mumberwise that would be 19 A here's a total of 28 staff in my office.
20 hard. I'm just trying to do a rough estimate. 20 §  You're going to have to speak wp.
2 If you have — if you have 70 kids on the 21 A Twenty-eight staff in my office. I'm sorry.
22 morning's docket and you bring in at least hailf 22 @  Tonia Fischer would be one of those?
23 of those for advisories and even one parent 23 A Yes, sir
24 apiece, sometimes an attomey, I'm going to say 24 Q0 Judd, in commection with this case, have you
25 you're pushing clese to 100 pacple. 25 received complaints from your court services
41 43

1 Q9 Andvhere are you sitting or standing or 1 officers concerning Judpe Fuller's conduct or
2 vhatever during this situation? 2 demeanor?

3 A If — if those two tables werg, say, the defense 3 A Yes, I have.

§ table and the court services table and — we 4 Q  Tell the Conmission what those complaints are.
5 woutld be sitting there with people 1ined behind 5§ A Offhanded comments, not responding to safety

§ us. On one occasion I sat on the steps on the 6 issues in the courtroom, trying to handle his

7 witness box next to his bench, along with my T docket teo quickly, were the basic three

8 boss. 8 complaints, I think.

9 @  That was the only available place? g MR. NICHOLSON: Excuse me, I can't hear.

10 A Itwes. Iwasupforahearing, for a... 10 THE WITNESS: Okay. Demeanor in the

11 MR. SCHAFFER: Okay. That's all. 11 aourtroom, safety in the courtroom, and trying
12 MR. NICHOLSOM: I have nothing. 12 to handle the docket too quickly.

3 ¥R, PALMER: Anybody? 13 Q  {BY MR, SCHRFFER:) When you say offhanded

1 {No further questions were presented.) 14 comments, can you give me an exanple of what

15 MR, PAIMER: Thank you. You're released 15 complaints were reported to you.

16 from your subpoena. Thank you. 6 A One of the corments was, a CoMment was made in
17 {Witness left the room.) 17 open court that, 1 know court service officers
18 MR. SCHAFFER: Call Judd Thompson, 18 don't do their job. That was made during a

13 JUDD THOMPSCN, 19 hearing.
20 called as a witness herein, having been first duly 20 Q How did that court service officer feel about
21 swom, was examined and festified as follows: 21 that?

22 ECMINRTION BY MR, SCHAFFER: 22 A Slighted, felt horribie,
23 @ Vould you please state your name for the record 23 Q0 Do you believe that to be true?

2 and spell your name. 24 B Ho, Tdonot,

25 A Judd Thompson.  J-U-D-D is the first name, 25 0 And have you ever addressed safsty concerns that
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have been brought to your attention with

MR. TRAVIS: I'm sorry?

1 1

2 Judge Fuller? 2 TE WITNESS: I knew what that comment

3 A Yes, Idid. 3 meant.

4 Q Byl vhat concexns have been brought to your 4 JUDGE WIZEUR: What did it mean?

5 attention by your staff? 5 THE WITWESS: It meant, I will take all day
6 &  The number of people in his courtroom at any 6 and we'll go late if we have to. That was my

7 given time to the point where people had to sit 7 perception of it.

8 cn the floor, my staff would sit on the flcor. 80 {EY MR. McBRIDE:} One more thing, You — you
6 ind T addressed that with Judge Fuller, asking 9 remenber talking to Dave Nelson, who came and
10 that not ba scheduled that way because there was 10 intervieved you?

11 a safety concern and I was afraid something 14 Yes Ido

12 could happen in the courtroom. 12 0  There was — in the report he prepared, he said
130  What was his response? 13 that you — that the words that Judge Fuller
14 A We'll wait until something happens. u usad didn't necessarily convey the impropriety
15 0 We'll wvait mtil something happens? 15 of the comments, and he quoted you saying, You
16 A Yes, sir. 16 nead to hear the tone of voice and the context
17 @  Was it ever addressed by Judge Fuller? 17 in which it is said.

18 A Not to my knowledge, it wasn't. 18 A Yes.

19 ¢  And what time frame would that have been that 19 0 2nd does that relate to things you had actwmlly
20 you raised that concern? 20 persenally heard?
21 A Sometime between probably March and June of 1B That related to information from my staff that
22 2010. 22 was brought to me after court.
23 Q  Bnd vhen the staff are concerned about: safety, 23 Q  They were telling you you had to hear the tone?
24 give the Comdssion an idea of what they are -- 4 A Yes,
25 what your safety concerns are. 2re we talking 25 ¢ Did you actually hear a tone of woice that they
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1 about people acting cut in court or starting 1 were describing?

2 fights or what? 2 A My time in the courtroom is very limited, so,

3 & Ve deal with delinquents and children out of 3 no, I never did.

4 oontrel, their parents. The courtroom is packed 4 MR. MCBRIDE: OQkay. Thank you.

5 full of people, Their concern is something will 5 EXAMINATION BY MR. PAIMER:

6 blow up and either the bailiff or my staff will 6 9Q I have a question, Judd. Tell me, when you said
1 not be able to respond to it in an appropriate 7 you had concerns about how the docket was

8 H2nner. 8 handled, I haven't been —- handled a juvenile
9 MR. SCHRFFER: That's all the questions I 9 matter in 25 years, 30 years, probebly, but tell
10 have, 19 me what you mean by that.
11 MR, NICHOLS(H: Mo questions. 111 A Some of the issues that my office saw were not
12 MR. BALMFR: Anybody from the Commission, 12 clearly explaining rights, doing hearings

13 any questions? 13 without parents in the courtroom, just the speed
1¢ EXAMIFATION BY MR. McBRIDE: 14 of the hearing.
15 Q¢ Mr. Thompson, you say you addressed the safety 150 How memy hearings a day on average for a
16 issues, Did you address either of the other two 16 juvenile day would you have?
17 areas that you highlighted here today? 17T A There was times there was upward of 70
18 & I did address the docket, timeliness of the 18 @  Seventy hearings in a day?
18 docket, T asked him to spend the time that 19 A {fb audible response ~ Witness nocded.)
20 needed to be spent on the docket. 20 R. PAIMER: Any of cur questions proumgt —
21 Q  What response did you get? 21 REDIRECT EXAMIVATION BY MR. SCHAFFER:
22 & I canbe like Judge Tice if you want me to, 22 0 Well, Judd, I was just — when you browght wp
2 Q  Was there any explanation of what that comment 23 the scheduling concern to Judge Fuller, he

24 meant? 24 vesponded, I can be like Judge Tice. T mean,
25 A MNo. I knewwhat that comment meant. 25 you said you interpreted that to mean that he
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1 could drag things out all day into the night. 1 A Everybody stayed in the courtroom.

2 Did he ever respond with a solution? 2 Q So & juvenile case for ae juvenils occurred

3 A There were times we attempted to have solutions 3 when there's 100 pecple in the courtroom?

4 to the scheduling. They never worked. 4 A - Uhtwh,

5 Q  Wat were the solutions? 5 Q  And the kid had to stand up and admit and give a
§ A More time in court. I rmean, more days. They 6 factual basis of what was going on?

7 never happened, or at least to my knowledge T A Yes.

8 didn't happen on a regular basis. 8§ 0  Wat's the most —— I mean, how big —- what's the
9 Q  Andwhy is that? 9 bhiggest calendar you ever saw of mmber of

10 & T don't handle the schedule. 10 Juveniles in one day?

11 @  Who schedules that? 11 & Prcbably that 70 mmber.
12 & State's attomey's office schedules. 12 JUDGE WILBUR: Okay. Okay. Thanks. Sorry.
13 Q  Ckay. And I quess the impression that the 13 Iaybody else have a question?

14 scheduling problen is — were £illing the 14 FURTHER REDIRFCT FXRMINATICH BY MR. SCHAFFER:

15 courtroom with, you know, many, many pecple, 15 @ I guess it just prompts me to ask, I thought
16 mary Juveniles, and were all stacked up at once. 16 these juvenile procesdings were confidential in
17 Tas there any attempt to space these out? 17 nature, or are they?

18 & Conversations were had to space it cut. It 18 A They are confidential by statute unless there's
18 never happened, to my knowledge. 19 a compelling reason that they not be.

20 Q  Conversations were had with whom? 20 @  How does that work if you've got everybody

21 A State's attorney's office, who schedules, and 2 standing in court when the other juweniles are
2 with Judge Foller. 22 talking about their case?

23 Q¢ You're saying it just never came to pass? 23 & That — whether the hearings are private or not
24 B Mever came to pass. 24 is a judicial decision, it's not mine.

5 Did you ever talk to Judge Fuller about the 25 MR. SCHEFTER: Okay.
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1 offhanded comments that he made sbout the staff, 1 MR, HIEB: Just to clarify.

2 your: people not doing theix job and that type 2 MR, PALMER: Certainiy.

3 of — 1 CROSS-EXEMINATICN BY MR. HIEB:

¢ A The only time I ever talked to Judge Fuller 4 Q0  Did — were you present, did Judge Fuller offer
5 about an offhanded conment had to do with us 5 them the right to a private hearing?

b wearing badges, and that was in the back hallway 6 A I think that in most cases that statement was

7 of the courthouse. And he made a coment zbout 7 made, yes.

8 my badge, and I asked him not to make fun of or 8 ¢  Sohe said to them, You've gut a right to clear
9 not to minimize the badge and its importance. 9 the courtroom out?
10§ Well, had he? 10 A Yes,
11 & Inmymind, he had, yeah. 119  And people would say, Mo, I will adeit without
12 0 What did he say? 12 that? I — you're not suggesting, because I
13 A I don't remember the exact words. Can't tell 13 have never seen the allegation in this complaint
14 you. 1 or in your statement, that Judge Fuller was out
15 MR. SCHAFFER: Okay. That's all. 15 repeatedly vielating the zights of juveniles.
16 MR. NICHOLSQN: Nothing. 16 2nd I don't want that coming out now with us

17 JUDGE WILBUR:  I'm sorry, but I've got one 17 getting jumped by it. There's no allegation

18 more question. i8 along those lines, is there?

1% MR. PALMER: Sure, of course, 15 A I'm not making any allegations.
20 EXAMINATION BY JUDGE WILBUR: 20 9 Ckay, Well, and I'm not trying to beat you up.
21 ¢  Onanomal juvenile day, I might do a growp 21 1 just want to make sure that you're not
2 adviseent and then have pecple shuffle out and 22 suggesting that he was not giving juveniles a
23 take cases one at a time, Would that happen or 23 right to a private hearing.
2 did everybody stay in the courtroom the vhole 24 B As far as I know, the statement was made that
2 time that court wes going on? 25 you could have a private hearing.
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Q Be gave then that option?

1 1 Judge Davis,

z2 R Ag far as T know. 2 9  COkay. And in your position as a oot

3 MR. HIEB: Thank you. 3 administrator, have you had an opportmnity to

4 MR. PAIMFR: Prompt anything? Anybody? 4 cbserve personally or hear about corplaints or
5 % further questions were presented.) 5 preblems with Judge Fuller?

6 MR. PALMER: Thank you, Judd. 6B Yes.

7 MR, SCHAFFER: May he be released? 7 Q  Tell us from the personal side.

8 MR. PAIMER: Yes. You are released from § A 1 quess from the personal side, I deal with the
9 your subpoena. 9 clerks of court, I know that there were problems
10 (Brief recess was taken.) 10 in Custer and Fall River County when he was down
11 MR. SCHAFFER: Call Jeff Krattenmaker. 11 there. I know that there are prcblems with the
12 JEFFREY L. KRATTENMBKER, 12 clerk's office in —- in here as well,
13 called as a witness herein, having been first duly i1 ¢  2nd the problems — we have a docment, I think
14 sworn, was examined and testified as follows: it that it's in frent of you, I think, Exhibit E,
15 DIRECT EXEMINATION BY MR. SCHAFTER: 15 vhich was a memorandm from Carol Foster to you
16 @  Would you please state your name and spell your 16 in Jume of 2004. Do you remenber receiving
17 name for the record. 17 this, M. Krattermaker?

kR Sure. Jeffrey, J-B-F-FR-E-Y, L., 13 A T do.
19 Krattenmaker, K-R-A-T-T-E-N-M-A-K-E-R. 19 Q Do you remenber discussing that with Ms. Foster?
209 Mr. Krattermeker, sometimes it's difficult to 20 B T do. I've had several discussions with her.
21 hear in here, but I think we've solved the 21 {Mr. #Hieb returned.)
22 problem.  So make sure you spesk up. 22 Q (BY MR. SCHAFFER:) Do you know what became of
23 A Okay. 23 this complaint?
20 @ Your title is what? M4 B Because it was a complaint involving a judge, T
25 B I'ma cirouit court administrator. 25 would have turnad this over to Presiding
53 55

1 Q  For vhich cireuit? 1 Judge Trimble at the time, He and T discussed
? A Seventh. 2 the comments that Carol made. We discussed the
3 {Mr. Hieb left the room.) 3 tendency to micromanage and the tendency to

L Q (BY MR, SCHREFFER:) How long have you held that 4 bully some of the staff, and as such, that's

5 position? 5 generally the way a court administrator and

6 A A little over nine years. 6 presiding judge work with another cne.

7 Q0  2And you started approxinately when? 7 ¢ Do you know what, if anything, Judge Trinble did
8 & Julyof "0L. 8 with this?

9y Q  Ckay, And prior to that, what did you do? 9 A Idon't, I know he had a discussion with
10 & T worked for Northrop Gnmman in San Diego, and 16 Carol Foster, and I'm mot sure where he went
1 lexislexis, Dayton, Chio, and I was a trial 11 thereafter.
12 oourt administrator for the State of Maine for 12 Q@  Tell the Commission what type of clerk and
13 nine years. 13 person Carol Foster is.
11 @ ¥hat time pericd would that have been? A Carol Foster is a rare find. I quess I style
15 A Ch, the '80s in Maine, the '%0s for LexisNexis, 15 her as perhaps one of the best clerks that we
16 and I've been here since. 16 have in the state of South Dakota, She has an
17 @  2And you sexve at the pleasure of the presiding 17 interest in the position, she's well-respected
18 Judse; is that correct? 13 across the state, she serves on a number of

9 a Ido. 19 committees, and she is probably just the best
20 ¢ And since you assumed the position in 2001, who 20 clerk that one could ever work with. She's

21 have the presiding judges been in Seventh 21 level-headed, doesn't jump to conclusions, and
2 Circuit? 22 very, very stable in tems of the way that she
23 A Well, it started cut with Judge Fitzgerald, who 23 examines and adninisters her office.
b2 passed away before T got here. Then it was 24 Q@ bid you have similar complaints from the clerk
25 Judge Tice, then it was Judge Trimble, and now 25 in Custer, Dethie Salzsieder?
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1A Idid. Wedid. 1 staff down there?

2 Q  Ind she testified at the last hearing in this 7 A (Mo audible response - Witness nodded. )

3 matter, and her testimony is part of the record, 39 Is that right?

4 But generally what were those complaints? 4 B That is correct.

5 A Basically the same types of complaints, the 5 Q  Tell me about the ~- you've heard him make the

6 micromanagement of the office, bullying of the, 8 coments about juveniles as little peckerheads.
7 some of the staff, attomeys, law enforcement. 1 Has he said that to you directly?

8 @  Bullying by whon? § L He said that in the ogter office. He said it in
§ A By Judge Fuller. 9 front of a mmber of folks a nuber of times.
10 @ When you say bullying, what are you talking 10 ¢ There was some disoussion previously about the
11 about? 11 license plate on his car, which I — ¢r van,
12 B Just ewding excess force. Just basically, to 12 which I wnderstood was probable caused or prawb
13 me, ballying is something very similar to what 13 cause., Has he ever explained to you his
14 we see in the media. Tt's basically, if you 1 experience with that, or with the van and law
15 have the power, you are using undo force on 15 enfarcement?
16 others, and as such, it causes problems. 16 & We ¢id have a conversation at cne point in time
17 Q@ et me ask you this. Have you personaily 17 in the garage. I have a vanity license plate

18 cbserved or had any situations with Judge Fuller 18 that says AWS, for American Water Spaniel. His
13 you thought were inappropriate? 1% says Probable Cause, and he did tell re at one
20 A Yes. 20 point in Lime about a situation that ccourred in
21 Q Tell the Coemission about those. 21 another state, I believe it was Colorado, where
22 A From tine to time Juwdge Fuiler likes to wander 22 iaw enforcement apparently saw his van, singled
23 around and use some double entendre, and T know 23 it out, condiucted a search of the vehicle, and
2 there were a couple of ccrasions where he has A it was fairly trammatic for both himself and his
25 referred to photographs in his courtroom. I 25 spouse, And as such, he decided to memerialize
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1 think when he initially put them up, the 1 that with the probable cause cr praub cause on
2 response was, This is where I hang my Tndians. 2 his license plate in a vanity plate.

3 I know that from time to time he'll refer to 3 0 Did he say vhat happened to him in the stop?

1 juveniles as little peckerheads and a variety of § A Apparently it was fairly tramatic. I think

5 those comments, which may be haorous at the 5 they singled out his vehicle and asked his —- he
6 time, Wt obwiously tend to dwell upon others, 3 ard his spouse to step out, searched the

7 T quess I'm the type of person that still 7 vehicle, I think made them sit by the vehicle as
8 appears to be squeamish when I hear the word 8 they did that.

9 Juvies as opposed to juveniles, so perhaps it's 3 Q  Ckay. There was also sone previous testimony
10 my conservative nature. 10 about him wearing a powdered wig from time to
11 @ By the way, has Judge Fuller been assigred to n time, Have you chserved that?

12 Custer or Fall River County since that — this 12 A Yes.

13 memo or that year, I guess, 2004? 13 ¢ Where?

4 A No. 1A I believe in the outer office, and T think he
15 Q Wy is that? 15 also vwore it into court & few times, I believe
16 & I quess we encountered encugh difficult issues 16 he wore it in front of juvenile court.

17 during those tvo assignments to make the 17 @  ¥hat was the geresis of the wig?

18 presiding judge and myself question about 18 A Judge Delaney was part of a local acting group
19 stbsequent assiqnments. 18 that appeared for an MIV filming up at

2 @ I gather that he appears there from time to time 20 M. Rushmore, and I think Judge Delaney was

pal on isolated cases; is that -- 21 given the powdered wig and subsequently
2 A That's correct. 22 presented it to Judge Fuller as a thinking cep.
23 Q@ But he's not on the regular rotation there? 23 1 think he called it Judge Fuller's thinking

M A Right. 24 cap, and as such, it was worn around.

%5 Q  And that's due to the problems he's had with the 25 0 And did there came a time recently when
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1 Judge Fuller put a picture of a mumber of pecple 1 believe, they were put up.
2 in powdered wigs on his bench? 2 Q  Ckay. Mr. Frattenmeker, did Judge Fuller ever
38 Yes, 3 contact you in connection with the judicial
& @  Did I ask you to take photographs of that? ¢ election?
5 &  Yes, 5 Yes, he did.
6 @  And you did? 6 vhat did he ask you or say to you?
7 A I did. 7 MR. WICHOLSON: You know, at some point,
8 {Exhibits F and G were 8 Chaimmen Palmer, I mean, it's kind of been going
9 marked for identification.) 9 this way all morning. There's things that are
10 MR, PAIMER: Before vou pass those out, 10 ooming out that have never been pied and given
1 Mike, let's let these quys look at them, see if 11 us notice about. I mean, I understand that we
12 they have any obiection. 12 were — ve're entitled to know same of this
13 MR, HIEB: I've got no objection. 13 before the hearing, T would think,
14 MR, NICHOLSON: Mo, X ¥R, SCHRFFER: Mr. Micholsen did interview
15 MR, PRIMER: What Exhibits are those? 15 Mr, Krattenmaker and was told about this last
16 MR. SCHAFFER: It'll be F and G. 16 week.,
17 MR. NICHOLSON: There's more than one 17 MR. NICHOLSON: I was not told -- he told me
18 picture? I just have one. 18 he did not want to discuss anything about the
19 MR, HIEB: The second cne is laying right 19 Judicial election in my interview with him.
20 there. 20 MR, PAIMER: Well, just so we get our record
21 MR, SCHAFFER: F ig the picture of the 21 clear. Nurber one, I think that
22 entire courtroom and G is the picture of the 2 Mr. Krattermaker has the ability to talk to you
23 picture. 23 if he wants to or not talk to you if he doesn't
24 MR, PAIMER: If there are no objections, F 2 want to. I understand that this may not have
25 and G will be received. 25 been part of Dave Nelson's imterview, although I
61 63
10 (BY MR, SCHAFFER:) For the benefit of the 1 think there was some reference to that in Dave
2 Commission, Exhibit F is a picture of his 2 Nelson's materials, if I'm not mistaken. But
3 courtroom from — locking from the back? 3 I'm going to go shead and allow you to proceed.
4 A Right. s the public would enter the courtroom 49 {BY MR. SCHAFFER:) Ckay. Mr. Krattermeker,
5 from the rear, this would be a picture facing 5 what did Judge Fuller say to you in conmection
5 the bench. 6 with the election?
7Q Bnd the pictures of the Mative Zmericans on the 74 1 quess there were a couple things that come to
8 left would be the Indian portraits that he 8 mind. First of all, there was somewhat of an
9 referred to? 9 expectation that the court staff would serve as
10 A Right. 19 a carpaign staff to Judge Fuller during the
11 9  And the picture on the bench, is Exhibit G a 11 oourse of the election.
12 blow-wp of that? 12 Secondly, there was some concern of the fact
13 A Yes. That is correct. 13 that petitions needed to be circulated, and I
14 MR. SCHAFFER: We'd offer Exhibits F and G. 14 believe his court reporter circolated pefitions
15 MR. NICHOLSON: 1 have ne objection. 15 in his behalf.
16 MR, PAIMER: F and G are received. 16 Tnirdly, there was kind of a haliway
17 Q {BY ¥R. SCHAFFER:) And for the benefit of the 17 fundraising, and I was originally somewhat
18 Coemdssion, when did this picture of these 18 flattered when T was asked to give $1,000 to the
19 individuals with their powdered wigs go on the 19 campaign. But T had to go back to the personnel
2 bendh? 0 ~ policies which said I wish T could, but I can't
721 & Best I can determine, it was the week of pal because the WS personnel policies are specific
22 Septerber 20th. There was a judicial conference 22 about the involvenent of court staff in
23 in Chamberlzin and a court administraters 23 circulation of petitions, campaign and
2 meeting also in Chamberlain, so somewhere the 24 fuvdraising activities,
25 week of September 20th through the 24th, I 25 @  Did Judge Fuller solicit a contribution frem
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terms of questions that were asked.

i you? 1
2 A He asked if I would like to give him $1,000. 2 0  And im't it tzve that this — the other
3 Q  And youwr response was what? 3 picture, Exhibit F, where we see a row of
4 A Iwish I could, bat T can't. 4 pichmes that have Native Mmericans to the Jeft
5 Q  And his response was? 5 of the hench, do you see that?
6 B Somewhat of sheck, I guess. ¢ Ido.
7 0  And you were prohibited under the rules — 7 ¢  Are those the pictures you referred to when you
8 A Yes. 8 said, That's where I hang my Indizns?
9 Q  --weren't you? 3 A That is correct.
10 & Yes, most definitely. 16 Q  2nd isn't it true that behind at least one of
11 MR. SCHAFFER: That's all the questions I 11 those pictures is part of the audio visual
12 have. 12 equipment for the courtroom?
13 CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. NICHOLSON: 13 A Right.
14 Q M. Rrattermaker, how did Mr. Schaffer become 14 Q@  So that picture has to come down and be put back
15 aware, or how did he get this picture, 15 up again?
16 Bxhibit G, which is the closeup of the judges 1§ & They do.
11 in the wigs? 17 @  Ckay. Now, Mr. Thompson — excuse me,
18 & Thad it and I gave it to him. 18 Mr. Krattermaker, are you familiar with the
19 @  Vhy did you think that was something that you 19 CourtSmart system?
20 should give to him? 0 A I am.
21 & Ihad it and I gave it to him. I'm not sure. 21 ¢ And vhat is it?
22 Q@ Vere you seeking ways to try to find negative 22 & It's an electronic recording system.
23 aspects to Jude Fuller? 23 Q  How does it work?
24 A Mo, I quessIwas just trying to portray what 24 & There's a central operator and there are cameras
25 the courtroom itself looked like. 25 and recording devices in three courtrocms.
85 67
1 Q0  Then I interviewed you, you were very guarded 1 Q Is there one in Judge Fuller's courtroon?
2 ard didn't want to tatk to me, did you? 2 A ‘There has been.
3A HNo. 39 Ird that — they are in all the magistrate
4 @ And you referred to - when I asked you 4 cortrooms; right?
5 questions, you referred to Mr. Schaffer as your 5 & Un-huh,
§ lawyer, didn't you? § ¢  Ind Judge Fuller's courtroom used to be a
734 Yes. 7 magistrate courtroom; corvect?
8 Q0 Do you view him as your lawyer representing you 8 R That's correct.
9 in this? 9 Q Ckay. And is there audio and video on the
10 A Yo, I really don't. In retrospect, I should 16 CourtSmart system?
11 have browght my own in. But in this case, I see 11 A  Only audio.
12 he is a lawyer for the Commissicn. 12 ¢ Bnd so any comments made during the day by
13 ¢ vhy did you feel you needed your own lawyer? 13 anyone in the courtroom would be picked wp on
14 B Because I'mnot quite sure what's going to occur 14 the CortSrert systen?
15 today. 15 A Correct.
16 0 Isee. Soyoufeel you have a position in this 15 Q  And who turns that on and off?
17 that you're going fo take or you're fxying to 17 A It's always on.
18 take? 18 Q  Ckay. Who has the capebility of turning it off?
19 & No. I'monly responding to the questions asked. 19 A I don't think we have that capability under the
20 @ It vas apparent to me, Mr. Krattemmskex, and 20 new system.
21 would you agree with me, when I interviewed you 21 ¢ Ckay, What do you mean by the new systea?
22 that you had an ax to grind, you were trying to 2 There was & former?
vk look for things that you could find negative 23 & There have besn two or three different versions
24 about Judge Fuller? 24 of that software. The new software has an
25 & Moo Iwas trying to be objective, I guess, in 25 antomatic backup fail-safe so that it's on at
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all times.

Q  nd there's not a techmician that operates it?

A There is a technician that cperates it.

Q  Ckay. Does it get — so it's not turmed off at
night when the courtroom is not being used?

A I think scmewhere between 8:00 and 6:00, it does
go into an Off mode, but there's a default
setting so that it's always running during the
courge of the day.

Q I see. And that, of course, has to be
programmed in by the tedmician?

A No. It's actvally programmed in by the
CourtSmatt people and cur technical staff cut of
Blerre. It's a very sophisticated system.

MR, NICHCLSON: I have no other questions.

ECMINATION BY MR, DRAVEIAND:

Q M. Keattermaker, in the Seventh Circuit, in the
courtrooms that judges are assigned, are judges
able to decorate or put up any pictures that
they feel they want to have in their courtroon?
Do you have any rules, I quess, or regulations
in the Seventh Circuit concerning the courtroom
itself and what is kept or housed there by the
Judges?

B We have no specific rules and we've had no
specific problems before,

0  I'mjust going to ask your opimion. In your
epinion, are the pictures that are shown here on
these pictures appropriate for the decormm of 2
courtroom in the Seventh Circuit?

16 MR. PAIMFR: Did that prompt anything from 16 & 1 have concern about the one that was mounfed on
17 you, Mr. Schaffer? 17 the face of the bench. In my career I've never
18 REDIRECT WAMINATICN BY MR, SCHAFFER: 18 seen a picture mounted on the face of the bench,
19 @ I just have a question. I think the question 18 ard this one just struck me as particularly odd.
20 Mr. Nicholson asked you when he interviewed you 20 MR. DRAVELAND: Thank you.
21 last week was how you handled yourself around 21 MR. PAIMER: Any other questions?
22 Judge Fuller, and I think you said you were 22 Mr, Nicholsen?
23 quarded. Do you remember that? 33 RECROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. NICHOLSON:
A Ido 24 Q  What coes that pictire, Exhihit G, depict to
25 Q  Ckay. The coment in comection with being 25 you, Mr. Rrattenmaker?
69 71
1 guarded was in connection with how you handled 1 A Chviously, it depicts an English courtroom with
2 yourself around Judge Fuller -- 2 powdered wigs.
3 A Uh-huh. 3 Q I the powdered wigs are what you find
{9 — correct? 4 offensive?
5 &  Corract. 5 A I just find the whole picture to be somewhat
6 MR, SCHAFFER; Okay. That's all. ] offensive. I'm not quite sure why it was
7 MR, PAIMER: Bnybody on the Commission? 7 actually posted on the face of the bench.
8 Dick. 8 Q@  Did you get complaints about it?
9 EXMMINATION BY MR. TRAVIS: 9 A No, I don't believe T did at the time.
10 @  Just for clarification and meke sure the record 10 9  Onoe agmin, this picture was given te
1 is clear, F and G, Exhibits F and G were taken n Mr. Schaffer at your own voliticm, not because
12 Septenber of 20107 12 he asked for it?
13 & They were. I believe they were taken after the 13 & That is correct.
14 judicial conference, which occurred the 23rd and 14 MR. NICHOLSOW: No further guestions.
15 the 24th. My recollection is they were taken 15 EOMINATION BY JUDGE WILBUR:
16 the first part of the following week, probably 16 @ This is a stupid guestion, but how is the
17 on the 29th, 17 picture attached to the bench? Is there, I
18 Q  September — week of September 29th? 18 mean —
19 A Week of September 27th. 19 A There is a nail that's driven into the rail at
2 Q  Of 20107 20 the top of the bench normally where bench
21 A Right. 21 conferences are had. So there's a tack driven
22 MR, PRIMER: ©Ch, I'm sorry, Tom. 22 into the —
23 MR. DRAVEIAND: Cris, ves. 230 Tack or nail?
24 ME. PALMER: Please. I'm sorry. 24 B Somewhere between the two, I1t's a fastener
B M 25 sufficient to hold the size of the artwork but
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1 it's driven into the top of the bench. 1 that what you are asking is my first kind of

2 MR. PAIMER: Anvhody, anything else? 2 personal encounter with Judge Fuller.

3 {No further questions were presented.) 3 There's a sally port that goes in belwesn

4 MR. PAIMER: Thank you, Mr. Krattermsker, 4 the state's aitorney's office where I work and

5 You are released from your subpoena, also. 5 the jail. They are intercermected buildings and
6 (Witness left the room.) 6 there's an underground kind of parking garage

1 LARA ROETZEL, 7 where we have to walk to get to the courthouse,

8 called as a witness herein, having been first duly 8 ard all of the judges park underneath there,

Y eworn, was examined and testified as follows: 9 S0 I was walking from my building into the
10 DIRECT EXAMINATICN BY MR. SCHAFTER: 10 courthouse and T encountered Judge Fuller. I

11 @  Would you please state your name for the record 1 think he was smoking at the time, but he was -
12 and spell your name, 12 a lot of people go down in that sally port area
13 A VYes. My name is lara Roetzel, I-A-R-A, Roetzel, 13 because it's sewi-outdoor to smoke.

it R-O-E-T-Z-E-L. 14 Fe had a very unusual vehicle, It's an

15 Q  Where do you live, Ms. Rostzel? 15 old-scheel Volkswagen Bug, like a '60s kind of
16 B T live here in Rapid City. 16 Volkswagen Bug. Orange, very unique looking.

17 Tell the Commission what your title and what 17 Ind it had a unique license plate, one of those
18 your duties are. 18 vanity plates.

19 & Ckay. I'm the chief deputy prosecutor for 19 And Judge Fuller was standing there, so I

20 Pennington County. Glenn Brenrer is the elected 20 asked him, I said, What, I don't get it, what
21 state's attomey, so I'mhis first assistant. I 21 doss your vanity plate mean? It spelled,
22 supervise 11 other attorneys in the office and 22 P-R--B, and I think it wes, C-0 Z. It sald,
23 also handle some felony prosecution cases of my 23 PROBOCE. He said, Well, it stands for probable
A Chill. 24 cause. et the sons-of-bitches remember that

25 Q  How long have you held that position? 25 when they pull me over.
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1 & Bs chief deputy? 1 2nd it just, I was so taken aback and s0
29  Yes. 2 struck by that kind of anti-law enforcement

3 A I've been chief deputy most recently for 3 stance, that he was calling law enforcement

4 spproximately two years, but T held that 4 song-of-bitches, and let them remember that when
5 position previously for about another 5 they have the nerve to pull him over.

3 three years. I've been & prosecutor for about 6 Ms. Reetzel, are you sbsolutely certain those

7 fourteen years. 1 are the words that he used?

8 @  Tell the Comission a little hit about your 8 I'm 100 percent certain those are the words that
9 legal education and your employment history. 9 he used.

10 A Al right. So I went to the University of 10 What time frame are we talking about?

i Nebraska-Lincolr for college and then 1 It was very sarly — it would have been right

12 Creighton University for law school. I —my 12 after he becare a judge. So, 2004, 2003,
13 first emplovment was with the Pernington County 13 Ms, Rostzel, describe for the Commission his

il State's Attorney's Office. That was in 1996, I 14 demeanor in court when you've been in front of
15 have worked there pretty much ever since. 15 him,

16 I left in 2001, Okay, frcm 1896 to 2001, I 16 T just never got the impression that
iy Was at the state's attorney's office. Then I iy Judge Fuller took being a judge seriously. As a
18 was in private practice with Deb Watson for 18 meber of the bar, as a lawyer, T take that —- 1
19 three years, two and a half years, three years. 19 treat that role with such tremendous respect and
il Then I went back to the state's attomey's 20 I never got the impression that he felt that
1 office, where T've been ever since. 21 way.
22 @  Tell the Commission your first encounter with 22 He was very anti-law enforcement, very
23 Judge Foller. 23 belittling, rude, condescending in his approach
2% A Well, my first -~ my very first encomter with 2 to the State. Tt seemed like he was different,
25 him was probably in the courtroom, but T believe 25 acted differently towards the defendant than he
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1 did to the State. 1 anymore, I mean, he — he doesn't even hear
2 Bat as for how he related to me 2 vhat I say. He does not want to hear what I
3 particuiarly, most of the time he just ignored 3 say, he doesn't hear what T say.
4 me. I mean, virtually ignored me. If I wanted 1 The other example I would give is
5 o0 be heard in his courtroom, I would have to 5 Roxie Erickson, because she had the juvenile
6 assert myself, Your Honor, the State would like 3 docket. So she was back in front of him for
T 0 be heard. And then it was with disdain. You 7 axtensive periods of time. And I remember cne
8 know, he'd kind of rcll his eyes and look at me 8 really long, full day, and she was on the verge
9 like, Go zhead. The impression being, Mot that ] of tears when she came back.
10 anything you say is golng to matter, but all 0 And Glenn's appreach through the whole thing
1 right, qo chead. He was very condescending 11 was and, well, has always been, You make your
12 towards me. 12 own independent decision about whether you're
13 ¢ M. Roetzel, you actually ran agminst 13 qoing to recuse a judge. I'mnot doing any kind
it Judge Fuller in 2006, didn't you? 14 of blanket recusal, I'm not telling anybody what
15 & 1did. 15 b to. This needs to be your personal decision
16 @  2And vhy was that? 16 and I'm giving you the authority to make that
17 A Well, I ran against him because I did not think 17 personal decision.
18 he was a good judge. I thought he was 18 ut with Roxie, he finally had to say, o,
19 anti-law enforcement, I thought — I got the 19 I'm making this decision for you, you can't go
20 impression he did not like women, I thought that 20 back here. Because her actual health was
21 his service was a disservice to the judiciary. n affected. She was a wreck. He told her she
22 Bnd of course, there were other factors as 22 couldn't go back there.
23 well. He wasn't from our circuit, and he was 23 Let me ask you about a particular incident
24 the newsst judge, so those things played inte 2 imvolving a juvenile proceeding that
25 account, too. But I wouldn't have mm against 25 Ms. Erickson handled that you also were involved
77 79
1 any other judge. I chose kim for a reason, 1 in vhere Judge Fuller crdered witnesses to be
2 because I ~- honestly, I thought I codddo a 2 polygraphed, Would you please tell the
3 better job than he did, 3 Conmission about that.
§ Q  Ms, Rostzel, the Commission knows Glenn Brermer, 4 Yeah. And that was during the same time frame,
5 the state's attorney, filed the initial 5 very recently, I believe, after Judge Fuller
6 coeplaint in this case. Can you tell the 3 would have been served with the paperwork that
7 Commission after that what the state's 7 has to do with this procesding. ALl right.
8 attorney's office's practice was with respect to 8 So what happened was, Roxie came back from
9 recusing or filing affidavits on Judge Fuller? 8 oourt, she was hysterical. I mean, she was
10 & Well, recusing a judge is sowething that 10 literally — she was crying, and she said that
i1 everyone takes very, very seriously. So even 11 she'd a juvenile rape adjudication. That's like
12 after we filed the complaint, it was our hope 12 atrial. In juvenile court, it's called an
1 that ve could still bring cases in front of him. 13 adjudication,
14 And we tried to for a period of time, 1 It was a young girl, like 13 or 14 years
15 But it got to the point where we could not 15 old, hed been the victim of a young man, like 16
16 have a fair hearing in front of that judge, and 16 or 17 years old, a rape case. And she had the
17 quite frankly, we couldn't send our peuple over 17 adjudication, she put on all of the testinony,
18 there anymore, they would come back so upset. 18 and at the conclusion of the testimony, Judge
19 I remenber Tony Bolson coming back, I think 19 Ailler had ordered that both of the parties, the
20 he had the first court appearance after Judge 20 victim and the defendant, both juveniles be
21 vas served with his, whatever paperwork he was 21 polygraphed to figure out which one of them were
2 served with, after we suspected that had 22 lying.
23 happened, 23 She was very, very upset about the idea
24 He had that next docket day, and he care 2 of — we don't polygraph rape victims, we don't
P back, he said, T don't think I can go back there 25 polygraph children. So this was a very bizarre
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combination. Now we're going to polygraph

i 1 new, improved person and thinking sbout whether
z children and also alleged rape victims. Se 2 whatever happens today, whether I'd bring cases
3 Roxie was very, very upset. 3 in front of him.

i There was a date set where Roxde Erickson 4 #nd s6 I remembered back to this day, and I
5 and Cathy Mattson, who was the defense attorney, 5 can't give you the time frame, but I'm sure some
6 were supposed to go back in front of Judge 6 of you will remember, the Supreme Court

7 Fuller and have their respective juveniles with 7 ordered — didn"t order, but offered the

8 them to talk about this polygraph that was going g opportunity for judges to participste in a

9 to happen. That was the next stage of the 9 survey experience where members of the bar, we
10 proceeding, 10 got questionnaires. I think it would have been,
11 So I went over there. Well, we waited in 11 1ike, 2006, T want to say, 2007.

12 the courtroom for just a couple of minutes, then 12 But we were invited fo fill these cut and
13 Roxie stepped out. I don't know why, but she 13 critique the judges, and I think the judges had
u wasn't in the courtroom. It was just me at the 1¢ the opportunity of whether they want to

15 prosecution table, Cathy Mattson at the defense 15 participate or not. I don't know how it worked
16 table, and we waited for Judgs Fuller to enter. 16 on that end.

1 He came in the room through the side door, 17 So some of us filled out these surveys, I
18 not up on the bench, just through the side door. 18 happened to be in Jdge Fuller's chambers. It
18 He stopped and he just stared at Cathy Mattson. 19 would have been on a case or something, I

20 He said, Where is your client? He's not here, 20 wouldn't have been up there for any other

21 Your Honor. He's not coming. 2 reason. I was sitting there having a
22 He still has yet to even look at me, but 22 conversation him about whatever we were talking
23 this was typical. I mean, he would not ever 23 about, and T couldn't help but notice there was
pl lock at me or really address me in court. But I 2 one of these surveys taped to his wall, like
25 kind of piped up and, Your Honor, the victim is 25 right next to — right on his vall next to his
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1 not coming, either. 1 door.

2 And Judge Fuller, again directing his 2 and I was very distracted by it because I

3 comments to Cathy Mattson, sald, Do you expect 3 recognized the handwriting. I knew who had

{ me to make & decision in this case based on the 9 written it. I lmew this woman that had written
5 evidence presented at trial? Yesh, that's —- 5 it. And so I think that he caught my eyes as [
b that's what a judge is supposed to db. b was distracted, looking over at it.

7 So Cathy Mattson said, Yes, Your Honor. And 7 End T don't remenber what he said exactly.
8 I piped in, even though no one was talking te B AL I remember is the tene of the —- of his

9 me. Yes, Your Honor, that's what our 9 response, which was that it was very funny. He
10 expectation is. 10 thought it was very, very fumny. Just thought
11 And he became so upset, he was red, he was i1 it was —— I don't know how to describe, Jjust the
12 trembling, he had tears in his eyes, and he just 12 impression 1" got was that it wes ridiculous to
13 through gritted teeth said, That is very unfair. 13 think that anybody could criticize a judge and
u And then T was livid at that point, so I piped 1 that thet would matter in any way.
15 up, Mo, what's unfair is that you want to 15 My point being, I did nct get the impression
16 polygraph a 13-year-old rape victim. 16 at all that he locked at that and thought, Wow,
17 And he went (Witness gestured) and walked iy semeone is critical of the job I'm going to <o,
bt out of the courtroom, That's the last 18 s0 I'm going to change and I'm going to be

19 interaction I've had with him. 19 better for having had that criticism. It wes
20 Have you had occasion to cbserve Judge Fuller in 20 quite the contrary. He thought it was 2 joke.
21 connection with a judicial evalvation form? 21 MR. SCHRFFER: That's all.
22 I had kind of forgotten about i, bt yes, I 22 CROSS-EXAMINATICON BY MR. HIEB:
23 absolutely do. 1 was thinking about this whole 23 ¢ Ms. Rostzel, let's go back to that, the last
24 proceeding and this whole idea of whether 24 thing you were talking about, the evaluation
75 Judge Fuller could change and come back this 75 forn.. That was a voluntary evaluation judges
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oould either agree to be evaluated or not;

" are a nmber of things that were attributed to

1 1

2 corvect? 2 you, statements attributed to you in the report.
3 & I think that is the case. 3 Bave you had a chance to see the statements that
19 Gy ¢ M. Melson attributed to you in his report?

5 B My understanding of it was that every attorney 5 A T have seen a portion of that, I belleve.

6 got different ones. Judges could woluntarily 6 Q  When you say a portion of it, what portion did
7 participate if they wented, and then each 7 wu ses?

8 attorney — not all of us got every judge to 8 A Well, I don't know what there is to see, but I

4 critique. Each attorney just got a couple 9 know that Attorney Schaffer gave me a amall
10 judges to critique. That's my understanding of 10 narrative that I understood to be a summry. 1
11 it. 11 don't ¥now if it was the totality of the report.
12 0 Right. The judges could say, I don't went to be 12 Q0 % it was all of the statements attributed to
13 evaluated, I don't care what pecple think, I'm 13 you?
14 going to do what I do and I den't want to kmow. 14 MR. HIEB: Is that correct, Mike?
15 A Yeah. 15 MR. SCHAFFER: Yes. Yes.
16 Q Or they could say, Yeah, I want some fesdhack; 16 Q {BY MR. HIFB:} I don't — so --
17 right? 17 & Tt was about this long.
i A That's my understanding. 18 @  So you've seen the part of the report that
19 Q  And you said there was an evaluation form posted 19 relates to statements that you gawe?
20 where? 20 & I think so.
213 On the wall. It was posted on the wall in his 71 ¢ Ckay.
22 charbers, So, like, my recollection is that 22 A I'm not entirely sure.
23 wnen you walk into his chambers, it would be, 23 ¢ All right. Well, I'm trying to figure out how
24 like, kind of over by the door. 24 these statements were elicited. Did Mr. Nelson
25 ¢  Ckay, There was no name attached to that, it 25 come £o you and ask you about the persnalized
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1 WS anonymous; coxrect? 1 license plates or is that somsthing you brought
2 A It vas anonymous, but I knew who had written it. 2 wp to him? '

3 Q  Well, you didn't give any indication that you 3 A How were statements elicited? Well, T quess if
§ knew who wrote it, did you? 4 you're asking what my conversation with

5 A Ebsolutely not. 5 Dave Nelson was like, it was kind of an

£ Q  Youdon't have any knowledge that he knew who 6 open-ended, free-Flowing conversation. I talked
7 wrote it, did you? T sheut Lots of things and certainly not all of

8 A o 8 them are in the report that I think you've seen.
9 Q  Ckay. And in fact, that was the same time frame 3 @  Iet's talk specifically about the License
il in which you were running against him; correct? 10 plates. Did Dave Melsen come to you and say,
1 20067 1 What do you know about these license plates, or
12 3 Quite possibly, yes. 12 did you, in the context of being interviewed by
13 @ Youmentioned the fact that you ran against him 13 him, say, There's ~~ he's got these license
i because you didn't think he did a good job, you 1 plates that I want to talk about?
15 thought he was anti-law enforcement, and you 15 & I think that it came up in the context, that
16 thought he didn't like women. Those were some 16 particular incident, we kind of started out
17 of the reasons that caused you to want to nm 17 talking about my general impressions, and I
18 against him; correct? 18 talked about that anti-law enforcement
19 A Yes. 19 perspective. And then he was asking me for
20 @  2nd the woters disagreed with you, didn't they? 20 exarples, and that's cne of the examples that I
21 A They did, yeah, they elected — 21 gave in support of my statement that it's my
22 @  He ended wp getting reslected, didn't he? 22 opinicn that he's anti-law enforcement.
23 A Yes, Judge Fuller won that election, 22 Q0 Do you know where the license plate came from,
2% Q  Bnd what I'm curious about, when you were 2 by chance?
25 interviewed by Dave Nelson in this matter, there 25 & Do T know where it came from?
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Was there a transcript prepared from that trial?

iQ  Yesh, 1Q
2 B T assume from the Department of Motor Vehicles. L2 3 Yes.
3 I don't know. 1 ¢  2nddo you have a copy of that?
4 Q Tell, do you know if Pete went out and bought 13 Yes.
5 that himself or where he got that from? 5 ¢  Doyouhave it with you?
6 A Mo, I con't know, 6 A T have it — not with me right now, but it's out
7@  Okay, And do you know anything sbout where the 7 in the hallway, ves.
8 van ~= I think that you've described the van for 8 ¢  Ckay. Was that provided to Mr. Schaffex?
9 the Commissien. But I think it's fair teo say 9 A  Yes.
HH that the van that Pete has been knowm to drive 10 Q Ckay. And I'm curicus, was there an cbjection
1 could be characterized as sort of & hippie van 11 made at that time or a motion for a mistrial oz
12 throwback, surfboard hanging on the side of it, 12 anything along those lines?
13 something you'd ses in a Cheech and Chong movie? 13 & Mot to my knowledge, no. Josh —— I dm't
14 A Yes. 14 believe that Josh Hendrickson made a moticn for
15 9  And you were trying to relate that to 15 a mistrial.
16 Mr. Nelsen, too, weren't you, that this is the 16 ¢  When you -- you indicate that Judge Fuller's
17 kind of van this guy drives and parks in the 17 anti-law enforcement, or I should say your words
18 courthouse; right? 18 were, Very anti-law enforcement. Did
1942 VYes, 13 Judge Fuller routinely rule against the State in
20 Q Bnd that — that the mature of that vehicle it cases where you thought the State should have —
21 itself is somewhat offensive to you, isn't it, 21 ke should have niled in the State's fawar?
2 for a judge to be driving that? 72 & Very -- yes, very often Judge Fuller ruled
23 A Yes. 23 against the State in cases where I believed he
24 Q@ Do you know anything about the history of that 24 should not have.
25 van? 25 ¢ Be gave sentences you didn't agree with;

8% 91
1A No. i correct?
2 @  Did you ever bother to ask him? 2 A Yes.
33 Mo 3 Q  That was some of the problems, some of the awes
4 Q  Did you care? 4 you have to grind with Judge Fuller, isn't it?
5 B Did I care about the history of the van? 5 & Tdon't have an ax to grind. I'm - but yes,
§Q  Yeah § those were same of the reasons that I did not
7TA Ko. M. 7 appreciate being in his courtroom.
8 Q  Soyou just mude the assumptions that you made 8 ¢  You've besn verbally cutspoken and critical of
9 based upon what you saw and based upon your 9 the -~ some of the sentences he's given, haven't
19 impressions of Judge Fuller? 10 you?
11 & Yes, and the statement regarding the license 11 A Yes.
12 piate, yes. 12 @ And in fact, you're familiar with
13 Q  There's another statement attributed to you in 13 Beidi Iinngren, aren't you?
U here that I found interesting. You indicate A Yes,
15 that you recall during a DUI jury trial that 15 ¢  And Heidi Linngren is in front of — or, was in
16 Judge Fuller referred on the record and in front 15 front of Judge Fuller quite frequently on
17 of the jury that the state's expert chemist was 17 criminal matters on behalf of the attorney
18 a hired whore or a State whore. 18 general's office; correct?
19 A Yes, 19 A Correct.
20 Q  Were you the prosecutor in that case? 20 Q  Would it sirprise you if Heidi Linngren had
21 & No. One of the attomeys that I supervise, 21 indicated that while some of Judge Fuller's
2 Josh Hendrickson, was prosecuting that case. 2 conduct she didn't appreciate, she never lost a
231 @ So you weren't present when that statement was 23 hearing on behalf of the Stabte in front of him?
24 made? 20 & That would surprise me.
25 A No, T was not. 25 ¢ Ckay. But you wouldn't have any evidence to the

S0

92




93-96

1 contrary, would you? 1 0 Do you recall heing outraged about sentencing in
2 Mo, I don't track - Heidi doesn't work for me, 2 the same time frame that you started having

3 she works in & different office, so I don't keep 3 affidavits flying out of your office with

4 track of her record in the courtrocm. 4 respect to Judge Fuller?

5 But you would agree with me, Ms. Roetzel, that 5 & Within the last couple months?

6 we're not here to build a case agminst 6 0 Yo, within the last six to eight months.

7 Judge Fuller which relates to his sentencing or T A No. Idon"t. I'msorry, T don't remember — I
8 vhat he does as a judge; correct? § haven't brought any — I haven't brought any of
9 Yes, I understand that. 9 my cases in front of Judge Futler for a long

10 So then what's the point of bringing all that 10 tine because he's had such a grudge against me
1 wp? 11 because of rumning ageinst him. So I would have
12 The point of bringing all what up? 12 never brought a repe case in front of

13 A1l the things that you've brought up about how 13 Jidge Fuller within the last probably

14 you don't appreciate him and you think he's 14 five years.

15 anti-law enforcerent and the things that don't 15 But it's certainly possible that there was a
16 really relate to conduct. 16 sentence that one of the attorneys in my office
1 Tt was never my intention to discuss his rulings 17 received that I wasn't happy about, but I do not
18 and sentences and findings in court. When we 18 recall being quoted in the media or verbally
19 did the caplaint, when Glenn Bremner sat down 19 outspoken about any rape sentence in the last
20 and drafted that, we understood very well that 20 six to elght menths.
21 the reason we were doing it had to do with 21 @  I'mnot talking about you being quoted in the
32 demeanor, courtroom demeanor. 22 media. I'm talking about you expressing
23 50 if some of that has gotten mixed in there 23 displeasure with sentencing. And I didn't say
24 and confused the issue, it certainly was not my 24 it was your case, I'm saying a case comityg out
25 intention. T absclutely understand that the 25 of your office.
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1 reason we are here has to do with courtroom 12 I don't remember that. I'm sorry.

2 demeanor and conduct. 2 MR. FIFB; Okay. I have got no further

3 But you will admit that during the same time 3 questions.

4 frame, you were verbally or wocally outspoken 1 MR. PAIMER: Mr. Schaffer, does that prompt
5 about some of the sentences he handed down, 5 any from you?

6 weren't your? 6 MR. SCHAFFER: Yes, 1 have a couple.

1 I can't think of a specific example, but ves. 7 BEDIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. SCHAFTER:

8 How about a rape sentence that you were offended 8 @  2nd I'mjust looking at Mr. Nelsen's report

g by, do you remesber that one? 9 relating to the incident involving the State's
10 I think that there have been a couple, but I 10 expert chemist. Do you recall that?
1 don't remember cne in particular. 11 A Yes. Dr. Looyenga.
12 You remenber talking about those, don't you, and 12 Q  And you were not present during that frial?
13 being a -- being outraged that Judge Fuller 13 A Mo, Iwas not present during that trial. It was
14 would sentence in that fashion? 1 something that Josh Hendrickson reported back to
15 Yes. But again, I understand that's not why 15 me as his superviscr.
16 we're here, 16 MR. SCHAFFER: And I'm going to mark, I
17 But it's in the same tine frame as the 17 don't have an extra copy of it, but I'm going to
18 affidavits started flying, isn't it? 18 mark the original transcript of that hearing and
15 I don't think so. What rape case ave you 19 make it part of the record.
20 talking about? 20 MR. HIEB: Well, oould T see it before —
21 I don't know the name specifically, but you 21 MR, PAIMER: Sure.
2 evidently referenced it to the point where the 2 MR. HIEB: Thank you.
23 attorney general of South Dakota heard about it. 23 MR. PARMER: Why don't you have Jacoue mark
24 Do you recall it? 24 it first.
23 No. I don't. 25 MR, HIFB: 1Is there a page, Mike, you want
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1 o refer to? _ 1 about the report that I raised previously with
2 MR, SCHEFFER: Mo, I want the whole thing. 2 the Committee, and this is before you were heve,
3 MR. HIEB: Okay, But I mean, is -~ 3 This report was prepared by Dave Nelson,
4 MR. SCHAFFER: All right. 4 ind as I wderstand it, the way Mr. Nelson would
5 MR, HIEB: I'Ll let you mark it — 5 have done this is, he would have prepared this
3 MR. SCHAFFER: I mean, you want to read the 3 and probably telked to you after he prepared it
7 whole thing —- 1 to confim that what he was telling the
8 MR. RIEB: I just want to know if -- 8 Commission was consistent with what you told
9 MR. PAIMER: Hey, hey, hey, quys. Hang on. 4 him, Did thet happen in your case?
10 MR. HIEB: I'm sorry. 10 2 No. Dave Nelson — I had a conversation with
11 MR. PAIMER: Let's mark the transcript and 11 Dave Nelson and then he generated a report,
12 give Jacque a break so she can mark the 12 wiich I have seen at least part of through
13 transcript. 13 Mr. Schaffer.
14 (Exhibit K was marked for identification.) 4 Q Yo, you are msuderstanding my question. I
15 MR. PAIMER: Now, what — the transcript is 15 believe what Mr, Nelson's practice was with the
16 marked H. And what is that a transcript of, 16 rest of the witnesses that he interviewed was to
b¥] Mr. Schaffer? 17 call them back on the phone and say, Here is
18 MR. SCHAFFER: That's a transcript of a jury 18 what I'm going to write with respect to what you
19 trial, partial transcript of a jury trial, State 19 told me, is that -- does this sound corvect.
20 of South Dekota versus Redd Star Fox Hormn dated 30 & I-don't specifically recall if he did that or
21 Ruogust 31, 2009. It's a transcript I think of 1 not. I don't remember him calling me up ad
22 the testimony of Dr. Iooyenga. I'm interding to 2 going through it with me.
23 ask her a few questicns about it. 22 ¢ (Ckay.
M Q (BY MR. SCHAFFER:} I gave you a copy of that to 24 A That might have happened, bt I don't rementer.
25 review, did I not? 25 @ Well, and that's =~ I can tell you from talking
97 a9
12 VYoudid 1 to same of the other witnesses, that was his
2 Q@ BAnd there's no reference = in fairness to 2 practice with them to make sure that what he
3 Judge Fuller, there's no reference in that 3 gave this body was accurate. You den't know,
4 transcript to him referring to Dr. Looyenga as 4 you can't recall having a phone conversation
5 3, quote, hired whore or State whore, is there? 5 with Mr. Nelson?
6 A  MNo. Hedid not use that word, I believe that 6 &  Mo. But I'mnot saying that I didn't.
7 the section that Josh Hendrickson was upset 7Q  Chay.
8 ahbout was —- would be starting en page 29, which 8 A  That's possible.
9 happened outside of the presence of the jury, 3 @ Ad you saw the report from Mr. Schaffer;
10 and where Judge Fuller is very, very critical 10 correct?
1 and angry regarding Dr. Looyengs, and that's 1A I'm nervous because mine didn't look like that.
12 what the transcript reflects, but he — 12 MR. SCHAFFER: No. Mo, T'm going to
i3 @ It was not in the presence of the jury? 13 cbject. She'd never seen the report, All she
14 A It was not in the presence of the jury. That 14 saw vas the portion of the report that relates
15 was my misunderstanding from talking with 15 to what was credited to her.
16 Mr. Hendrickson. %0 (BY MR. HIEB:) Sure, that's fair, You saw the
17 Q  Chay. 11 portions of the report, and I'm -— I've known
18 & But that's certainly the gist of what he's 18 Mr. Schaffer a long time, and if he tells me
13 saying. 19 what he showed you is what's here, I helieve
20 MR, HIEB: Can I follow up? piH that.
21 MR. PRIMER: Please, 21 A Ckay.
22 RECROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR, HIZB: 22 Q  The portion relating to what you told
23 Q0 %o in other words, Ms, Roetzel, what you're 23 Mr. Nelson, you saw?
X telling us is — I want to go back now to this 24 A Idid, yes. That's —
5 report. And this is the concern that I have 25 Q  Zod did you —
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—what T got. I did.
And at that point, did you tell Mr. Schaffar,
You know, it says here that I specifically told
Dave Melson that Judge Fuller called a State
chemist on the record in the presence of the
jury a hired whore or a State where.  You know,
Mr. Schaffer, that's wrong. Did you tell him
that?
Yes.
How care that didn't come out on direct before I
brought it w? You would want that clarified,
wouldn't you?

MR, SCHAFFFR: T'm going to object; it's
argumentative, Your Honor.

MR, PAIMFR: It is argumentative,
T don't understand the question.
{BY ¥R. HIEB:} Iet me do it this way. Are you
here to try to by Judge Fuller as deep as you
can bury him, or are you here to try to give
cbjective evidence to this body so that a
decision can be made regarding discipline?
I don't have any control over the outcome of
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A That' was my understanding of what Josh -~ ses, T
sipervise all these éttomeys, so & lot of
vhat's in that report is things that my
attorneys have reported back to me. That's all
it was.

Q You don't know whether a lot of the things in
this report are even accuzate, do you?

A I'mmot — T don't think that's a fair question.

Q This cne wasn't, was it?

2 Iwas relating back what Josh Fendrickson had
said to me.

MR. HIEB: I've got no further questions.

FURTHER REDIRECT EXEMINATION BY MR. SCHAFFER:

Q . Rostzel, I brought this up to you vhen I

visited with you. T actually got a copy of the

transcript, I gave it to you to lock at --

Yes.

— to confimm that it didn't happen.

Right.

Ird there were ~ and the Comission can lock at

what he actually said and judge for themselves.

A Bqactly.

L=l o R

23 this hearing and I have no intention of burying 23 MR, SCHAFFER: That's all.
24 Judge Fuller. I'm offended that he would bl MR. PAIMER: Does that prompt any questions
25 insinuate that's what I'm cdoing. I don't want 25 from anyone on the Comwlssion?
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1 to be here. None of us want to be here. I got 1 MR. McBRIDE: Was that offered?
2 a subpeena and that's why I'm here and I'm 2 MR, PAIMER: We've marked the transcript H,
3 telling you what I know. 3 Are you offering H?
] Ms. Roetzel, as an officer of the cowrt, you 4 MR, SCHREFFER: Yes, I'd offer H.
5 would agree with me, because when I read this 5 ¥R. HIEB: Mo chjection.
3 and T locked at it where you said point blank 6 MR. PMMER: Okay. H will be recejved.
7 Judge Fuller called an expert witness in the 7 Thank you very much for your time. You're
8 presence of the jury on the record a hired whore 8 released from your subpoena.
9 or a State whore, that's about as demning a 9 (Witness left the room.]
10 coment as you made in here. Would you agree 10 MR, SCHAFFER: Call Glemn Bremner.
11 with that, as an attorney? 1 GLENN BRENNER,
12 It's one of the things that T brought up, yes, 12 called a5 a witness herein, having been first duly
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but I don't consider it daming or the most
damning,
Ard it didn't happen, did it?
1 was relaying a conversation that
Josh Hendrickson told me ahout. We looked into
it further and the facts are what they are.
And it didn't happen, did it?
Josh Hendrickson told me that Judge Fuller
called Dr. Locyenga a hired whore, so that's
what I reported.
But you reported it happened on the record in
the presence of the jury, and we now know that
didn't happen, did it?
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sworn, was examined and testified as follows:

DIRRCT EXAMIMATION BY MR. SCHAFFER:

Q  Would you please state your name for the record
and spell your name.

A Yes, Glenn Bremner. G-I-E-4-N, B-R-E-N-N-E-R.

Ard your position is what, Mc. Bremner?

A I'mthe State's Attomey hers in Pennington
County.

Q  And how long have you held that position?

& T was elected in 1996 and took office in 1997,
Jamoary of 1997.

Q@  &nd you're here pursuant to a subpoena; is that
correct?

L]
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1 A That is correct. 1 stories about extracurricular coments.

2 ¢ 2ndtell us a little bit about your background 2 T can't recall specifically a lot of the

3 in the law, your education and where you've 3 ouments, but there were cowents that were made
4 worked, 4 to give me the impression that there wes a

5 A Ckay. I graduated from the University of 5 philosophical helief by this particular judge

6 South Dakofa in 1992, and my last semester T did 6 that he wasn't able to leave at the door of the
7 a clinical program with the state's attomey's 7 courtrocm, that he was bringing in with him, and
8 office and subsequently was hired on as a deputy 8 it was reflecting not only in maybe the cases,

] state's attorney and worked there until 1995, 9 hit more so in how he was treating the atformeys
10 May of 1995. 10 that appeared in front of him.

1 I left the office and went into private 11 fhat do you mean by how he was treating the

12 practice for abouf a year, handling just a 12 lawyers?

13 variety of everything that pretty much walked in 13 There's a -~ there's a disparity in power

14 the door, and then took cut petitions and ran in 14 between a judge and any attormey who 1s in the
15 a primary against the then-state's attomey and 15 courtroon, naturally. And it just appeared that
16 was successful, Since then; I'we had two or i6 he would - the attorneys were. frustrated and

17 three elections for the office and have been 17 not looking forward to going into his courtroom,
18 state's attormey ever since, 18 they weren't treated with respect, and because
19 @ So you've been state's attorney since 19977 19 of their position within govermment, that they
20 A Yes, that's correct. 20 were treated as less.
21 Q0 Took office in Jamsary of that year? 7 In this particular case, it's my understanding
22 A Yes. 22 that the attomney general, Marty Jackley,
23 Q@ M. Brenner, you filed the original complaint 23 eontacted you; is that correct?
4 that brings us hexe involving the incident with 2 That is corvect.
25 Officer Twedt; is that corvect? 2 What did he tell you?
105 107

1 & That is correct. 1 Marty and I reqularly have commnication based
29  And why did you file that? 2 on our positions, and so we have each other's
A Wall, becanse — there's really two reasons I 3 cell phones and we contact each other regarding
4 filed that. MNumber one is how egregious 4 various issues that come up.

5 essentially the statement itself was, you know, 5 But what he had said was that he spoke with
6 in the sense that it was —— it was overly harsh 3 Jack High, whe T didn't know at the time, but

1 and not something that I felt was — could be 7 Was an attorney that has a relationship with

8 taken ligntly. It could affect this young ] Marty and that they are friends and that Jack

9 officer's career for the rest of his life, as 9 had mentioned he was going to visit with me.
i well as a reflection on the Rapid City Police 10 End Marty said, Well, I lmow Glenn and T can
1 Department. 1 czll him and see if he's willing to visit with
1 The second real reason was because I just 12 you. And so I'm calling to ask if that's
13 did not feel like there was going to be any 13 something that you would be willing £o do. And
1 other means to éccorrplish any sort of change in 14 I said yes, I would.

15 behavior. The history that T had at the time 15 and he sald, As a heads-up, he's most likely
16 from the deputies that worked with me at the 16 qoing to ask you about whether or not if the

17 office was that this pattern of behavior or " powers that be saw fit to put Judge Fuller back
18 maybe philosophy of thought was existent and 18 on the bench, if you would be willing fo have
19 nothing was really going to change it, so I 19 your attorneys in your office appear in front of
20 filed the — 20 him,
21 ¢ What do you mean by that? 21 That was pretty much the extent of the
2 A -~ complaint, Well, the fellow — my 22 conversation with Marty Jackley.

3 colleagues, the deputy state's attorneys which 23 let ne ask you this, After you filed the
2 worked with myself, we have reqular staff Pl complaint against Judge Fuller, what was your
pi meetings, and there were — there were constant 25 policy -- well, maybe before and after, what was
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1 your policy with respect to any recusals of 1 Q  What kind of cases did she handle?
j Judge Fuller? 2 A She was our and is our lead juvenile in the area
3 & Well, there's — attorneys within the office 3 of juvenile delinquency and abuse and neglect
4 have the right to file an affidavit on a judge 4 proceedings. She's our lead attorney in that
5 within the law if they see it fit and have good 5 department.
6 reason, Our office is one that we don't § @  Ckay. Ultimately did she come to the point
1 micromanage, so if they see it fit and have good 7 were she, even she recused him?
8 reason to file an affidavit, it's well within g A She did, but that was different. That ong, I
9 the rights, within the law to do so, so they can 5 had suggested that she recuse him for her cm
1 do that. 10 sake. It got to the point where Roxie was going
1 Now, if somebody were to file affidavits on 11 to Judge Fuller's courtroom and there vas a lot
12 a judge in every single case that they had, I 12 of disoussion —- T can't remember specificaliy
13 think I would expect that I would be informed 13 the conversations, but there was discussion
u and commnicated with about that. Because if u about the complaint itself and our office's
15 that were to happen amongst the entire office, 15 treatment of the Judge, and whose side she would
16 it would affect the entirs criminal justice 16 be on.
17 system. So that's something that I think 17 and it was — it was making it extremely
18 everybody was well aware would not be 18 wncomfortable for that particular prosecutor to
19 acceptable. 19 o into his courtroom. I think she felt, in a
20 Bit what I — since — at the filing of the 20 difficult situation, wommfortable. She liked
21 complaint, I had said te the office, and there 21 this particular judge as a person, and so she
22 were -~ at a staff meeting, and there were meny 22 was caught in the middle and felt very
23 deputies who had routinely complained about 23 meonfortable.
24 perhaps how they were treated in Judge Fuller's 24 T think it got to the point where she didn't
5 courtroon or something that had occurred in 25 Look forward to coming to work every day, and at
109 111
1 there or the way this case went. 1 that point — and there vas incidents she came
7 So I had said at this one particular staff 2 into my office to tell me what was happening.
3 mesting that I am giving the official green 3 At that point, I suggested for her sake, I'm
4 light to affidavit Judge Fuller if they see it 4 not going to let her go into that courtroon
5 fit, especially after the conmplaint was filed. 5 amymore. We are going to remove him from the
6 Mow, I don't recall if I had mentioned that 5 cases you hear, and that way there won't be that
7 there was a complaint filed, but T do remember 7 alowardness or uncomfortableness.
8 sugoesting that they have the discretion as to § @  InMr, Nelsn's report he refers to a onment
9 whether or not they would like to affidavit him 9 that you advised him Judge Fuller wade about
1 on a case and T will not come down cn them. If 10 Justice Ssbers. Do you remenber the context of
1 they decide to do it on every case or if they n that?
12 decide not to do it, they have that discretion. 12 A Ido, becanse it struck me as interesting on the
13 That was the marching orders from that 13 particular case that — well, the incident that
14 particular staff meeting. 14 it tock place. We were in the hallway between
15 ©  2nd did most of your attomneys then affidavit 15 Judge Fuller's courtroom and Judge Delaney's and
16 Tim? 16 the hearing was a habeas hearing on a pretty
17 B All of themdid. Surprisingly, all of them did, iy high — 2ot high profile, hut very serious rape
18 because there were a few attorneys I did not 18 case.
19 think would or maybe wouldn't. But every one of 19 B it was a hebeas hearing that
20 them did except for one attorney within the 20 Juddge Delaney was hearing, and I had walked out
21 office, 21 of the courtroom and I was a little bit
22 ¢ Who was that? 2 frustrated with the way the hearing itself went.
23 & Roxie. 23 And Judge Ruller was coming out of the
24 0 ¥hat, Rexarme Erickson? 24 coirtroom at the same time and we had contact in
25 A Yes, that's correct. 25 the hallway. And he had brought it up, and I
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was a little bit surprised that he knew so mach

1 1 there was - there was some erctional testimony,
2 dhout this case, because if wasn't his case. 2 I quess, on both sides. There was officers’

3 Mot that there was anything wrong with it, but 3 wives who testified that they were concerned

4 it did shock me a 1ittle bit that he was that 4 that they'd never ses the officer again or that
5 familiar with it. 5 thought never crossed their mind that when they
$ And, you know, made statements about how, 3 leave the door for work, they micht never come

7 #lell, Judge Delaney ought to do this with it and 7 home,

g ought to do that. BAnd I started to contest that B and of course, there was from the victin's

9 with him, ard he said scmething to the effect % side, the victim's family, there was emctional
10 of, one of his fawrite statements was, Why 10 on this victin kind of what it was that caused
1 mist —- that Justice Sabers had made. Why must 11 him to shoot at the police officers' at this

12 the wind always be at the - in the face of —- 12 house.

13 at the back of the State and in the face of the 13 The defendant was the victin?

14 defendant, which was a philosophical belief 14 Or the defendant. I'm sorry, the defendant.

15 that — I don't know, just the coment, it stuck 15 The victims' wives were the police officers who
16 with me, 16 testified, and then the defendant and the

11 @  Bave you — you've appeared in fremt of 17 defendant's family.

13 Judge Fuller? 18 And the reason why I misspoke there and said
19 & Yes, I have. 19 victim is because I got the impression that the
20 §  How has he treated you? 20 Judge had kind of turned the roles to an extent,
21 B Fine. Good, as a matter of fact. And it's 21 and the defendant, who was maybe now in a

py) interesting, hecause the way that T tend to deal 23 different place, became a victim.

23 with issues, if issues come up, I like to go 23 And through the mitigating testimony that

24 firsthand. If there's an issue with a 24 the victim — that the defendant's family was
25 magistrate oourt in the way it's rumming, I have 25 giving, the Judge broke cut and started to cry,
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1 myself assigned to magistrate court so that I 1 and cried wncontrollably. I just had never seen
2 can firsthand see what's happening with that 2 that hefore,

3 particular - and if there are corrections, then 3 I did not know whether we were goirg to be

1 1 can go to the administrator or presiding judge | able to complete the hearing because the -Judge

5 ard discuss what those issues are. 5 was in tears, and really, I think we had to take
6 S0 I would regularly have myself assigned to 6 a 1ittle break before we could complete the

1 Judge Fuller's courtroom, especially after i hearing. Right there in the courtroom, we

8 reports were given to me that there was an 8 dicn't exit the courtroom. But it was an

9 inappropriate comment here or there or something 9 amotional outbreak that I just had never seen

10 happening in a particular case. 19 before, and it stuck with me as well.

1 But 1 think it was different with me because 1 Mr. Bremer, in light of the fact that you filed
12 I'm the elected state's attorney. So I think 12 the initial complaint and these hearings are

13 there was a different — I think it was a little 13 taking place, you're dwiously testifying, do

1 bit different. And so I really never had — 14 you have any concern if Judge Fuller is put back
15 there was — there was one particular case where 15 on the bench, appearing in front of him?

16 there was some behavior that I had never seen 16 Yezh, I've thought a lot about that because

7 before in a courtroom cr by a judge, but other 17 I've — I did have a meeting with Jack Hieb and
18 than that, T don't remember any mistreatment. 18 we did discuss that ang T said I need to think
19 @  ¥hat behavior was that? 19 doout that. I need to think about that question
20 A There was a case that I prosecuted several years 20 as to whether or not if the powers that be saw
21 ago where the defendant was & juvenile who got pal fit to have Judge Fuller back on the bench, 1
2 transferred to adult court who shot at police 2 could personally appear and what the marching
23 officers, several of them. 2nd he was shot as 23 orders would be from the office. I wouldn't be
Pl well, and survived. 24 curfortable,

25 And we were at the sentencing hearing, and 25 Of course, this entire process, you know,
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yhile Judge Fuller was still at the courthouse,

1 10 Ckay.
2 I was uncomfortable going to court, you know, in 2 A T think it's important, by way of background,
3 the sense that maybe we would un into each 3 the attorney gencral helps us on this particular
4 other in the elevator, and that's a natural | side of the state where there's — they assign a
5 human reaction. 5 special deputy or assistant attorney general to
6 But I would ke uncomfortable for two 3 handle the drugs cases. So they are really our
7 reasons. Mmber cne, the fact that there might 7 drug cases, but we are getting help of which we
8 be retaliation. There is a disparity of power. g reaily appreciate because of the numbers we see.
9 Fe're both elected officials, but he is a judge. 9 S0 it would be bad or wrong if there was a
10 Ind mmber two, if thers wasn't — if he was 10 different set of policies awongst our office and
11 going to chenge his behavior, I would always iy the attorney general's, and that was the nature
12 question whether or not either T or the State, 12 of the discussion.
13 or T should say the State or the other side was 13 ¢  Thanks for the backgrownd on that, Glemn. I
1 getting a fair shake, why the decisions were 14 should have pointed that out. Marty has a
15 being made. Were they based strictly on the 15 onple of people —-
1% hearing and the evidence and the law or was it 6 A Stationed.
17 something else. 11 — in Rapid City that are working in this
18 That would always question -- so there's 18 courthouse --
19 other judges in the circuit, I would use the law 19 &4 Uh-huh.
20 and affidavit this particdar judge. And the 20 @  — constantly; correct?
21 marching orders for the office would be the same 21 A Yeah, that is correct.
22 as they were, that you could -- you could decide 22 MR. HIEB: All right. I've get nothing
23 what you would like to do. I wouldn't mendate 23 further.
24 that he be removed. Cn the other hand, T would 24 REDIRECT EXRMINATION BY MR, SCHAFFER:
pi] be removing him. So T don't know if they would 25 0 Just so the Commission is clear, you didn't have
117 119
1 Tollow suit. 1 a blanket policy after you filed the complaint,
2 MR. SCHAFFER: Ckay. That's all. 2 gither, did you?
3 CROSS-EXAMINATION EY MR. HIEB: 3 A Never did have a blanket policy. I was giving
4 Q  Just briefly, Glem. I think you've summarized 4 averybody the discretion to do what they saw
5 our conversation pretty well. It's my 5 fit.
6 wnderstanding that you and Marty have discussed 6§ Q  You on your own decided, Since I filed this
7 it and you've both agreed there won't be a 7 conplaint against Judge Fuller, I don't think I
8 pelicy in either of your offices where there 8 can appear in front of him?
9 would be a blanket affidavit of Judge Fuller if § A That's correct.
10 he's put back en the bench; is that correct? 10 @ Bnd you left all of your deputies with that
i1 A That is correct. I recently spoke to Marty and 11 discretiom to make their own call?
12 he — you know, he's — the discussion came that 2 A Yes,
13 he's more of an administrator and doesn't go 13 0 Ed that would be the same going forvard?

14
15
15
17
18
19
20
i1
22
23
24

personally into court, you know, as much as his
deputies do. But he would be consistent with my
policies, you know.

0 TYesh. He — I'm tryirg to, if I can, and with
some leeway, I'm trying to aveid having to call
him. And T actually talked to him to find out
and he said the two of you spoke and that you
had an agreement that there wouldn't be a
blanket affidavit. You'd let yowr prosecutors
have the autonomy to decide what they wanted to
do in each particular case; correct?

A Yeah.
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A That's corract,

MR, SCHAFFER: Okay. That's all.
MR. HIEB: Nothing.
MR, PAIMER: Judge Wilbur.

FXAMINATION BY JUDGE WILBUR:

Q  The complaint that you filed initially with J0C,
I was locking through that last night, and as I
recall, and what we focused on is the hearing
with the Officer Twedt.

A Uh-fuh.

Q  Vas there a second part of that corplaint that

is part of — that's attached to our pleadings
120
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1 that imvolves Investigator Kent Przymis and a 1 ALICTIA RAMSDELL,
2 ruling that Judge Fuller made that — are you 2 called as a witness herein, having been first duly
3 familiar with that — 3 sworm, was examined and testified as follows:
4 A I am. 4§ EXRMINATICN BY MR. SCHAFFER: )
5 Q = as part of your conplaint? 5 ¢  Yould you please state your name for the recond
6 &  VYes, T am familiar with it. If has to do more 6 and spell your name,
7 with - and this was kind of a regular 7 A Alicia Ramsdell., AT-1-C-A, R-A-M-SD-E1-L.
8 ooourrence, but it has to do more with the fact 8§ Q  Tell the Commission what you do.
9 that in that particular case, it involved, I 9 A I'm a law student. I'm a third-year law
10 believe, a suppression hearing that was not 10 student.
11 brought on by the defense attorney, that shocked 11 § At the University of South Dakota?
12 the defanse attomey as much as it shocked the 12 A Yes.
13 prosecutor in the courtroom. 139 2nd ta11 me a little bit about your background.
14 0  What do you mean, it wasn't brought on by — 14 Where vere you born and raised, Alicia?
15 & It wasn't instigated by anybody. It was, the 15 B I was born in Deadwood, raised in Black Hawk,
16 Judge just saw fit to say that, I feel there's a 16 qraduated from high school in Sturgis. Was in
17 constitutional violation in this statement and 17 the National Guard for three years. I'm
18 I'n suppressing the evidence. 18 qurrently a reserve police officer for Sturgis
19 New, I understand that a judge has the 19 and have been for almost six years.
20 absolute right to do that, but this is smmething 20 ¢ And are you married?
21 that, if you research, would find Judge Fuller 21 B Yes,
2 had a habit of more than any other judge that 22 @ Children?
3 I've ever come into contact with, 23 & Yes, T have a three-year-cld.
L So it seemed as though that there was maybe 24 Q  Ckay. Is that a boy or girl?
25 a philosophical belief about government, and 25 A Boy.
121 123
1 that he was going to fix the wrong in the 1Q  Ckay. And besides going to law school, do you
2 courtroom with cases Like that. 2 work?
3Q AT read throuwh that, it looks like then the 1A I do. I work at Dekota Dumes Country Club, and
4 officer went in and talked with Judge Fuller 4 I also volunteer at the Minnghaha Public
5 after the hearing was concluded outside the 5 Defender's Office.
b presence of anyone else? 6§ ¢  How many hours a week do you work at the
7 & Ibelieve so. T don't recall. I'm sorry. 7 comtry club?
8 Q Al right. I just dicn't know vhether -- 8 A Between 12 to 18.
9 nobody has ever addressed that part of the 3 0 Ad the voluntesr work is with what
10 complaint. S0 I was just curious about whether 10 organization?
£ that's a fact that we're to rely on or mt, so. i1 A The Mirnehaha Public Defender's Office.
12 Ckay. 12 Q TWhat do you do there?
13 MR, PAIMER: ZAnything else from anybody? 13 & Idoalotof research, writing. I've
1 Mr. Schaffer? Mr. Hieb? " written — I'm going to start my fourth Supreme
15 MR. HIEB: No. No. 15 Court brief here this week, and then just
16 MR. SCHAFFER: No. 16 research and just help where I can,
17 MR. PAIMER: Thank you, Glemn. 119 Ckay. I've sent you a subpoena to appear here
18 MR. SCHAFFER: May he be excused from his 18 today; is that correct?
19 subpoena? 9 A That's correct.
20 MR, PAIMER: You're released from your 20 9 And my wnderstanding is you had a final today.
2 subpoena.  Thank you. 21 B Yes.
2 {Witness left the room.) 20 You got that reschediled, didn't you?
3 MR, SCHRFFRR: Call Alicia Ramsdell. 23 A Yes.
24 (Mr. Hieb not present.) 240 Ckay. So you all the way from Vermillion
nf 2 to be here?
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1 Yes. 13 It did, because I didn't see how that was funny,
2 In the smmer of 2010, did you intern with the 2 T quess.

3 state's attomey office in Pennington County? 310 Tell the Comission about your owm experience

4 Yes, T did. g with discrimination in the professions that

5 2nd tell me, would that have been basically from 5 you've been in prior to going to law scheol.

6 Jure until Angast? § A Well, when I was in the military and on active
1 It was towards the end of May until the end of 7 dity, T heard a Lot of comments that women

8 July because I work the Rally for Sturgis curing 8 didn't belong in the military and in law

$ Rugust., 9 enforcement. I still hear coments that we
10 So then you worked as a reserve police officer? 10 shouldn't be there, that we're not strong
11 Yes, 11 enough, that we should leave it to the men to
12 {Mr. Hieb returned.) 12 d. So it just — I'm more sensitive fo it than
13 (Exhibit T was marked for identification.) 13 probably most.

! (EY MR, SCHAFFER:) lara, [sic] I'm going to 14 Q  Well, did this coment catch you off guard as
15 hand you what the court reporter has marked as 15 far as did you think you were going to encounter
16 Exhibit I. Is that a memorandm that you 16 those same types of prejudices in the legal

17 prepared following an expexience in 17 profession?
18 Judge Fuller's courtroom? 18 A MNet at all, because now it's almost 50/50 in law
19 Yes, Yes. 19 school with women and men, So T didn't expect
i MR. SCHAFFER: We'd offer Exhibit T. 20 it at all.
21 MR, WICHOLSON: Mo dbjections. 21 MR. SCHAFFER: That's all.
22 MR, PAIMER: Eshibit T will be received. 2 MR, NICHOLSON: Mo guestions.
23 {BY MR. SCHAFFER:) Ms, Roetzel, [sic] I think 23 MR. PAIMR: Arybody on the Commission have
24 I'm going to let people have a chance to lock at 2 any questions?
25 this, kut as I understand it, you were in — or 25 fo questions were presented. )

125 127

1 I'm sorry. Ms. Ramsdell, you were in comrt with 1 MR. PAIMFR: You came a long ways. Thank

2 a lawyer from Pennington County, Who was that? 2 you very much,

3 Josh Zellmer. 3 MR, SCHAFFER: May she be released?

{ And that's the reference to JZ in the 4 MR. PAIMER: You may be released. Who was
5 memorancim? 5 the professor who let you change your final?

6 Yes. 3 THE WITNESS: Pasqualucel, for comercial

7 End this wvas during a break in the proceedings? 7 Law.

g Yes. The jury had gone out for lunch and we had 8 MR. PAIMFR: All right. Please tell —

9 to go over some moticns before they came back 9 MR, MCRRIDE: Thank you very much.

10 in. 10 MR. SCHAFFFR: Yes, thank you very much.

il Tell the Cammission exactly what happened. 11 {Witness left the room.)

12 Well, the defense attorney and Josh went to the 12 MR, PAIMER: Ilet's talk for a second here.
13 bathroom together, and we were joking arcund 13 e are at 11:00 -~ let's go off the record.

14 thet typically only women ge to the hathroom 14 {Discussion was held off the record.)

15 together, And I con't kmow how that segued into 15 (Extibit J was marked for identification.)
16 talking about women in the legal profession, but 16 MR, PAIMFR: Iet's go back on the xecord.
17 he sald — and that's not verbatim. He said 17 At this time I think by agreement of the

18 something to the effect that the legal 18 parties, we'll go cut of order. And Mr. Hieb,
19 profession was better before women and that he 19 call your witness.

20 wishes it could go back to 1916 or 1918, 20 MR. HIEB: Thank you. I call Dr. Arnmio,

21 And did he say that in a joking fashion or what 21 Mr. Chaimen, I have marked Exhibit J. I
22 vas the tone of the comment? 2 have provided a copy to Counsel and I'11

23 T thoucht he was joking because he said it with 23 represent to the Comuission that Exhibit J is
pL! a smile on his face and we had besn jcking. pl] the report of Dr. Amio, aleng with his

b Nevertheless, did that offend you? 2 Qurricalum Vitae. They are both part of that
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1 exhibit. To you have copies of those or — 1 and there were probiems, conflicts within the

2 MR. FAIMER:; We do have copies of these, 2 family, and difficuities within the family

3 Just so we're clear, the Dr. Amio letter to 3 hierarchy. So I ended up seeing the entire

4 Mike Schaffer is dated December 8, 20107 4 family in family therapy to try to sort out what
5 MR, HIEB: Yes. 5 was going on.

] MR. PAIMER: OCkay. Perfect. 6 A that time, it became appzrent as an

7 ROBERT ARNIQ, Ph.D, 7 attorney, Pete was gone a lot, but he also was

8 called as a witness herein, having been first duly 8 drinking quite a bit, and that was another

3 sworn, was examined and testified as follows: 9 factor that was involved with the family. And
10 DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR, HIEB: 10 during the process of the family therepy, I

11 ¢  Could you state your name for the record, 11 noted to Mr. Fuller that, you know, he was not
12 please. 12 finctioning completely as a father to his

13 3 Rehert Harold Amio. 13 adolescents due to his work absence and use of
14 @  I'mogoing to refer to you as Dr. Amio. 14 alcohol.
15 Dr, Arnio, what is your profession? 15 At that point or somewhere around that tire,
16 &  I'ma licensed psychologist. 16 he stopped drinking. Not because he was being
17 9 Where & you practiocs? 17 seen for an alcchol problem or had been referred
1% A At Psychological Associates here in Rapid City, 18 for that, but T believe because of the comments
19 South Dakota. 19 that T made to him, how it is — it's impacting
20 @ T kow you're a licensed psychologist, but what 20 the family.
21 is your -- vhat is your field of practice? ZAre 21 The family changed, I think, fairly
22 you in forensics, clinical work, what do you do? 22 drematically in a relatively short period of
23 A I have a general practice. I see adults, 23 time, and then I haven't seen him until he
2 children, and families. T do evaluafions and 24 called concerning this matter,
25 peychotharapy. 1 do some forensic work, but I'm 25 Ind with respect to this matter, what were you
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1 not a board-certified forensic psychologist. 1 asked to do ox what did you see as your role

2 Q  And how long have you beem a licensed 2 with respect to your dealings with Pete in this
3 psychologist? 3 matter?

4 A I think 32 years. § Well, I had seen in the paper that there had

5 @  And spent that entire time here in Rapid City? 5 been a disciplinary action with Mr. Ruller,

6 A  Yes. Well, I have - I was in Spearfish for, I 3 Judge Fuller. And so he called and said, I'm in
7 think, two years and then in Spearfish and 1 some Trouble and I need a psychological

8 Sturgis, and I think we started the Rapid City 8 evaluation.

9 office about 25, 26 years ago. Somewhers in 9 So at that point, T told him I would set an
10 that range. 10 aopointment and T would talk to him about

11 @  When did you £irst meet Pete Fuller? 1 whether it made sense for me to evaluate him or
12 &2 Inthe early 1980s. 12 not. So I saw him on a Saturday morning in my
13 ¢  And what was the reason for that? 13 office, and he brought the complaint papers and
14 & I ended up seeing one of his children, an 14 explained what was going on.
15 adolescent who was having some adjustment 15 1 —- T explained te him T had some hesitancy
16 preblems. And in the process of seeing his 16 in evaluating him in that he was a judge in
i diild, T ended up seeing Pete and the Zamily. 17 Rapid City and I'm a psychologist in Repid City,
1 ¢ Why don't you expound on that. Explain that to 18 ard would the Commission look at that as a
19 the Commission. 19 biased evaluation because I'm from here, that
20 A I'm going on the basis of my memory of 25 or 50 20 would — would that be scmething, should he have
2 years ago. The student was having — it was, 21 maybe an evaluation by somebody out of the area.
2 Pete's son was having some troudie in schocl and 2 He said he felt that he knew me and I knew
pA] some oppositional and noncompliant type of 23 his history and that he was not being required
2 behavior, 24 to have an evaluation, he was trying to do that,
25 So T had seen him and done some assessment, 25 and felt that in his mind T would be a person
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1 who wotld be able to do a fair evalustion. And 1 situation is.

2 if at any point should he return to be a judge, 2 It's like a movie, the frames thet came

3 that anything would come up, then he would 3 before, To try to understand what's going on

4 simply recuse himself. I felt that was | 4 noW, you wart to know historical kinds of

5 reasonable. 5 things. 2nd I chviously couldn't remember from
6 and I don't do a lot of forensic work cn —- 3 25 years ago Mr, Fuller's history, and s0

7 T don't ~— I go to court maybe once every two 7 qetting a more complete history at this time

§ years. So it's not a heavy part. But Tdid 8 seemed to make sense to me.

9 caution hin to talk to — he said he had two 9 End vhat in particular shout the history that
10 attorneys, and I cautioned him to talk to them 10 you cbtained from him was relevant to you in

-1 and make swre that they were, you know, ckay 11 forming whatever opinions you formed in this

12 with my doing this with the history and being in 12 case?

13 this area. 13 Well, Mr. Fuller's history indicates that he is
14 Fe called back and said he thought in 1 samewhat of a stimalus-seeking person. You

15 consulting with the attormeys it would not 15 could probably divide personalities into those
16 present a problem. 16 pecpie who are wore laid back, we sometimes use
17 Okay. 17 the term Type A individuals -- or I'm sorry,

18 So at that point, I said, All right, we'll 18 Type B, or Type A individuals, stimulus-seekers,
19 schedule some times and 1711 <o an assesament, 19 people who are involved, active, and moving.

20 Ired just to get this out of the way, I have put 20 Cre personality therapist, Ted Millon, says
21 in front of you a copy of an exhibit that's been 21 that you can think of people as plants or
22 marked as Exhibit J. Is that a copy of the 22 znimals. Some animals go out and they change
2 report that you prepared in comnection with this 23 their envirorment, they move and want to make

24 matter? bl changes. Plants want to find a spot, put down
5 Yes, it is. 25 roots, and grow and flower.
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1 End the last two pages of that exhibit, are 1 2nd history would suggest that Mr. Fuiler is
2 those an up-to-date Curriculum Vitas? 2 more of an active, stimalus-seeking, Interacting
3 Yes, it is. 3 with his envirorment-type person.

4 MR, HIEB: I would offer Exhibit J at this 4 He's an animal?

5 tize, 5 From Ted Millon's standpoint, he would be on the
6 ¥R, SCHAFFER: Mo cbjection. 6 animal side, yes, not on the plant.

7 MR, PRIMFR: J will be received. 7 Erd then you get the history, and it's laid out
B (BY MR, HIEB:) Wow, and I can assure you that 8 here in the meport, I thirk, fairly extensively.
] the Conmission menbers either have or will read 9 Following that, you did same actual

10 your eport, so I'1l try not to just have you 10 psychological testing of him —

11 requrgitate that here. But I do vant you to 1 Yes, I did.

12 touch on, for the menbers of this body, why you 12 — is that correct? let's talk about those.

13 did what you did, the reasons for it, and then 13 The first thing you did was a Weschler Adnlt
14 what conclusions you mey have been sble to 14 Intelligence Scale test?

15 reach. 15 Yes.

16 Let's start with the history pertion of this 16 What is that?

11 report. There's a fairly detailed history that 17 That is the most frequently used individual

18 you take here. Why Is that something that you 18 intelligence test in clinical psycholegy.

19 do or did in this case? 19 Is that an ID test?

20 ¥iell, probably the, one of the most important 20 Yes, an IQ test.

21 pieces of information in assessing anyone, 21 What did that tell you? What did that test

22 maybe, if not the most important, is the 22 reveal?

23 history. You can tell a lot of things that have 23 Well, I found that Mr. Fuller is very, very

24 gone cn in temns of the persen's history and 24 bright in terms of verbal skills, he is ina

25 what the historical context of thelr current 25 very high percentile; that he has average
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1 ronverbal types of skills, visual, spatial types 1 standpoint.

2 of things; and that he also had average but 2 Bow did the test results that you got on

3 lower soores in the area of what we call 3 Judge Fuller, what did that -- what picture did
i processing speed and working memory. 4 that paint for you?

5 S0 there's a difference in these four 5 Well, everything was average or above, it he

6 different index values. We used to think of and 6 was very high in the area of verbal skills and

7 look at it intellect or intelligence as being 1 less 0 in the area of working memory and

8 verbal versus nonverbal. And we would talk 8 processing speeds. So those two varizbles again
9 about & verbal IQ such as language, and 9 were average, but significantly lower.
10 nonverbel I such as nonlanguage or creativity 10 In fact, I think — as I recall, if you lock
1 or ability to be like a mechanical engineer or 11 at the standardization population, this kind of
12 sheet metal worker, to see patterns in 12 a difference would anly occur in one instance, I
13 nonverbal . 13 think it was the working memory, 8 out of
it Research over the last 10 to 15 years has ! 100 times, or I think it was 11 cut of

15 changed that where now we no longer use those 15 100 times. So it's statistically unusual for

16 terms, because we have found that processing 15 that to occur, and so that can have a difference
17 variables, how we process information, the speed 17 in how he deals with information.
18 with which we process information, and a 18 My cun experience has been individuals who
19 varizble calied working memory, how much we keep 19 have lower processing speed and working mewry,
20 in our mingd at a given time, are alsc important 20 when in situations vhere a lot of information is
21 in the criterion variables that an intelligence 21 coming, mey not process all of the information
2 test is measured against. 22 as you might think they would with the high,
23 If you have an intelligence test and people 23 say, verbel 10 in tems of doing that.
24 who graduate with As from Harvard do the same as 24 Fow, if you had a much lower performance 10
25 somecne who, you know, can't get through a 25 thar Mr. Fuller did — his is within the average
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1 smaller college, then the criterion, what are 1 range. But when you have a very high verbal I0
2 you reasuring, 2 and the performance score goss down lower, it's
3 So a test is a sampling of behavior, and 3 a condition that's sometimes referred to as a

4 you're measuring it and then you're -- you have 4 nonverbal, i.e., the nonverbal score of the Test
5 some criteria, external criteria out here that 5 learning disorder.

& you look at. Does this test match with the 6 Now, when I see that with young pecpls,

7 external criteria? 1 adolescents and so forth and children, what

8 hen we look at overall achievement in terms 8 happens is much of the information we take into
9 of academic achievement or vocational g acoont is nonverbal. You know, I'm sitting
10 achievement, processing speed and working memory 10 over here and talking to all of you, but if I
1 account for a large portion of that. In other 11 were to get up and start walking in front of
12 words, you can have pecple who have very high 12 this table, I would dramatically change the
13 verbal — what we used to call verbal IQs, here 13 social context of this meeting. Yef that's a
1t we call verbal comprehension, very high 14 nonverbal skitl,
15 perceptual reasoning, and if they alsc don't 15 And vhat happens when the nonverbal soore
1% have high working memory and high processing 16 gets a lot lower is these individuals don't pick
1 gpeed, they msy not do as well as you would 17 w on that. They don't understand that, And
18 expact them to do, given their intelligence. 18 they — and among kids, what happens is they
19 S0 we have very intelligent paople vho maybe 19 have a really hard time interacting with people
20 it's harder for them or they don't do as well as 20 because they're not picking up on a lof cf
21 we predict on the basis of the IQ measures. 21 ronverbal kind of feedback that's going on.
n S0 currently, with the current psychological 22 I'm going to use the word "cues,” Is that a
3 testing, you look at four indexes in trying to 23 word that gets used in your profession? The
pli understand the makeup of how a person deals with 24 cues that you get from --
b the world from 2 cognitive or intellectual 25 Right. These — and in younger people, with a
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1 greater difference. These are the kids that 1 of thoss tests that Judge Fuller had any

2 don't get what the teacher calls, The Icok. I 2 persanality or psychiatric disorders on Axis I
3 give them The Look and they don't get it. They 3 or Axis II?

4 lock at me like, What? And they don't 4 A No. On the basis that the scores on the test

5 understand what The Look means. The Look means 5 have a —— everybody is going to be somewhere,

6 you're doing — stop doing what you are doing. 5 and the mean is 50. And you lock at it as being
1 And they don*t understand that. 7 a, quote, significant scale if it's a T score of
8 Mow, again, Mr. Fuller's profile is wp 8 65 or above, And none of his scores were at &
9 within the average range, and to say that these 9 65 or above in temss of that level.

10 difficulties would clearly exist, you know, 10 They were all within what we would consider
11 can't be said. But it is & pattern of this 1 to be nomal range. Nor were there problems in
12 discrepancy, along with the processing speed and 12 the validity scale. So on the basis of thet

13 working menory being average, that there at 13 test, it's what we would call a nomal profile.
L least be -- it would at least be consistent in 14 Q S0 you take that out of the equation as one of
15 tems of what I read in the complaints against 15 the possibilities for behavior?
16 Mr. Fuller, that some of those kinds of things 16 A Yes. As a serions Axis I or Axis II disorder,
17 are happening, not cut of a malicious intent, 17 the M/PT results would not support that type of
18 bat perhaps missing cues, perhaps not 18 interpretation.

19 understanding the significance of that, 19 Q@  Then finally, there's the Rorschach — I don't
20 particularly within a, such a sensitive position 20 know if I said that correctly, The Rorschach
2l as a circuit court judge. 21 test.
22 0 The mext test you did was the ML, Describe 22 B Rorschach.
23 that, please, 21 Q  What does that tell you?
24 L T gave Mr. Fuller actually the MMPT-2-RF. And 20 & Porschach is a test that's alse been around for
25 the WP is a test that's been arcund for a very 25 a very long time. It consists of ten plates,
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1 long time. The original MYPI was developed in 1 ink Blets that people interpret to you. Aman
2 the 19405, The MPI-2-RF is the most current 2 by the name of John Fxner about 30 years ago

3 version of that test, and in my opinion, by far 3 took this test and helped develop a betfer

4 the best of the personality profile. Many of 4 sooring system.

5 the other difficulties were removed. So he did 5 The biggest problem with the Rorschach is

6 complete the MPT-2-RF. b that under other scoring systems, it was

7Q  hy did yon do the MPT? What were you looking 7 mreliable. 2Ang if a test is unreliable, it's
8 for? 8 not valid. If two people don't give the same

9 & The MMPI is used to try to assess the presence 9 test and get the same results, then it's not a
10 of psydological characteristics that may be 10 helpful test.

11 related to a psychiatric disorder, either a 11 Dr. Exner looked at this test and found none
12 major mental disorder like an Axis I or 12 of the scoring systems — he was trying to find
13 personality disorder like Axis IT. It also 13 the best scoring system, and he found that rone
14 probably has the most refined validity scales in 14 of them are adequate in all ways. 30

15 tems of, is the person filling it cut honestly 15 oombinations were taken of each of the scoring
16 and straightforward or are they being defensive 16 systems' good points, and put together, called
17 or not. So a great deal of research has gone 17 the comprehensive system, and there's ahout now
18 into those factors, alsc. 18 20 to 30 years of research on the comprehensive
19 %o in tems of doing an evaluation, iooking 19 system. So it became a valid instrument.
20 at the MMPI-RF-2 that has good research, it's 20 The Rorschach picks wp on many kinds of
21 helpful to look at the validity scales as well il things, degree of stress a person is under, You
22 as the clinical scales, and the supplemental 22 also lock for any kind of major mental or
23 scales that the test will generate based on the 23 coqnitive slippage. Some of the special scores
2 person's responses. u are if people in the ink blots, the precepts,
25 0 And did you have any indication from the results 25 put things together that shouldn't go together.
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1 And that, like, you know, a dog's head on a 1 1'd die, too, because I can't swim. And that

2 chicken or something. 2 makes sense to the frog.

3 If you're starting to do scmething like that 3 S0 halfway across ihe pond, the spider bites
4 ot other kinds of things, it goes under special 1 the frog. With his dying bresth, the irog says
5 scores and you try to see, Okay, how consistent 5 Wy did you do that? Now we're going to both

5 is this and can you see vhat they see? Is it a 6 die. And the spider said, I don't know. I

1 popular response? 7 guess it's just in my nature.

8 So a lot of these different ways of scoring 8 End that's what you see when you see Axis IT
9 this — and each of the responses is put into a 9 kinds of problems. Despite feedback, the

10 computer program so all the statistics and so i problem persists, It's engrained within the

il forth are done through the Exner system, so you 11 personality. I didn't see those characteristics
12 don't make a mistake. 12 with Mr. Fuller in the testing that I did or the
13 But it gives you some more kind of dynamic 13 interviewing.

u infomation about how the person is perhaps 1 In my life experience with him 25 years &g,
15 seeing the world or some of their important 15 vhen he found that alcohol was affecting his

16 personality traits or characteristics. 16 family dynamics, he stopped, and that's pretfy
17 So if we take this testing that you did and 17 hard for people to do. I mean, he could have

18 bimdle it together, what conclusions did you 18 it down on his drinking or dore scmething else,
19 reach? 19 but he quit.
20 1 did not see any major mental disorder, Rxis I 20 2rd so the testing T had was consistent with
Pl or Axis II, with Mr. Fuller. Cn some of the 21 my background and understanding of Mr. Fuller
2 subscales of the MPI-RF-2 he did score higher 22 that, given appropriate feedback, he is capable
3 in the area of anger proneness, and he — that 23 of changing and you know, not have other

2 is something that he talked about during the 2 personality characteristics that would be an

25 interview. 25 inpediment to.
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i His Rorschach was indicative of being under 1 &d finally, you've talked to Bob Holmes, who is
2 very significant situationel stress, that he is 2 the anger menagement comnselor that we're going
3 currently feeling a great deal of stress and 3 to hear from in a mimte. Zre you aware of the
4 emotion and could make him scmeshat emotionally 4 type of treatment that Bob has been providing

5 wilnerable at this point. His defenses have 5 Judge Fuller?

6 kind of been brought down. 6 You had provided me some of Bob's notes, and I
7 I did not see indicaticns of narcissism, I 7 wasn't able to talk to him until five minutes

8 did not see indications of other personality 8 before I came in here, bt — and based on the
g characteristics on either of the tests that 9 notes and things he had writhen there, T think
10 would strongly suggest personality 10 the treatment is quite appropriate.

1 characteristics that are resistant to change. 1 hnd in fact, Mr. Fuller had seen Mr. Holmes
12 If you're looking at therapy, and one of the 12 for one or two sessions pricr to my actually

13 things testing could be helpful is how likely is i3 having time in my schedule to test him, and he
14 this to change, particularly Axis II types of 14 did discuss that and he was — seemed surprised
15 problems. And that's why we have a maltilevel 15 and said he was surprised that he had never

15 axis in our diagnosis. 16 thought of irritation as being anywhere cn an
17 When you have an Axis II disorder, you do -- 17 anger continmm. He thought it separate from
18 in the long run, you o things that are 18 being angry.

19 destructive to yourself. But you continue to do 19 And Mr, Holmes pointed out that, Mo, if

20 then regardless of the feedack that you get. 20 you're feeling irritation, irritation isona
21 There's probably exemplifying the story of 21 continum of anger. And he was then keeping

n the spider and the frog. There's a black widow 22 track of when he felt irritated or so forth on a
23 spider that wants a ride across a pond, and the 23 tenpoint scale as a treatment procedure that
24 frog said, Mo, you will bite me and I will die. 24 Mr. Holmes had recommended.
25 And the widow says, Well, why would I do that? 25 In¢ he seemed to be somewhat surprised,
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1 maybe a little intrigued that he hadn't thought 1 point out that Mr. Micholson informed me that
2 about things in this way. So I think it's quife 2 neither Mr. Arnic nor Mr. Holmes would appear as
3 appropriate, 3 experts. They are here as fact witnesses.
49 I'm just going to finish up with this, This is 4 MR, PRIMFR: Bny record you want to make to
5 my own lay perspective. In other words, if you 5 that Mr. —
] had a black widow that you were dealing with, 6 MR. WICHCLSCN: We had that conversation,
1 treatment of that nature isn't likely to do any 7 Yeur Honor, the — because of the quickness of
8 good because it's just in their nabwe. The 8 these hearings and the production of the repert,
9 testing that you've dome indicated that that's g you know, it came together when Mr. Armic put
10 really not the category he fits into? 10 his examination together and his tests and s0
11 A That would be correct. 1t on, and it came out in the form of a report,
12 MR, HIEB: Ckay. I've got no further 12 which created an opinion. And T think in
13 questions. 13 fairness to Judge Fuller, the Commission i3
14 MR. SCHAFFER: Mr. Schaffer, 14 entitled to hear that.
15 CROSS-EXEMINATION BY MR. SCHAFFFR: 15 MR, PRIMFR: T don't disagree, and I
16 @ Dr. Amio, when did Judge Fuller contact you? 16 gpreciate Mr. Schaffer raking the record.
17 A Bbout a week before the first time I saw him. I 17 There's some awkwardness to it, but let's ¢o
18 don't have that date with me. I'm sorry. 18 ahead.
19 @ Do you have your file with you? 19 Q (BY ¥R. SCHEFFER:) Dr. 2rnio, the -- you say
208 No, I digh't bring my file. I brought my 20 your experience with Judge Fuller is such that
21 report. 21 he's not like a black widow that it's just in
22 Q@ Do you have any way to fix a date? 22 his rature. Bnd you base that on his handling
23 B It would have been after the news in the paper 23 of alechol and quitting drinking?
24 because I was aware of what had happened. I 24 & And the family therapy context, that's one piece
25 think about two weeks before T actually started 25 of information. The other infomaticn is the
149 151
1 testing him, 1 absence of clear signs of a personality disorder
2 Q  When did you test hin? 2 in my assessment of Mr. Fuller af this time.
3 A Well, I'mremiss. 1 didn't put that in here. 3§  Have you reviewed Dr. Holmes' notes?
4 Tt was about three weeks ago. Within the last 4 A Yes, last Saturday T reviewed some of them.
5 month. 5 Q  Ckay. I'mjust reading from Dr. Holmes' note of
§ Q  Within the month of December or within the month 6 October 20, 2010, where he is referring to
7 of November? 7 Jude Fuller. Be says, quote: He has not been
3 A I believe it was in the latter part of Wovember. 8 drinking at all sinoe suspension, as this helps
5 ¢  And vho asked you to test him? 9 keep him at the top of his game, wquote.
0 A Mr, Fuller. 10 Were you aware of that?
11 ¢  Did you talk to his attorneys? 11 A  That he had been drinking prior to suspension?
12 A After -- no. I talked to Mr, Fuller. AsT 12 Q Yes.
13 said, on the first meeting, I suggested 13 A Mo, T was not aware of that.
14 Mr. Fuller talk to his attomeys, and then I did 14 0 Be told you be quit in 1986 and never had a
15 talk to Mr. Hieb Saturday morning, this last 15 drink since?
1% Saturday morning, for sbout 20 mimrtes. 16 A That was my impression, yes. I don't know if he
17 Q  Bnd did you understand you were going to appear 17 said those exact words, but — well, I think he
18 here and testify as an epert? Is that your 13 did. T think it wes '83, actually.
19 nderstanding? 19 0 I'm reading your report, it says Decesber of
0 A Yes. 20 ‘86, he began --
721 @  That's what Mr. Hieb told you? 21 A '86.
22 A That's what Mr. Fuller told me, in all 22 ¢ - quitting?
23 probability I would be asked to talk in front of 234 Cay,
U the Commission. 24 Q  Ckay. And he hasn't had a drink since?
5 MR. SCHAFFER: Your Honor, I would just 25 A That was my Impression,
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1 Q  That's vhat he told you? 1 upset that those things were going on, but in
2 A That's — T believe so. 2 retrospect realized it would have been a lot
39 Ind if that's not true, that might affect your 3 better way to deal with it than to meke the
4 opinion as to the validity or the value of that 4 coments that he did.
5 experience in quitting drinking? 5 Q I justwant fo make sure this Commission
6 b It could. 5 understands you testimony, Ave you telling the
7 Q let me ask you, in locking through the history, 7 Commission that Judge Fuller did not perceive
8 I see a history of acting-out behavior. Would 8 that how he treated these pecple showed a lack
9 you agree with that? 9 of respect toward them?
10 & VYes. 10 & Tdon't — I believe that from what I have heard
11 @ I see ahistory of lack of impulse control. Do 11 from Mr. Fuller, that at the time he engaged in
12 you agres with that? 12 those behaviors, he did not see these as a major
13 & Partiodlarly when drinking, yes. 13 lack of respect for that person.
49 I see a history of acting arrogant, rude, and 140 Qkay.
15 disrespectfully toward others. Do you agree 15 & Retrospectively, having this being brought to
16 with that? 16 him, he looks at that and sees it as it wasn't
i7 A Yes. b respectful, was not percelved as respectiul,
18 Q That's what brings him here; correct? 18 therefore isn't, and the — that he was, as I
19 & Yes, by his own words. 19 think I said in my report, saw himself now,
20 0 And I see a history of him being power ariented. 20 having being confronted with this, as having
21 Do you agree with that? 21 behaved in an arrogant or so-and-so fashion.
22 & T don't know as that was specifically in his 22 But in my discussions with hin in
23 history. 23 interviewing, I did not get the inpression that
24 Q  Well, it was in his testing, wasn't it? 2 he bolieved those things to be true at the time
25 A Yesh. Testing shows that he — toward power, 25 that they were happening. I mean, fo believe to
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1 but T don't remember him describing any 1 be disrespectfil and arrogant. I don't think he
2 interpersonal situations where he was —- where I 2 thought of himself as disrespectful and arrogant
3 was left with that impression with the testing. 3 during the process. Now does,
1 @  He also has a history of lack of insight or 4 Q¢  The fact that he got this complaint and the
5 introspection into his own behavior; correct? 5 suspension and all of that is what brought it to
6 B I believe so, yes. 6 his attention?
T And that's — all of that is consistent with T A Yes.
8 reports in this case, the complaints in this 8§ Q Is that what you are saying?
9 case of how he freated staff, attorneys, and 9 A That's what I'm saying.
10 pecple that appeared in his court? 10 ¢ Do you agree, Doctor, that his past behavior,
11 A Tack of umderstanding of the impact of his 11 s a history of acting cut, lack of implse
12 behavior, ves, I think that’s a fair statement. 12 control, showing a lack of respect for pecple,
13 ¢ And the lack of respect for those pecple? 13 you agree that he has that history?
14 B I don't think that in my conversations with 14 A I agree his history as a young man, college
13 Mr. Fuller, I don't believe he perceived his 15 student and so forth, he had problens with
16 behavior as being a lack of respect. My 16 acting out and impulse control. But we have a
u impression, it was perceived by others that way. 17 diagnosis in our menual for people at that time.
18 Rt in my discussions with Mr. Fuller, he noted 18 It's called adolescent antisocial behavior.
19 he liked — he used humor, he was provocative. 19 Tt oocurs 50 frequently that we don't look
20 He liked to do those things. But I did not get 20 at it as a mental disorder because many people
2 an impression from Mr, Fuller that he lacked 21 in their younger years begin to act cut and do
22 respect for pecple in general. 22 things in Lhat fashion, particularly if that
pxi He did aduit in the incident with the police 3 behavior is fueled and the impulse problems are
2 officer that he was —- he was dismayed and 2 fuelad by alcohol.
25 angered about what had happened, and that he was 35 ¢ Now, you agree that past hehaviors is a
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1 predictor of future behavior, don't you? 1A Ub-hoh,

i T think in general, yes, that's true. 20 eg"?

3 So we can lock at somebody's past to see what we 1A Yss,

4 can expect them to do in the future? 4 Q  What does that mean?

5 Well, that's the whole point of what I was 5 A Well, you have to put it within a context.

6 saying here. Yes, you can, if — particularly 5 Okay. ‘The psychological festing, the power

7 if their behavior is A, they ave — if they're 7 oriented, wanting to be in control and do things
8 not bright, they don't uncerstand the problems 8 might fit a lot of political figures. Political
g or the behavior; and B, their behavior is 9 figures are power oriented and they want to have
10 generated by some personality disorder or 10 pover and do things. It could also be in a more
11 characteristic that, despite given the n negative light of being power oriented and
12 information of the behavior not being adaptive, 12 behaving in an inappropriate manner.
13 they continue to do that, That ocours with 2xis 13 So the testing is saying individuzls who
1 11 disorders and often with addictions. 14 have certain types of profiles want to be in

15 But he has not been diagnosed with any 15 control, and they want to have the power to be
16 psychological. disorder or personality disovder; 16 in control.
] is that true? Ik One of the things contol allows us is to
18 That's true. 18 have power; one thing power allows us is to have
19 I'm looking at page 3 of your report. Can you 19 control. So it would be on that type of
20 o to that. In the middle of the page, he said: 20 dimension, he's going to try to find a way to do
21 It wasn't wmtil I received the camplaint shout 21 that.
2 what I said to the officer that I realized I had 22 0 Docter, you'ze mot suggesting to the Comaission
23 been out of Line. I mst have been naive or 23 or the Suprere Court that the conduct that
! too egotistical to realize my conduct was 2 Juke Fuller has engaged in should be tolerated
25 arrogent, rode, and disvespectful. Then came 25 from a judge, are you?
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1 the second conplaint and it really hit home. 1 &2 No, I'mnot suggesting that.

2 what was the second complaint? 7 0  End you're not suggesting or you can't make any
3 I'm ot sure what he was referring to. 3 gquarantees it won't happen again, either, can

i Vas that the formal complaint? g you?

5 T believe that's what he meant, that's what he 5 A Ican't meke a quarantes that it will or will

6 said. 6 not happen again.

7 Ckay. So did you gather from talking to him 7Q  You're only leoking at this from the perspective
8 that it never -- he never really realized the 8 of Judge Fuller, not the judicial system as a
g seriousness of the matter wtil he got the 9 whole, on what effect the disclosure of this

10 formal complaint? 10 might have on the public's perception of the

11 1 - until these things happened, he didn't i1 judicial system, are you?
12 realize the seriousness of the matter, was the 12 & No, I'mnot.
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impression I got.

2nd from the psychological testing en page 4,
you've used these phrases to describe the
results of the M®I. That he's anger prone;
correct?

Yes.

That he has problews with irritsbility and a low
frustration tolerance; correct?

Yes,

That he has difficulty holding his tesper;
correct?

The testing says he could have that.

Yeah. Bt times, he's power oriented?
158

MR, SCHAFFER: Okay. That's all.
MR, HIEB: I've got nothing.

EWZMINATION BY MR. PAIMER:

e

I have a question. Dr. Arnio, what did

Judge Fuller share with you? I mean, were you
provided a copy of the transcript from any
proceedings or did he show you the actual
coplaints that had been made? How was that
commmicated to you?

(n the morning he met with me, he showed me the
coplaints that were made and his responses to
the complaints.

Ckay.
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1 EXAMINATION BY JUDGE WILER:

1A I told him then, I gave it back to him. The

2 first morning I met with him, I wasn't sure I 29 I have one question, too. This might be kind of

3 was going to eveluate him. I wanted him to 3 dmb. In Axis IT diagnosis is the ane that you

4 think about it and meke sure that, you know, it 4 said is harder to change?

5 wouldn't be 2 problem, someone frem this regicn 5 A Yes.

5 evaluating him, somebody that knew him. Then I 6§ Q  Can you give examples of what an Axis II

7 told him I wanted that back so T could again 7 diagnosis would be?

8 look at it when I wrote my report. 8 A  Well, there's really three clusters of

9 At that time, he also provided me the report 9 personality disorder. Cluster A are pecple who
10 from Mr. Nelson. 3o I was able fo read through 19 are paranoid, schizophrenic, schizoid
1 the report from Mr. Nelson and so forth after 1 personalities, They just think different and
12 having written the report. There was nothing in |12 they'11 take a piece of information and really
13 the original indictment or in the report from 13 imply their own interpretation of that.

u Mr. Nelson that would change what I have said in u Cluster B tends to be more borderline
15 this report. 15 personalities. These are very dramatic people,
16 MR. PAIMER: Okay. Thank you. Did that 15 antisocial people. You know, they just -- they
17 prompt. anything from —- 17 just can't go by rules,

18 MR. HIER: MNo. Mo, sir. 18 And then Zds [sic] C is wore in tems of
i MR, SCHRFFER: Mo questions. 19 anxiety-prone, obsessive-compulsive personality
20 MR. PAIMFR: Anybody else? 20 disorder, or deprassive kinds of symptoms that
21 EXPMINATION BY MS. CHRISTENSCM: 21 are just there for a very long time and it
22 @ T just have ane clarification. It was in your 2 hecomes incorporated in how they deal with the
23 report, it was the botbom of page 4, and you 23 world.
24 say: This stress may seem much more aware of 24 MR, SCHAFFER: That prompts a question for
25 envirormental complexities tham is usml, It 25 TE.
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1 also sugpsts that he may have a tendency to 1 RECROSS-BAMINATION BY MR. SCHAFFFR:

2 blur ego boundaries. 9 Q  And I guess those of us that have lived around

3 Hould vou please explain that a little bit 3 or been around aleoholics and seen them go

1 more, please. 1 through treatment, I assue you've been in that

5 A Okay. If I'mblurring ego boundaries, something 5 position yourself with patients that you've

3 Iwill — I'm — an example of that in my life § dealt with? Have you?

1 would be, I really want something so I corvince 7 A The questicn is, do I have patients who have

8 myself my wife wants it, too. This is good for 8 been in treatment? Yes.

9 the both of us, There's an ego bomndary. It's 9 ¢  Ckay. There's kind of an empression that I've
10 really what I want, and now I'm including her 10 heard that sometimes people that go throuwp the
11 within that. 11 treatment, quit drinking, sometimes even after
12 In Mr. Ruller's case, from the things that 12 the treatment, they are still jerks. Right?

13 I've read, I think it's possible that some of 13 You've heard that expression?

u his comments, he felt people might be getting a 14 A Dry drunks?

15 kick out of or enjoying. That he made those 15 @  Yes.

16 comments and therefore other pecple propably — 16 A Yes, I've heard that expression.

1 rather than, What the heck did you just say? 1 MR. SCHAFFER: That's all.

18 Okay. 18 EXAMINATICN BY MR, DRAVELAND:

19 S0 the testing was consistent with this kind 19 ¢  Just ome quick question. It's on page 4, also.
20 of blurring that, okay, in absence of feedback 20 Mr, Schaffer asked you a mmber of questions
21 that no, my wife doesn't want that. My wife — 21 that you agreed with, based on your analysis of
22 then I would go about thinking well, it's good 22 Mr. Fuller, where you related in your report
23 for both of us. 23 that he may be anger prone, have irritability
2 MS. CHRISTENSN: Thank you. 2 problems, low frustration tolerance, could be
2 25 arqumentative, may have difficulty holding his
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temper, may be power criented. Yet in the very

1 1 fourth-generation zttorney in his family. And

2 last sentence of that paragraph, it says: But 2 he, in my interaction with him and talking with
3 there are no indicatiens of interpersonal 3 hin, seems to be willing to do anything that he

g fimetioning prablens in this protocol, 4 can. His motivation is very high to do anything
§ I'm struggling with how, with that litany of 5 he can to change the way he's been reacting.

6 issues, that none of those become interpersonal & He's seen this and says this was wrong.

7 functioning problems. 7 tow, I think that he has the intelligence,

8 That's a very good question. I think —- I want 8 he has a nomal profile with those traits, but

9 you to keep in mind that this profile is within 9 it's still within normal limits. Everybody is
10 normal limits, Okay? Now, when you're 10 ging to score someliere on that test. And he's
11 interpreting a nomal profile, some of the 1 extremely motivated to make changes with that.

12 statements can sound more extreme. 12 So that's when I talked to you about, you

13 Alse, most prevalent, the most potent 13 know, the changeability, the possibility in

¥ | personality factor is not in the personality 1 tems of what I'm seeing with hin, based on what
15 test., Tt's your intelligence. Very intelligent 15 T've known, if it's correct, of him in the past,
16 peopie can have these feelings, these types of 6 is where I came to those conclusicns.

17 things, and it can take a very different 17 MR. DRAVELAND: Okay. That's all I have,

18 expression. 18 MR. PAIMFR: Thanks, Tom.
19 Now, inmy — in the personality profile, 19 MR, BIEB: Nothing.
20 people who are having higher scores under all 20 MR. SCEAFFER: Mo further questions.
21 probability will have interpersonal 21 MR. FAIMER: Thank you, Dr. Arnic.
22 relationships. It doesn't say he couldn't have. 22 {Witness left the room.)
23 It -- it's saying that there's not an indication 2 (Fehibit K was marked for identification.)
2 that the profile is not elevated to a point u
25 where you would. 5 [
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1 Now, if you take a nomal profile and 1 ROBERT HOLMES,

2 certain configurations, you can elevate it out. 2 called as a witness herein, having been first duly

3 You say, What is the likelihcod this person is 1 sworm, was examined and testified as follows:

4 going to have perscnal problems? You'd say, 4 DIRECT DXEMINATION BY MR. HIEB:

5 Well, really likely., I mean, that profile is s0 5 Q  Could you state your name, please.

) high, even if they are really intelligent, they 6 A Bob Holmes.

1 will have problens. ' 7 Q  And I'mgoing to place in front of you a copy of
8 {r if you take a profile and say, Okay, what 8 vhat I believe to be all of the notes that you

9 would be a mitigating ciramstance? These are 9 have provided, along with --
10 sove traits or pecple are prone to this, what 10 & Ch, yesh.
1 would mitigate against this? Well, one would be 11 Q I thought your Curriculun Vitse was in here
12 motivation, you know, certain kinds of things in 12 soreplace.
13 certain circumstances. Even a person who's 13 A Yes, it is.
it anger-prone tends not to exhibit that in church 14 Q  Ckay. Yes, it is. And I helieve that's been
15 to people, That's a soclal situation. 15 marked as Exhibit X; is that correct? Yeah,
16 And the other thing that would mitigate 16 that's Exhibit K.
17 against it is motivation. How, when I'm talking 17 MR. HIEB: Once again, Chairman Palmer, does
18 to you about the change T believe that 18 everybody on the Comnission have this to review?
19 Mr. Fuller can make, these are characteristics 19 MR. PAIMER: This is the -
20 there. He's, you know, more likely than 20 JUDGE WIIBUR:  That one is thicker Than
2 sonebody without this profile to have 21 what I've got.
22 anger-proneness and so forth, but he's also 2 MR, HIFB: Iooks thicker than what I've got,
pi extremely bright. 23 too. Tom made the copies.
b1 And the other factor is, in my history with 24 ¥R. PAIMFR: To clear up the record, I think
5 him, he's — as I understand it, he's a 25 vhat happened is, you got his notes, the rest of

leg
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1 it is a fom. As I understand, it is used in 1 for the first time yesterday. The notes we have
2 the anger managenent program, but there's a lot 2 indicate that the first record that we have is

3 more to it. That's all that Mr. Holmes has, and 3 from Octeber 20, 2010, Were you actually

§ there's a blank anger management pregram form. 4 mesting with and providing assistance to

5 I'm making that up. 5 Juige Fuller before that time?

6 MR. HIER: No, you've got it richt. That's 6 A Yes. I don't know the exact mumber, but I

1 exactly what it is. It's behind here as part of 1 believe I met with him three times prior to

8 this exhibit. 8 that.

§ Q (EY MR, HIEB:) Could you please go ahead and 9 Q  Mow, in relation to that, I asked you vy sae
10 let the Commission members know what you do for 10 of the words —

1 a Living. 11 A Right.

12 & Now, I'mjust curious. Am I speaking to you or 12 Q == on the first page of Exhibit K are redacted
13 an T speaking to — 13 or blacked cut.

14 @ Spesk to them, 14 A Right.

15 & Good. All right. T ama counselor, 15 0 Can you provide that explanation?

16 psychetherapist at Behavior Management Systems 16 A Yes. There was somecne participating in that

1 in Rapid City, where I do generic, general 1 session that I have — from whom I did mot, just
18 practice of counszling and psychotherapy with 18 no particular reasen, did not cbtain permission
19 people who seek my assistance. 19 to release information that was generated by

20 @  And does your — the Corricuhm Vitas that is 20 that individual during this meeting, and T just
21 part of Bxhibit K, does that accurately reflect 21 deleted it.
22 your training — 22 Q  Ckay. let's go up here on the first page of

23 A Yes. 23 Exhibit K. The box, Family Therapy, is checked.
4 Q - and experience? 2R Correct.

% A Yes, it doss. 25 Q  Was that the nature of this session?

169 1m

1 Q  2nd Exhibit K, which I have placed in front of 18 Yes.

2 you, are those copies of 2ll of the treatment 2 9Q It was a family therapy session?

3 rotes that you generated zince Octcber, along 3 A  Yes.

1 with your Curriculum Vitae, and the anger t Q Bl right. And did the sessions that came prior
5 Tenagement program — 5 to Octaber 20, 2010, were they family thexepy

6 A  Yes. Well, what you have —- 3 sessions, also?

1Q - Gocuments? 7T A Yes,

8 & Vhat you have here is, after my Vitae, you have 8§ Q Is that the reason why there's another pevson

8 some forms that are used, called an anger log, 4 present?

10 in the anger management program. And then at —- 10 Yes.

n after the about seven of those forms, if this i1 All right. let's talk about why — let's talk
12 was copied exactly, there is a something that 12 about why Pete came to you the first time.

13 locks like this that says, Anger Management 13 &2 Ckay.

14 Progran. And that is a workbeok that we use in 14 @  vhat was the reason for it?

15 the program that T provide to people who 15 & Agein, il's gifficult. I'm addressing the ——
16 participate in that program. 16 9  Yes, you address them.

17 MR. HIEB:; Ckay. I would offer Exhibit K at 17 & Judge Fuller came to see me for assistance with
18 this time. 18 his relationship with his wife.

19 MR. SCHAFFER: Mo objection. 19 Q  Okay. And why don't you please describe that.
20 MR, PAIMER: K will be received. 30 A Well, the best way to describe it is fo describe
1 Q {BY MR, HIEB:) Ckay. Iet's talk about, when 21 it in tems of the goals that we had for those
22 did you first meet dudge Fuller? 2 conversations, and the goals were that they
A it was in the end of Jmme, I believe, of this 23 would have more time together that was more

2 year. 2 enjoyable for both of them, dbviously indicating
25 Q  And I want to clarify that. I found this out 25 that this was not something that was happening
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to their mutual satisfaction at that time.

1 1 ¢ Bl right. MNow, you've talked about what you've
2 2nd also, that he would — actually, it's 2 been doing, let's talk about that specifically.
3 interesting, I just locked at that this morning 3 What is the program as it relates to

4 and what T had writen down on the plan that 4 Judge Fullex? ¥hat have you been working on and
5 Judge Fuller signed was, Shut up and listen, 5 what is the desired effect, if you will?

6 okay, which was a shorthand, I think, for paying ¢ A  Okay. So I'Ll speak to what is refiected in the
1 more attention to what his wife was saying and 7 notes that you have starting on the 20th of

] wanting and feeling, and less time and energy 8 Cctober because that's the time when — I'm not
9 expressing himself. Would be sort of a 9 going to look at my notes, but I believe that's
10 shorthand of saying what we were working on. 10 the time when we started a conversation about
1 Ired we did that for three sessions prior to the 1 focusing on this as an anger, hostility issue.
12 cne that you have a note for. 12 And I introduced to him either at this
13 9 Now, would it be fair to say that this, the 13 sesston or the subseuent session information

14 issues relating to the proceading we're here for 14 shout our anger menagement program and how that
15 today, first came up in the session — 15 worked, what it was, et cetera.

16 & Yes. 16 nd we did have a conversation sbout him

17 Q@ = of — on Ocbaber 20, 2010? 11 participating in a group, which he was

18 A Correct. 18 interested in. And then subsequent to that we
19 Q@  All right, Did there end up being a connection 19 decided for various reasons, some of it having
20 betwezn the two? 20 to do with his position as a judge who may

21 B Yes, I think so. 2 actually have been involved in ordering someone
22 Q  Describe that. 22 to that program as a judge, that we could do
23 & Yesh. Well, you know, you have here information 23 this individually.
24 sbout this anger management program, and I would 2 Vow, 1'11 say that I usually doa't do this
25 be clear that I use the title, Anger Management 25 individually with people, and part of the reason
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1 Program, because pecple have some sense about 1 is that, how would T say this, it's one thing to
2 what that meams. And ulfimately it's a 2 be in a group and to deliver a program,

3 marketing tool, okay, the title, 3 material, informaticn to pecple, and some people
4 But it doesn't actually capture what we do 4 are interested and some pecple are not. But

5 because we could say that is an anger reduction 5 it's certainly another thing to try to do that

6 and aggression management program is what the 3 in a one-on-one session when the person is not

7 program is. And in — I know that the issue 7 interested.

8 before —- this is a Conmission; is that correct? 8 S0 anticipating oftentimes with the people

9 Okay. Before the Commission, has to do with g who come o see me that there's a lot I would
10 demeancr, remarks that Pete has made that might 10 want to provide them, if they are net interested
11 be interpreted as hostile, rude, something like 11 in it, I just choose not to do that because

12 that. Okay. And there was some similar issues 12 it's — it's not satisfying, okay. And also,

13 in the marriage as well. 13 with the group, it works better.

14 I 50 when we started working on those 14 Bit in Pete's case, I got the sense that he
15 things, and then it came to the sessions that he 15 was — every time I brought wp something, an

16 had this, I don't know what it is, reprimand or 16 idea, a question, an cbservation, a request for
17 whatever, investigation from the Conmission, it 17 him to observe himself and evaluate himself and
18 was sort of part of the same kind of thing, 18 his behavior, he did it with a very high level
13 okay, which one could say invoived saying things 19 of attention, and with a very excellent result
20 that were impolite, rude, maybe perceived as 20 in terms of self-awareness, behavior change.

21 hostile by others, and saying them without 21 So I thought delivering this one-on-one with
22 thinking about them prior to doing that. So 22 him would be more fruitful and satisfying, as
23 that was the similarity between what we did 23 fritful and satisfying as doing it as a group.
pl| before and what we do —- did as reflected in 24 8o based on those reasons, I starfed to do
Pkl these notes. 25 this program individually with him, which also
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1 provided us with the opportunity to alter the 1 regponse that one can alter. And what we —

2 sequence with which this material was delivered 2 Q@ When you vere asking him — I don't pean to

3 and worked on to fit whatever his particular 3 interrupt you. But when you were asking him to
¢ situation, intersst, concern was at the time. 4 rate both of them —

5 Q  let's talk specifically — 5 A You rate them separately.

¢ & Tailor it to him. 6§ @  Right. You rate, How much anger am I feeling?

7 Q  -- what were some of the tools you've given 7 A Right.

8 Judge Fuller and how have you asked him fo apply § 0  Then I rate, What vas the response that I gave
9 those and then the responses you've achieved. 9 to it?

10 & Yeah. The — the program and the material that 10 &  Yes. Right.

il I use with people involve several things. First 11 ¢ That's all I wanted to know.

12 thing it involves is a self-awareness, a 12 A What did I do, what did I do afterwards.

13 menitoring of one's angry emctions, angry 13 Q Al right.

14 feelings, and aggressive - we call it 4 A Sothe first thing is the awareness, and one of
15 aggressive, you could call it hostile, 15 the intended results is that -- is that many

16 behaviors. 16 peopie -~ in fact, most pecple I've run into who
17 rd the method that I use to assist people 17 T've spoken to about this, these ideas, okay, if
18 to chserve that is a rating scale, where one 18 they are interested and pay attention and try to
1% would rate their angry feelings or emotions and 19 apply it to themselves, most pecple I've mum
20 also rate the intensity of the aggressiveness of 20 into learn a very interesting thing shout

21 their behaviors on a scale of 0 to 10, 0 being 21 themselves, which is that if you rate the anger
22 none and 10 being an extreme. 2 from 0 to 10 and you rate it based on your body
23 So anger, for example, a 10 or a 9 might be 23 arousal, your feelings, that could be — a lot
24 considered rage, and 1 or 2 or 3 or 4 might be 2 of people, it's easily asscclated with the

23 building frustration or annoyance. And then you 25 retion that you've got, like, adrenaline. It's
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1 get into 4, 5, 6 7, 8, vhere you might be 1 what yon feel in your body when you're anxious,
2 calling that anger, more anger or less anger. Z a little nervous.

30 Ivent to interrupt you because to make suwe 3 That what most people come to realize is

4 that I uwnderstand this and that the Commission 4 that they are, I'm going to use in quotes,

5 wmderstands it — 5 "angry," more than they know. Because anger

& A Un-huh. 3 doesn't start necessarily at an 8, 9, or 10, It
79 ~- you've got anger, which as I understand is an 7 might start at a 4, 5, 6. It might start as

8 emotion, 8 anneyance.

9B Yes, 9 S0 the notion here is to assist people to
10 @  2nd you've got an agoression, which as I 10 recognize that they are becoming, I use the word
11 wderstand is a response -- 11 "aroused” with adrenaline, at levels that

A Well —- 12 previously escaped their notice. Or if they
3Qg —o— 13 noticed it, it escaped their attention and

14 A Ckay, That's very good. Very good, Because — 14 recoqnition thet it was somehow significant or
15 because if someone has a preblem, has & 15 important.

16 difficulty with behaving in ways that people 14 2nd so one of the —- you're interested in ne
17 syperience as aggressive, sometimes they think 11 addressing not only what I offered, but Pete's
18 of it as a response, okay, and one could call it 18 response; Tight?

19 a response. 19 Q  Right.

20 But what we try fto comunicate and have 20 & Correct. Mnd his respense to this was to say,
21 people think about is that it's a respense that 21 Wow, T never even realized this., I never

2 you can — you can cheose to do or not. So you 22 thought about this. This is, like,

3 ooild do & different response. So it's not a 23 enlightening. It's an eye-opener to realize

24 regponse like if, you know, the doctor hits vour b1 that vhereas previcusly my threshold for saying
25 knee and, you know, the reflex, okay. It'sa 25 to myself I'm angry was maybe a 5 or 2 & hut
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now I realize thet T can start saying that to

1 1 sone of the thoughts that he had, for example,

2 myself when T'ma 1 ¢r a 2, which gives a person [ 2 when he was dealing with his wife, or dealing

3 a great advantage, which is that they can 3 with people in court or something like that, ad
4 utilize tactics or strategies to calm themselves 1 what these were, were classic anger thoughts.

5 down and stop that arousal or tactics and 5 And s0 T used those To illustrate anger

6 strategles to stop the behavior that might 6 thonghts. And it was that process that got us

i follow in the arousal. 7 into exploring the whole issue of angar

8 They can use them at a lower level, and 8 thoughts, which we did over the last couple

9 therefore usually be more successful at that. 9 sessions.

10 Because if you wait until you're highly aroused, 10 And then a third thing that we do, that is
11 it's often harder to control that behawior. 1 a — it's a combination of A, being able to calm
12 ¥hat are the tactics and the strategies that 12 yourself down physiologically, and B, avoiding
13 you've tanght Pete or that you teach pecple who 13 aquressive behaviors when cne is aroused is

1 participate in this program to help deal with 1t something that has been thematic through the

15 that feeling of arousal, that feeling of 15 last few sessions that we had, which is the one
16 adrenaline? 16 of noticing your arousal, and when you notice

17 Yegh. Well, the — there are two things that — 17 it, stop, which is actually the same idea as

18 well, one — two things that we do to help 18 what we I said earlier, which is, Shut up.
19 pecple with calming their emoticnal arcusal, 19 Okay. lLike, You want to say something, don't.
20 vhich is the anger part of it. 26 Okay.
21 And the first thing usually is a process of 2l &nd T believe one of the things that we ~-
22 body relaxation. And this is what you might be 22 we talked about was, he said usually if he's on
23 familiar with, when scmeone says, I took a deep 23 the bench, for example, he's got a pitcher and
24 breath, ckay, or, I walked around the block. 24 some water. ‘Well, if you want to say something
25 Ckay. That's an example of changing the 25 and you're running -~ you decided that you want
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1 chysiological process. 1 o stop and think because you notice you're

2 I generally do a specific series of brief 2 aroused, say to yourself, well, maybe you

3 relaxation fechniques that I run soaebody 3 should —- should withhold what you might feel

¢ through in my office and then have them practice i inclined to say and pour yourself some water and
5 it on a (D that they listen to that takes about 5 take a drink.

6 30 mirutes. 6 And if you need to excuse yourself —- and I
7 But we have not gotten to that yet because T don't know what you do as the judge —— fut go o
8 we started with the second tactic that I use to 8 the bathroom. Okay. Something like that, okay,
9 help pecple calm themselves down in their 9 which places a time to A, calm yourself down, B,
10 arousal, which is to alter their — what they 10 think things through in a different way, so that
1 think. 1 you can calm your arousal dowr and then be less
12 The general idea is that anger is an arousal 12 inclined to feel the pressure to say or do
13 of the body that is pretty much distinguishable 13 something that you might later thin was not
14 from anxiety. And the difference between anger 14 such a good idza.
15 and anxiety is that anxiety is one where one 15 S those are the strategies and tactics that
16 thinks about, It's dangerous, I'm afraid, I'm 16 are used for calming arcusal.

17 nervous, wheress anger is an emoticn in which 17 @ The last thing I want to discuss with you,

18 the arcusal is accompanied by thoughts that 18 you've heard the temms, there's a theory of

19 someone 1s doing something wrong, that's blame, 19 change, I think, that's generally accepted in
20 or someone should change, they should be 20 the psychological commmity —

21 different. 21 A Uh-hoh.

22 Bnd in working with Bete, teaching him about 22 Q -- and I think it has to & with people change
3 these particular anger thoughts and then getting 23 in stages.
2 to the question of what can you substitute for 26 & Okay.
25 these came up, because he started talking about 25 Q@ Bre you familiar with that?
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1A Yes. 1 Then vou have action, and action is a stage
2 Q  Can you describe that for the Comission — 2 in which the commitment to change and the plans
3 A Oy 3 are carried out and then you begin te see
1 Q¢  — as kriefly as you can, and then describe for 4 change. And when change has been ocourring, and
5 them wheve you see Pete being in that continmm. 5 they have different time periods for this, but,
6 & COkay. I'Ildo it first as briefly as T think I 6 like, for a week or two, okay, that's the action
7 can. 7 stage.
8 Q Sure 8 g change, full change has not cocurred,
9 A Then if you want to - 9 the full desired change has not occurred, but
10 Q9  That's fine, 10 you're clearly on the path,
11 A -~ get sone clarification. But same very good 11 Then once the full desired change has
12 research on pecple who have quit smoking and 12 oocurred, then you have a maintenance stage
13 quit drinking and started to exercise and eat 13 where people — the new behavior is not yet a
14 better has led to a realization from studies 1 habit, which means they have to attend to it in
15 that have been done that this is the way all of 15 sote way. And this might be someone who's
16 us tend to change, something we have in commwon, 1% drinking goes to BA meetings, for example, or
17 whether you're getting counseling or going to 17 like that.
18 church or whatever you are doing, what gets 18 Then once that behavior is so second nature
18 people to change and how they change. 19 that there 15 a very low likelihood that even
20 And there are predictable stages pecple go 20 wder certain stresses the person will return to
2 through. And the first stage, which doesn't il the previously undesired behavior, that's called
22 sound like a stage at all, it's called 22 termingtion. There's no need to even think
23 precontemplation, which means you're not 23 about it. Okay.
2 thinking sbout change. 2 So with regard to Pete, T would have to say
25 You may have a behavior that people camplain 25 this, there are -- okay. When he came to me the
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1 ahout or you don't like, but you're not thinking 1 first time talking about merital stuff, okay, he
2 about. changing it, for whatever reéascn. 2 was in contesplation regarding these issues,
3 The second stage which Lellows 3 okay.
4 precontenplation is contenplation, which means 4 Very quickly, in fact, within 20 minutes, he
5 that for some reason, usually because you have 5 moved into preparation. Mot yet committed, but
3 new awarenesses of things, new information about 6 willing to be thinking about things that he
7 the possibilities of change and the costs of T might do differently.
8 mwot, you get into the stage called 8 And then the second time that we met, he was
9 contemplation, which means you're thinking about 9 in the preparation and action stage. Had
10 it. Mot taking action, but thinking aboot it. 19 already taken action with — in his relationship
i1 The third stage is called preparation, and 11 with his wife that had made a positive
12 preparation is & crucial and pivotal stage 12 difference.
13 because it's the stage in which someone says, 13 And T would say that overall, in general, he
1 You know what, I'm going to do something 14 has been in the action stage, which means —-
15 different, for whatever reason. 15 again, I'1l remind you two things. One is that
16 Some people think that this requires 16 he's doing things on purpose to make changes,
17 adnitting that you did wrong and that kind of 17 and second of all, these things are being
18 thing, and we discovered that's not necessary, 18 suceessful, Sc that's -
19 ¥hat's necessary is you say, I'm going to be 19 In tems of moving forward, you've gone through
20 different than this particular way., That's 20 the stages, cbwiously. Would it be your
21 preparation. 21 recommendation that there be contimzing
22 And in that stage, pecple make plans for, 22 maintenance on this until there can be some
23 you know, getting help or doing certain things, 23 agreeent between you and him that you've
1 like counting how angry you are and rating it or 24 reached termination?
P having a drink of water or that kind of thing, 25 Yeah,
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14 Is that how it works? 1 MR. PAIMER: Mr. Schaffer.
2 B 1 think that would be very reasonable. 2 (ROSS-EXZMINATION BY MR. SCHAFFER:
30  Chay. 3 Q IsitMr. Holmes?
44 Okay. Now, ususlly with people, I would, if — £ B Mr, Holmes, yes.
5 if — if Pete were in & slightly differert 5 Q  What is your degree in?
6 situation, I would have conversations with him 6 A Social work.
7 about, you know, does he think he can do this 7 Q  BAre you a licensed psychologist?
8 without further counseling, do we have g & N
4 check-ins, whatever. Ckay. 9 ¢  Never have been?
10 And I will do thet with him, elthough I 0 A Mo
i think that there might be some other factors 11 @  Are you a counselor?
12 involved, such as continuing becavse that's kind 12 A Yes.
13 of what's going to show that he's going to 13 ¢ And the first time you saw Judge Fuller was
i continue to work. Chay. 14 when?
15 But another part of it is that there are 15 & End of June, I believe.
16 parts of what I usually provide to people for 16 Q@ Of 20107
17 anger menagement that we haven't gotten to, such i1 B Yes.
18 as the techniques for soothing your arousal. 18 @  Bnd he came to you here sbout marital problems?
19 End T haven't evaluated that with him so much, 94 Correct.
20 but T think this oould be something that could 20 @  Did he relate to you any problems he'd had on
21 be very, very useful, although I think he would 21 the bench at that point?
2 move very fast through this whole process, 22 A M
23 because that's — 23 Q  Did he relate to you any problems about any
24 ¢ Is that based on your experience? 24 caplaints that he may have had?
25 & That's based on my experience with him 25 A Mo
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1 previously. 1 Q A you saw hin how many tizes in connection
? Now, in the anger program, there are three 2 with this family therapy?
3 other things that we do that I think help 3 4 Three.
4 pecple. One, and they have to do with creating 4 @  That was when?
5 relationships with others that 3, decrease the 5 A Jme and thereafter.
6 likelihood of conflict and make conflict 6 0 Do you have your file with you here?
7 resolation more likely., 2nd those are skills 7 A Al Ihawe is the - is the notes that I sent.
8 that might fall into the realm that would be 8 So there were three sessions, an evaluation and
9 callad comenication, okay, such as expressing g two sessions prior to the cne, the first one you
10 appreciation, which is a specific tactic that 10 have on the 2Gth.
11 goes beyord saying thank you. i1 Q  Were you asked not to bring your file here?
12 Creating a positive atmosphere In 24 I-—ro.
13 relationships, listening, which you will 13 @ Iguess I'm curious, how do we get a date for
1 renenber was one of the things that we targeted 14 when you met with him in family therapy?
15 when he first came in for marital assistance, 15 A Well, it was June 20th, scmetime belween
16 and then how to assert oneself in a way that is 16 June 20th and June 28th, and there were three
11 rot experienced as threatening by ancther n sessions, that first one and two others prior Lo
18 person, and I think those would be useful, also. 18 Wednesday, October 20th,
19 @ Okay. 19 0 And vhat months were those other two sessions?
20 & So this would be — if we played this out, this 20 3 I don't know.
21 wiould be five or six more sessions, and then I 71 @ Somy wderstanding, we've got notes for four
22 would have a conversation with him about if and 22 visits, Is that the sum total of it?
23 how we would want to continue to help him 23 A Yes. And there was one subsequent -- whatever
2 meintain the change. 24 you have here, if you'd like me to count them.
25 MR, HIFR: T have no further questicns. 25 @ I have a note, October 20, 2010 —
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1A  Two, three — 1 at ail since his sugpension, yes.

7 Q@  Youcan't talk while I'm talking. 20 So he quit after his suspension?

3 A I'msorry. 3 A I'n ot sure if that's what that means. I

4 0  Imean, so the court reporter can get it down. 4 assume it does, hut —

5 A Sue 5Q  Okay.

6 Q  October 20, 2010; November 8, 2010; Yovemher 15, 6 A — I would let that speak for itself.

7 2010; and Foverber 30, 20107 7Q  Well, do you remenber as you sit here?

8 A If that's — yeah, I quess. 8 L MNo, Idon't remember,

¢ Q0 Are there any notes we're missing? 9 Q  But you certainly remember that he told you he
10 &  There's a note, there's a note from, I think it 10 was drinking when he saw you in June?
11 was last week, that is not here. il B ¥es.
12 @  And that was an individual session? 12 Q 2rd on the note on Noverber 8, 2010, he shared
13 & Correct. 13 at length the nature of the complaints against
14 Q@  In Jooking at your first note, you make this 14 hizm and his responses to these. Do you ses -
15 coment: Be suspended from the bench die to 15 A Yes.

16 rdenass to the oourt. 16 Q — that comment?

17 A Rigt. 17 & Uhhuh.

18 @ T assume that's something he told you? 18 §  What did he tell you about the complaints

19 A Yesh, I --1I choose to write my notes with — 18 against him?

20 besically everything that I say, write down, is 30 & He told me about saying that a policeman was
21 what the person said unless it's clear that it's 21 racist, and some other things that I den't
22 a coment that I'm making. Okay. 22 recall.
23 Q  Then it says: He spoke at length about how he 73 0 Ind you also said, 2nd his responses to these.
bl has come acress as rude, acknowledging he needs 24 B Yes.
25 to rein in his negative coments, and saying 25 0 Vhat were his responses to these complaints?
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1 that he wouldn't be in this mess if he had come 1 A s far as I recall, and might nof have been in
2 to FX a year ago. 2 this session, but at some point he told me that
3 A Right., RX, counseling treatment, 3 he provided written responses im which he pretty
4 Q@  That's what he told you? 4 mich —- might have been 2 small deviation from
5 A Yes. 5 this, but he admitted to the facts of the

5 Q@  Sohis response to the suspension was if he'd 6 conplaints, okay, that he did what was said he
7 only gone to counseling a year earlier, ha 7 did, and that also he said that this conduct was
8 wouldn't have been here? 8 inappropriate for him on the bench.

9 A Well, that's what he said, yes. 9 0  And he told you it wes in violation of the
10 9  Ckay. Then you say: Be has not been drinking 10 Judicial Code of Conduct?

11 at all sinoe suspension, as this helps keep him 11 & Violation of the Code, yes.

12 at the top of his game, end quote. 12 @  Then you have this coment: He noted that his
138 Yes, 13 court reporter has told him he's changed since
1 Q Do yousee that? 14 the initial complaint such that he's mot much
15 A Yes, 15 fin to work for anymoze.

16 0 Had he confided in you that he had been drinking 16 & U,
iy 1 until the time of his suspension? 17 Q Do you see that?

18 A fie told — he told me that he had drank alcohol, 18 A Yes,

19 you know, prior -- when I first met with him, he 19 Q  Then you have your note that he basically
20 told me about that, yes. 20 distilled everything down to, Stop if you think
21 @  In Jme of 20107 21 that you'ze going to say something stupid.

2 A Correct. 22 & Right.

23 @ Ind he told you that he didn't quit until after 219  Smtw—

2 his suspension; is that correct? 24 A Right.

%A #Well, he told me that he had not been drinking 25 @ -- basically?
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1 Until thinking it through, correct. 1 Q I locked through this sheet of materials for the
2 2nd did he tell you that was a plan that he had 2 anger managenent program. ‘There's a whole sheet
3 developed after he first came to see you? 3 of things for the person to fill out to

4 Ch, I don't recall. 4 a3sass —

5 Had he told you that was a method of dealing 5 A Uhhuh

6 with bad behavior for a peried of a long time? 6 Q - themselves.

7 I don't recall, T do believe that — just from 7 A Uh-hwh,

B reading the statement, T do believe that he was 8 0  Did he ever d that?

9 indicating that he — well, actuaily I -~ 9 A Yes.

10 actually T — T don't know. I don't know if he 10 Q  Where is that?

1 had been thinking about doing that previously or 11 A T assuwe that he has it.

12 if that was an idea that came from our 12 Q  You don't keep it?

13 conversation about that issue. I don't kmow. I 13 & Correct.

u don't recall. 14 @ $ he would have all of the — all of the

15 I thirk you said you've newer really done this 15 doaments filled out as to how he's dealing with
16 program on an individual basis before, Do you 16 the program?

17 ugually do it in group therapy? 17 A I don't have them. I guess he would have them,
18 1've done variations of this with people, but 18 Let me say — let me say that I'm not sure if he
19 not usually. 13 actually filled out an anger log. Okay.
20 (kay. What's the success rate if you o it 20 That's — that may be what you are referring to,
21 individslly as cpposed to in a group therapy? 21 is this — these things, anger log. I'mnot

2 I don't have enough dafa for that. 22 sure that he did that. Ckay, But about 30

3 Group therapy is important because the parson 23 percent of the people who participate in the

Pl gets feedback from other pecple right there on 2 anger management program fill this cut.

25 the spot; right? 25 @ Do you know what he did?

197 189

1 Mot the way I do it. They get feedback from me, 1 A Yesh, Ilnow. Yes, Ido. I know that he has

2 mostly. 2 come to me with a notepad with notes about his
3 Ckay. 3 anger levels and thoughts and observations and
4 So that would be — that would be no difference. 4 stuff like that. In fact, the last session we
5 The reason — frankly, the reason why the group 5 had, he had two pages of notes that he had

6 therapy works better is two, First of all, I 6 taken.

T can deliver the material that I need to deliver 7 Q  But you don't know whether he's completed the

8 with some qusto and engagement for people. But 8 questions in the forms that you provided to him?
9 if I'm sitting there with somebody who's not 3 A Correct. Yes. And I don't consider that

10 that interested and it's cne on one, I can't 10 significant. I consider it significant if he
1 mister that. Okay. So the person won't get the 1n participates in a way that brings him progress,
12 benefit of that. 12 wiich he's doing. So I don't worry if people do
13 And the second reason why group therapy i3 their homework or mot. What T worry is if they
i works for most people is that they feel the 14 report change. And they can do their homework
15 sense of relief they are not the only people who 15 any way that they like.

16 have this issue, and that's my sense about the 16 @ I notice theve's a form here, Anger Management
17 most important parts. 17 Program Participation Consent.

18 Ch, plus people learn things from others by 18 A Right.

1% hearing how others deal with things, whereas in 19 @ Has he ever signed that?

20 individual therapy, all they learn from is their 20 A No, because he signed a different treatment

21 thoughts and my thoughts. 21 plan.

2 I notice on your November 30th note, you say: 22 Q S0 what form did he sign?

73 Be corpleted HW assign last session. I assume 73 A He signed & case service plan at Behavior

2 that's hemework? 24 Management Systems.

25 Homework, yes. 5 ¢ Ig that a separate entity?
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1 Yezh, Tt's the -- it's the form that had 1 a problen like this hear about it from their

2 written on it those goals about being quiet and 2 families and their spouses well before they hear
3 listening and spending more time with his wife. 3 ghout it from amybody else?

¢ Q  Ckay. I notice on this anger management program 4 A That's often the case.

5 participant consent form, the participant says: 5 Q  That's the case here, im't it?

6 I mderstand that Behavior Management Systems 6 &  Yes.

7 anger management program is a psychotherapeutic 1 MR. SCHAFFER: That's all.

8 progran designed to help participants decrease 8 MR, HIEB: DMNothing.

9 anger, aggression, and the problems they cause 9 MR, PRIMFR: Bny members of the Commission
10 in life. I wnderstand that while most pecple 10 have any questions?

1 who complete the program show a decrease in 11 FXAMINATION BY JUDGE WILBUR:

12 their anger and aggression, results may vary and 12 0 You mentioned that you aren't concerned about
13 are not guaranteed. 13 whether Judge Fuller did the paperwork for the
14 &2 Correct. 14 anger managerent class —
15 ¢ That's tree of Judge Fuller, also, but he never 15 A Correct.

16 signed a form. 6 Q = but your concern is more that be makes
1T A I'msorry. What is true of him? 17 prOgresS.
18 @  That results aren't quaranteed. 18 2 Right.
19 A Yeah. 16 @ How do you assess whether he's making
20 @ Are you the type of counselor that believes that 20 progress -
21 anger and inability to contrel it is a 21 A Right. Good. Yeah.
22 psychological condition or a perscnal failing? 22 @  When ve both talk at the ssme time —
21 & Is this a forced-chcice question? I have to 23 & I'msomy.
2 pick one or the other? 24 9 - she can't write that dowmn, and I want a good
25 @  Can you answer it "yes" or "no"? 25 record -
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1 MR, HIEB: For the record, I don't think it 1A I'm sorry.

2 was a "yes" or "no" question. Maybe it was. I 2 Q  — here, s0—

3 quess it was. 34 I'msorry

¢ B I think that it's a psychelog —- ckay. I think 49 -- if you can restrain —

5 that it's a psychological -- okay. I think it s A Twill Iwill

§ is & failure to exercise behaviors that will 6 Q0  You just didn't. Ckay?

1 iead to the change that people desire. 7 A OCkay.

§ Q (BT MR SCHAFFER:) Bnd this prblem that § Q Al right. Thank you. How do you know, how do
§ Judpe Fuller has has been a condition of long 9 you measure progress?

10 standing. Would you agree with that? 10 A Measure progress by several methods. Cne method
TR Yes. 11 which works very well in individual work is, I
179 Ad-— 12 get reports from him about how things are the
13 & But I would also say that it did not — first of 13 same or cifferent. Okay.

1 all, T would — just to be clear, my expertise it A secord wey I measure progress is that he,
15 is not in evaluating pecple and making 13 as a1l people in the anger program, rake &

16 predictions about future behavior. My expertise 16 report of, an accounting of how often they feel
17 is helping people change. It's what I db. 17 angry at a level 1 to 10 and the hichest level
18 ¢ Chay. 18 of that during a previcus week, and then do the
19 A I believe you got testimony from Dr. Armio about 18 same thing for aggression.

2 evaluation, and T would say that anything 20 And then when I am cone with the program

a Dr. Arnio said would probably trump what T say 21 with the person, they then do the same

22 in tems of diagnosis and evaluation. 2 evalustion for the previous week and we compare
23 0 You're not here to predict his future behavior? 23 those. So that's one.

24 A Correct. 2t A second way that we do that is, T

25 ¢ Would you agree that most often people who have 25 administer an cutcome rating scale. That is a
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instituting the work on the program, that he

1 four-question self-report of how the person 1
2 perceives that they are doing in four areas of 2 certainly was in the action stage with regard to
3 life functicning. And I do that at the 3 his marriage, and I was anticipating that the
4 beginning and at the end and compare those. 4 same thing would oocur, that was -- that made
5 And a third way that I do it is, at the end 5 individuai counseling the appropriate thing to
6 of the program I ask people whether they believe 6 .
7 that their anger and/or aggression has qot 7 and frankly, I think that, in my cpinion,
8 worse, stayed the same, decreased same, or B that decision has turned out 4o be a good one,
9 decreased a lot, or stopped. That's my 9 becanse it's working quite well.
10 Teasures. 10 ¢ If Imight —
11 @  So reaily, none of the vays that you have to 1 MR. BRIMER: Please.
12 measure progress are from an independent source, 129 (BY MR. TREVELAND:) In the first part of the
13 they are all from the indivicial you're 13 question, though, it says, We decided in
14 counseling? 1 kalance.
15 A Yes, unless — unless I happen to have contact 15 A Right. Right.
16 with somebody who is involved with the person, 15 Q So I'm assming there was conversation --
17 9 Ckay. 17 A Right.
1% A Correct. 18 Q - between you and Pete —
1 JUDGE WILBUR: Thank you. 19 A Right.
20 MR. PRIMFR: Tom. 0 Q - that Fete was saying at Some point also,
21 EXAMINATION BY MR. DRAVELAND: il since you've indicated that group therapy tends
22 ¢ 1have a question, You said at one point in 22 o work better, that Pete is saying, I'd rather
23 your testimony - may not be exact here, so bear 2 ot do that.
24 with me. What I wrote down was that growp 24 B Ah. There was another issue. Okay. Yes.
25 therapy generally works bettex for you, in your 25 Thank you. Pete had a concern that, and we
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1 anger menagement classes. 1 talked about this and we talked around it and —
2 The question I have is, on your notes from 2 but he had a concern that to go to the anger
3 November 15th, the first line says: We decided 3 - management program might in some way lead to him
1 that in balance, it would be better if he clid 4 revealing something about the procesdings with
5 his anger treatment in individual counseling 5 this Comission that would be in violation of
6 instead of group. 3 the mule of privacy, that he's not supposed to
7 A Un-huh, 1 tell anybody apout this. And T didn't — this
8 Q  What was the balance that you were making there? 8 is something that's — the legal stuff is new to
9 & Well, let we say something about the —- the 9 me. Ckay. So I didn't lmow. Ckay.
10 situation with people who come to me for anger 10 But. given that T saw no reasons not to do it
11 management, usually. Okay. Probably 1 individually, okay, and T saw that it would be,
12 0 percent, maybe a little more, are somehow 12 from Ay past experience, be likely to work, I
13 under scme requirement to do this. The court 13 decided we would do that.
14 has ordered them, a probation or parole officer, 14 And one of his concerns about doing it in a
15 an employer or a spouse who says, I you don't 15 group wes that there conld be some way in which
16 get help with your anger, you know, something is 16 he might even inacveriently reveal information
17 going to happen. So people are under some b that was -- he wasn't supposed to with regard to
18 compulsicn — capalsion, if that's the word. 18 what's happening with this Commission. That he
19 They feel compelled to participate. 19 would inadvertently reveal something and he
20 Almost always, the pecple who ask me fo be 20 would be in violation, so that was ancther
21 seen individually are the people who are in the 2 reason.
22 preconterplation stage. They are not 22 MR. PAIMER: Prompt anything —
23 interested. Okay. 23 MR. HIEB: I have nothing further.
24 And when I — having been aware, having 24 MR. PRIMER: —- else from anybody?
25 worked with Pete for three sessions prior to 25 [l
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1 RECROSS-FXAMINATION BY MR. SCHAFFER: 1 JUDGE JOHN STMRD,

2 Q  Yesh, I have a question. Mr. Holmes. 7 telephonically called as a witness herein, having

3 A Yes. 3 been first duly sworn, was examined and testified as
40 When you talk about progress, and it's based on 4 follows:

5 reports from him. 5 DIRECT EXEMINATION BY ¥R. NICHOLSON:

6§ A Unteh. 6§ ¢ Would you give us your full name, pleass,

7 Q  How can you fairly chart his progress if all of 7 Judge Simko.

8 this work is being done vhile he's wnder 8 A John Simko.

9 suspension? In other words, he's not in his 9 0 A what's your current occupation?

10 jcb, how does that work? 103 T am a United States Magistrate Judge.

11 & That's good. Good question. Okay. There isa 11 ¢ 2nd prior to being a United States Magistrate
12 principle in theory, in behaviorist theory of 12 Jadge, what was your occupation?

13 human behavior, which is called generalization 13 A Iwas in the practice of law with the law fim
14 of behavior. And what it asserts is that not 14 of Woods, Fuller, Shultz & Smith in Sioux Falls.
15 always, but it's not uncommon for behavior in 150 2nd how —
16 one context to be enacted in a different 16 & Incidentally, the Ruller —- excuse me. [ was
17 context. Okay. 17 going to say the Fuller of that fim was Pete
18 End so the context within which he's 18 Fullar's uncle Howell, for whatever that's

19 actually on a daily basis working on these 19 worth, and I also practiced with Bete's cousing
0 things is in the context of his relationship 20 Bill Raller.

21 with his wife and his children and his 21 (Brisf interruption in the proceeding.)
22 grandchild, who just came to live with him and 2 g {BY MR. NICHOLSON:) I'm trying to adjust the
23 his wife, 23 volume, Judge Simko. Could you say that again,
24 Those constitute the laboratory within 24 please,
25 which —- it's sort of like a — it's sort of 35 & T practiced law with the law fim of Woods,
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1 like a football coach who watches his player in 1 fuller, Stultz & Swith in Sioux Falls before

2 practice and says, Yeah, he's doing great in 2 becoming a U.S. Magistrate Judge. And I said
3 practics, so we'll put him in the game. You 3 incidentally, during that time, Pete's uncle

§ know, you have to wait until the game to find 4 Howell Fuller was one of my partners, as was

5 ot 5 Bill Fuller, Pete Fuller's cousin.

6 But the way I evaluate the progress is, his £ Q Bow long were you a practicing attorney at

1 change in the ereas where he is on the field, 7 Yoods, Faller, Shultz & Smith?

8 vhich is with his wife, his children, and his 8 A Thirty-two years.

g granddaughter. $ Q  Ckay. And what year did you go on the federal
10 @  But the problems that brought him to the 10 maistrate bench?

1 Commission all irvolved his imvolvement in it A I cameon to this job September 1, 2030,

12 dealings with people in his court; correct? 12 Q  Can you tell us what your histery is with

13 A Ag far as I know, yes. 13 Pete Fuller, how you know him.

14 MR, SCHAFFER: That's all. 14 A Well, I can't — first, if you allow me to thank
15 VR, HIEB: MNothing. 15 you and Mike and the Comnission for allowing me
16 MR. PAIMER: Anybody? 16 to testify by phone, I appreciate that very

11 {No further questions were presented.) 17 much, Thank you for that.

18 MR, PAIMFR: Thank you, Mr. Holmes. 18 And I also want you to know that I'm not
19 {Winess left the room.) 19 meking any prepared statements. I'm in the

20 MR, PAIMFR: Iet's go off the record. 20 office by myself, the doors are closed, and T do
21 (Discussion was heid off the record.} 21 not have any notes in front of me and do ot
2 {The noon recess was taken from 2 have any prepared statement. I do happen to
23 1:04 p.m. to 2:02 p.m.) 23 have a copy of the Code of Conduct for

u f 2 United States judges, however, as a crutch to
s I 25 lean on,
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214

1 I first knew Pete when we were both freshmen 1 personality and his character.
2 in law school in 1965. 2 Well, as I said, I've known Pete for scme
3¢ Were you classmates? 3 45 years. We haven't exchanged Christmas cards
¢ & Yes, we were. 4 or birthday cards or visited soclally each of us
5 0  2nd have you considered Pete to be a friend of 5 in his home, but we have seen each other at
6 yours since that time? 6 Bar Association events. And other times when I
7 A Pete has been a friend of mine since that time. 7 happened to be in the Black Hills or he happened
8 Qur contact has not been particutarly frequent, 8 to be here in Sicux Falls, we'd play golf. It
9 but it's like it is with all frisnds, we can g0 9 has not been a close relationship, but I'd like
10 a long time without seeing each other, and when 10 to tell you about the Pete Fuller T know.
u we see each other, it seems like only a couple 11 The Pete Fuller T know is an honorable quy
12 weeks. 12 who is honest. He's professionally competent,
i3 @  When you were practicing law at Woods, Fuller, 13 and he's of good moral character, and I'd like
14 Shultz & Smith, what kind of law did you 1 to tell you what, in my cpinicn is vhat you
15 practios? 15 could expect from him in the future, if you
16 & I was primarily a trial lawyer. 16 chooge to reinstate him.
17 @ A in your practice as a trial lawyer, did you n My thought is that be is capable of being
13 have the occasion to be in front of a number of 18 patient and dignified, respectful and courteous
19 different judges? 19 to those in ocourt with him.
20 A Idid 20 There's been -- Judge Sinko, there's been same
21 ¢ Ad I'm aseuring that as a practitioner, like we 21 discussion in the room today about an old van
2 all do, you drew some inpressions and some 22 that Judge Fuller drives. Do you know the
23 evaluations of the judges that you appeared in 23 history of that van?
24 front of. 2 1 think I do, You know, I know if you ask me
25 B T suppose that happens, yeah. 25 the details sbout the van, T won't be abla to
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1 Q  Ckay. And in your capacity as a trial judge, i tell you. You know, my senior partner,
2 were you an — excuse me, a trial lawyer, were 2 Ted Woods, used to say & lot of lawyers say more
3 you an active trial lawyer? In other words, 3 than they know. I'm going to try fo avoid that.
4 ware you in front of judges on what I guess in 4 Wnat T know about the van is this. Used to
5 our profession would be quite often? 5 belong to Pete's brother, Thad, Thad and Pete
6 A  Well, yesh, I think so. Kind of hard fo compare 6 were close. Thad died at an early age and that
1 except, T quess, by looking at Westlaw sometimes 7 was Thad's van. Thad, T think, had used it in
8 and see how many times your name appears. And I 8 Alaska, and Pete then kept that van, VolkswWagen
g did that when I prepared my application for this 9 bus, and still to this day, so far as T know,
10 job. T attached a copy of Westlaw appearances 19 has it and drives it.
1 that are shown there, and there were quite a 1 T remember one time I saw him in Sicux Falls
12 few. 12 when he had driven clear across the state in it
13 ¢ I'massuming that with your current profession 13 and was still, oh, maybe two-thirds of the way
14 of about ten years and your time as a trial 1 towards his destination, at 45 or 55 miles an
15 lawyer, that you drew sore impressions as to is hour the whole way. That van is near and dear
16 what the characteristics would be of a good 16 to him because it belonged to his brother.
17 Judoe? 17 Cozrect me if I'm wrong heve, Judge Simko, but I
18 & 1'd like to think so. 18 believe that the contact that was initiated
19 Q  All right. And would honesty and integrity be a 13 Tetween the two of us some wesks ago vas
20 cople of those characteristics that you would 20 initiated by you calling me; is that correct?
21 want in a judge? 21 Here's what happened cn that., When I first
22 A Hosolufely. 22 learned about Pete being suspended, I
23 Q@ Tell me a little bit abost your relationship 23 immediately called Pste. I said, Pete, Idon't
Pl with Pete and what your cbservations with him 24 know what happened and T don't really care to
25 over the years have been as far as his 25 kaow and I'm not asking you what happened.

216




217-220

1 What I'n telling you is that T know, because 1 basically bénch demeancr or demeancr in general,
2 T know vou, Pete, that it had nothing to do with 2 and if Pete says he's going to change, given

3 dishonesty, it had nothing to do with you not 3 your history with Pete and what you koow of him,
1 being conpetent. And I'myour friend, I'm here 4 do you helieve he's capable of doing what he

5 to support you. If there’s anything I can do to 5 says? :

6 help you, let me know. 6 A Witheut a doubt. I'mas certain as one can be
7 Pete said, Well, Tom Nicholson is my lawyer. 7 that, while this Commission would perhaps, if

8 You can call him and tell him that. So that's 8 you choose to reinstate him, give him some dos
9 what I did, and that was the end of it until 9 and don'ts, I am as reascnably certain as one
10 sometime later, you called we and asked if I 10 czn be that even without that, whatever lesson
11 woild be willing to testify. 11 there was to be learned has been learmed and

12 End I'm most certainly willing, able, and 12 Pete wotld conduct himself in 2 way which is

13 anxious to testify on Pete's behalf and try to 13 consistent with the way this Comission wants
it offer my opinion, for whatever it's worth, aboat 14 hin to act, and not only this Commission, but
15 what can be expected from him in the future if 15 the entire judicial system. I think Pete would
16 he's reinstated, 16 adjust his behavior even if this Commission did
17 Given your respact and your lifetime employment 17 nothing after reinstating him.

18 in the judicial system and as a lawyer relating 18 Q  Jode Simko, if it came out that ome of the

19 to the judicial system, would you have called me i things that the Cowmission andfor the

20 and offered that support for Judge Fuller if you 20 Suprena Court would reguire of Judge Fuller is
21 thought the characteristics that he possessed 21 that he have — and that counseling recommended,
2 would not do well on the bench? 22 also, that he have kind of an outlet to visit
23 Oh, absclutely not. You know, I — I've got 23 with people about his fealings from time to tire
2 some friends I wouldn't say the same thing 24 or to vent maybe some of his frustrations, kind
25 about. You know, I wouldn't offer testimony 25 of a Liaison/mentor kind of a person, would you
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1 like this for some of my college buddies and 1 agree to be available for him based upen sore

2 their pranks, But Pete, in my opinion, deserves 2 reasonable schedule or formula that would be put
3 my support, and I aw offering whatever support I 3 forth for Fete?

1 can give to him as honestly as I can possibly do 4 & Well, provided I'm a parson that, vou know, when
5 it. 5 he needs a good ear, I'd be pleased te do that.
6 Towr history with Pete, would it indicate that 3 Rbzolutely.

7 when he says he's going to do something, that he 7 MR. NICHOLSON: Thank you. I have no

8 actually does it, carries through on his word? 8 further questions.

g Well, one of the things sbout Pete that anybody g MR. PRIMER: Mr. Schaffer.
10 who knows him knows, is that Pete expects hich 10 MR, SCHAFFER: Can I sit over there?

1 standards from himself. That's been true from 11 MR, NICHOLSON: Sure.

12 when he was a freshman in law school. He 12 CROSS-EYRMINATION BY MR, SCHAFTER:

13 prepared very well, tis strength was his i3 @  Judge Simko, this is Mike Schaffer. Can you

1 preparation, and he expects that same high 14 hear me?

15 standard of conduct about preparation from 15 A Yes, T can, Mike. How are you?

16 %6 Q Good, It's my wnderstanding that you're

i) ate 17 gppearing heve voliuntarily; is that correct?

18 and 10 & That's correct.

19 19 ¢ 2nd your original plan was to drive ower here
2 true 20 and be here in person?

21 is that, as quick as Pete can be to give 1A That's correct.
2 oonstructive criticism, I think he can be as 22 @ You're not here pursuant to any subpoena; is
23 quick to accept constructive criticism. 23 that correct?
24 If I told you that the reason he's in front of 24 A That's correct.

2 this Commission primarily is because of %5 Q
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appropriats for a sithing judge £rom the bench

1 before this hearing, that you're here to give 1

2 opinion testimony and not to talk sbout the 2 to call a police officer a racist in open court
3 facts; is that right? 3 in front of everyone on the record?

¢ A That's exactly —- that's exactly correct. I ¢ B Well, you know, T don't want to — the answer

5 have no information about the facts of this case 5 is -~ how did you ask that? Say that again. Is
3 and my opinion is confined strictly to the 6 this a negative or positive answer you're

7 future and what one could reasonably expect fram 1 1ooking for?

8 Pete Fuller, should he be reinstated. 8 @  Doyou think it's appropriate for a -

%  You're here to testify essentially as a 9 & MNo. Mo, I donot think that's appropriate,

10 character witness for Pete Fuller; is that 10 although, you know, one might want to know what
11 correct? 11 the ciroamstances are. But I would say no,
12 A I think that's right. 12 that's not apprepriate.

13 Q0  Bnd if T heavd you say correctly, you den't know 13 9 Do you thirk it's appropriate for a jude to
14 what happened, what brought him here? it flip the bird, the middle finger of the hand, in
15 & That's correct. Now, let me say this, I have 15 op court from the bench to one of the

16 some vague informstion that I can, of course — 16 attorneys in the presence of his client?

17 I was born at night but not last night, so I can i7 A Mo, Iwould not think that's appropriate.

18 kind of figure out what happened, tut I don't 19 ¢ There wouldn't be any circumstances that would
19 know any of the specifics. 19 warrant that, would there be?

20 @ I dem't want you to offer speculation. Did 20 A Not that I can think of.
21 Mr. Fuller tell you what got him into trouble? 21 @ Do you think it would be appropriate for a
22 & No. He did not. 2 sitting judge in open court to swear and refer
23 Q  Sodo you have any factml — 23 to his clerk as that Goddamn clerk and words to
24 A Ad that's something I don't want to knew. 24 that effect?
25 Q Pardon? I didn't hear you, I'm sorry. 25 MR. NECHOLSON: Your Honor, at this peint
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1 A T said — T said to him when we talked about it, 1 I'm going to cbject. It's beyond the scope of
2 I don't care to know, don't want to know, and 2 direct, and it also gets into testimony that

3 then T followed immediately with my comment 3 Judge Fuller has admitted he cid, and e

4 about I know it wasn't dishonesty and T know it 4 adnitted he violated the Canons by doing it.

5 wasn't incompetence, and I'm here to offer my 5 MR. PAIMER: I understard, but I'm going o
3 help in any way if I can, If I can, let me 3 allow it. You mey contimue, Your cbjection is
1 know. 1 overruled.

§ Q Ckay. Judge, I have appeared in your cowrt. I 8 Q  (BY MR. SCHAFFER:} Do you thirk that would be
9 think of any judge I've ever appeared in front 9 appropriate to refer to a clerk of courts with a
10 of, you treat everyone with the utmost respect. 10 swear word?
11 Would you agree with that? 11 & Hbsolutely not.
12 L Well, I appreciate your comment and I would like 12 Q  You'd never do that, would you, Judge?

13 to think that's true. 133 No, I would not.

11 Q0  You treat the litigents with respect, don't you? 14 0  When is the last time you saw Jude Fuller?

15 A I try to. 15 B Well, the last time I saw Pete, it's been more
16 ¢  You treat the lawyers with respect? 16 than a year. T can't remember. I remember one
17T A T try to. T remember what it was like on the 17 of the last times I saw him, we played golf in
18 other side of the bench, 18 Sioux Falls, and that's been probably as many as
19 @  Exactly. 2And you treat court staff with the 19 three vears ago.

20 utmost respect? 20 ¢  Did you ever appsar in cowrt before hin?

21 I try to. 21 A Tdidnot.

22 And that's what the Canons in the Code of 22 @  Because I think you were actually on the bench
3 Judicial Conduct requive, isn't it? 23 before he went on the bench; correct?

2¢ & T think — T think so, yes. 26 & Correct.

25 Q@ And Judge, would you think it would be 25 @ Chay.
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1 A Correct, 1 Supreme Court for a. Year, I was with the

2 Q  And you are a friend of his? 2 attomey general's office over in the highway

3 A Yes, Iam 3 department for maybe a year and a half, Then I
4 MR. SCHAF¥ER: That's all. § was with the 1.5, Attorney's Office for maybe

5 MR, PRIMFR: Mr. Wicholson, anything else? 5 geven years, I think. Went into private

6 MR, NICHOLSON: Ko further questions. 3 practice in Madison in "76, and then went on the
7 MR, PRIMER: Any mevbers of the Commission? 1 bench in the middle of 2002, I believe.

8 (Mo questions were presented.) § ¢  What — in your background as a private lawyer
9 MR, FAIMER; Judge Simko, this is Cris 9 hefore going on the bench, what primarily kind
10 Palmer. Thank you very much for this tine. I 10 of work did you do?

1 don't think anybody on the Commission has any 11 A Ch, you know, we had a — I did nore litigetion
12 questions. 12 than — but still had an office practice, being
13 THE WITNESS: ALl right., Did I — Cris, I 13 in Madison.

1 heard you identify yourself, and I heard that 14 @  Did you try a lot of jury twials?

15 you were the judicial — did I hear you say the 15 A Yes.

16 Commissioners have no questions? 16 @  Ippear in front of a lot of judges before you
17 MR. PALMFR: Yes, Judge Simko. I'11 move 17 became one?

18 closer to the phone, The Commission has mo 13 & Yes.

13 questions, and Tom doesn't have any redirect, so 19 ¢  Did you do that also when you were in the
20 we thank for you time. 20 U.8. Attomey's Office?

Pl THE WITNESS: I thank you for allowing me to a1 A Yeah, I tried a lot of cases there and, you

22 appear by telephone. 22 lmow, the variety of judges was a little more
23 MR. PAIMER: Rbsolutely. Thank you, Judge. 23 Limited, but still —- and I, you know, but T in
24 THE WITNESS: All right. Bye. pl South Daketa, I tried in front of a lot of
25 MR. PAIMER: Bye, now. 25 judges and some out of state, also.
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1 MR. NICHOLSN: You know, T —- and T can't 149 Hhen you wepe at the U.S, Attomey's Office,

2 remenber who was a part of this conversation at 2 what were your primary duties?

3 the break. But you know, Mike and I, we visited 3 B Well, criginally I started to do a bunch of

¢ about, becanse we have so many people waiting, § condennation cases, but then I got over on the
5 that if it's okay with the Comdssion, that we 5 crininal side and my latter years were all

3 kind of juggle the order a little, and Mike said 6 criminal or primarily criminal,

1 he would like to call Judge Fuller later im the 7 Q  Basically you prosecuted criminal cases?

8 day. 8 A Right,

9 MR. PAIMFR: That's just -- 9 Q  Have you been active in the bar? T mean, have
10 MR. SCHAFFER: That's perfectly agreeable. 10 you held any offices, you been on any

11 MR. PALMER: Just fine. Just fine. 1 commissions or boards?

12 JULGE [AVID GIENAPP, 12 B Yeah, I was president of the stafe bar, I vas
13 callad as a witness herein, having been first duly 13 president of the South Daketa Trial Lawyers

1¢ sworn, was examined and testified as foliows: 14 Rssociation. I was — had a number of committee
15 DIRECT EXEMINATION BY MR. NICHOLSON: 15 assignments in the state bar. I was on the

16 @  Your name is David Gienapp; correct? 16 Judicial Qualifications Comnission and chaired
17 & That's correct. 17 that for four years, I was —- and I just got
18 @  And you're a sitting circuit court judge with 18 off the House of Delegates for the American Bar
18 your main office in Brookings, South Dakota; is 19 Association and was —— not ~— well, both the

20 that correct? 20 House of Delegates, but I was on the Board of
21 A Correct. 21 Covernors for the last three years.

22 Q¢ Canyou just run us through your background a 22 Q  Pasically for the last 30-some years or more,
23 Little bit, your legal background before being a 23 you've been involved in some aspect of the bar,
24 jude, and how long you've been on the bench. 2 either on a committee or a board or some aspect
25 A I started and clerked for the South Daketa 25 where you've been active; ig that correct?
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That would be correct.

1A 1 oot the 0.8, Attorney's Office, T had sam
2 Q  Tou indicated you'd been menber of the Judicial 2 litigation with him, and we — T can't remenber
3 Qualifications Commission. When was that? 3 the nature of it, but we spent quite a little
4 A Good question. I started whenever Dave Vrooman 4 tine together on that.
g was president of the bar, so I don't know. I 5 End then things evolved, we were friends and
6 would guess it would have bean in the '80s £ we'd see sach other at various functions, and he
i sometine, 7 would be in Madison occasionally. And then,
8 Q  Ckay. And have you always been -~ B well, maybe 20 years ago, a growp of us started
9 A Mnd T think — 4 qoing to Green Lake, Willmar, Minnesota right
i0 @ Eocuse me. 10 after Labor Day, golfing for about four, five,
11 A I think Mickelson was governor at that time. i1 six days.
12 §  Have you also represented the Judicial 12 And during that period of time, Pete and T
13 Qualifications Commission as their attorney in 13 were - probably spent more time together than
14 these types of procesdings like we have here? 14 any of the others because I would generally
15 A Yesh, I did on four separate occasions. T think 15 drive up. He'd either meet me in Madison or I'd
16 most of them before I went on the Commission. 16 pick him up at his in-Jaws'. I knew his in-laws
17 @  Ckay. Have you been appointed to any 17 well in Madison, teo, so I'd see him through
18 commissions or study teams by the Supreme Court? 18 them,
19 & Yesh, I'm— I was on the committee that 19 You kept -- other than his — the golf trips,
20 rewrote the Canons after ¥hite versus Minnesota; 20 have you kept regular contact with him over the
21 T wag on the — I'm on the PAC Comittee, Can 7 years?
22 ask Judge Davis what that stands for. I don't 22 Yeah. You know, reqular, I mean, certainly it
23 know what the acrorym stands for. 23 wasn't on a weekly basis, but we'd have
24 And I was on the Bqual Justice Conmmission 2 occasionally phone calls and get together if we
25 that went around to all the reservations and 25 were at bar functions, that type thing.
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1 various other locations to look into racial bias 1 hen you were — after Bete became a sitting
2 in the courts and other aspects of law 2 circuit court judge, did you have — did you get
3 enforcement. 3 a chance to visit with him, particularly on
£ 0  When were you on that commission? 4 these golf trips, about judging and your
5 A Would have been probably shortly after I was on 5 philosophies and those types of things?
6 the bench, a0 I would quess it maybe started in 6 Yeah, no question about it. We would, like I
7 2003 and probably took two years. 7 said, we would probably spend eight hours in the
8 0  Vhen did you start — I mean, what's your 8 car, just the two of us, and that's basically
9 background with Pete? When did you start Y what we talked about, was the law, judging.
10 becoming more familiar with him? Maybe tell us 10 He would ask me things about how I handled
i1 when you met him. Start that way and work us i certain matters, I would ask him things,
12 throwgh your history with Pete. 12 cuestions about how he handled matters, and
13 A TWell, Pete and T were in undergrad together. We 13 discuss the pros and cons of it. I probably
14 knew each other in undergrad. T wouldn't say 1 had —- well, I know I've had more discussions
15 we — we probably socialized some, but not a 15 with Pete about judging than any other judge.
16 lot. ¥e belonged to different fraternities. I i6 Do you get a sense for what his respect ¢r what
17 didn't go to law school at the University of 17 his feelings are about the judiciary and the
18 South Dakota, I went to Wyoming. 18 practioe of law?
19 But T know I had occasions to be with Pete 19 Weil, I mean, yeah, just didn't come from since
20 and Jaoque when we were both in law school in 20 we've been judges. T was on the bench a little
21 Madiscn. She's from Madison. And for a while I pal earlier than him, T always felt Pete had 2
22 was going with a girl that was in her class, and 22 tremendous respect for the rule of law, the
23 50 we'd get together over Christmas, I think, a 23 courts, the procedures, that he viewed the legal
2 few times. 24 profession as a profession and not a job. You
25 And then after we got into the —- after I 25 know, he would be frustrated at times, but he
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1 was trying to, you know, Learn. 1 than a parole agent.

2 And in private practice, I think, even 2 Q  Ome of the issues here in front of the

3 though in the later years I didn't have much in 3 Commission is Pete's ability to handle

g litigation, cne on each side, was very | situations like when he has scmebody in his

5 interested in representing his clients. And 5 courtroom that he maybe has some sense about or
6 when I'd see him, I'd have — occasionally talk 5 some feelings, and he doesn't appropriately

7 about cases. 7 vezbalize or show the proper respect to those

8 If I told you here that the main reason that 8 kinds of witnesses.

9 Pete is in front of this Commission is basically 9 Given your history with Pete and your

10 demeanor in the courtroom, both on the bench and 10 knowledge of him and your discussions with him,
11 informally, maybe even cutside the courtrocm 11 if it was brought to Pete's attention that his
12 itself and the courthouse, have you seen or 12 actions were detrimental to the process, and he
13 heard any of or talked to him at all about that 13 was told how to change and he said he wanted to
1 characteristic or his personality and his 1t change and he was willing to change, would you
15 demeanor and how he likes to control it or rot 15 believe him?

16 oontrol it? 16 A Yes.

17 Mot — not veally. I remember talking to him 170 Adwy?

18 about, you know, where he would be frustrated 18 A Well, first of all, I — hased on, first of all,
19 perhaps with the amount of, the status of 19 based on Pete's tremendous respect for the
20 preparation that would, as I was, that you would 20 system that I truly believe and have got to
21 gee oftentimes, not by what you would classify 21 learn over the years, and I — you know, and
22 as the — T shouldn't say good lawyers, but the 22 not — I don't know any of the, necessarily any
23 lawyers that litigate. But there's — there was 23 of the facts here. But I do know that Pete,
p1| a frustration there I could see, and I had the 2 just through my knowledge of him, is gricker to
25 sae frustration. 25 say what he feels than I might be.
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1 Have you had -~ I think you related to me an 1 Bat T don't think there's any question, if
2 occasion whare — or, at least one occasion 2 that's the problem of saying it right off the

3 where you felt that a witness in front of yourr 3 top of your head and not putting it in writing
4 court was just mot reliable and I think you 4 later on, I quess there's no questicn in my mind
5 related to me an incident about a Wessington law 5 that he would conform to that.

6 enforoement officer. Could you tell the § Q Do you have any doubt about Pete's integrity as
1 Comission about that and how you handled it. 7 a persen and his honesty in dealing with people
8 Weil, yeah, I've had quite a few cases where I 8 and just, I guess, his sense of being a moral

9 didn't feel a witness was relisble. But as far 9 person?
10 as law enforcement was concerned, I definitely 110 & No, absclutely not.

n had a situation in Wessington Springs where I 11 0  Given your history in the bar and how active

12 felt that and made a specific finding that a law 12 you've been, I take it that the practice of law
13 enforcement officer was not credible in 13 and the judiciary means a lot to you.

14 connection with an arrest and his testimony in 14 A Yes.

15 connection with it. And there were two separate 15 ¢ Would you be here offering these coments if you
16 cases. 16 believed that Bete Fuller could not be a good
17 The first one, I didn't make a credibility 17 judge, and that if he has some preblens with

18 finding, but T think I night have made a finding 18 character on the bench, that he couldn't change
19 that his actions were insppropriate. And then 19 ther?
20 in the second one, I definitely made a 0 A No, I wouldn't be.
21 credibility finding. 21 @  HNow, there's -~ there has been some -- I'1l just
22 End T had one other sitvation where I, even 22 very quickly sumarize this to you. There's
23 though the State won, T made a credibility 23 been some testimony by some mental health
24 finding that I can recall relating to a ICI 24 profasgionals, and Bete is currently seeing

25 agent where T just found he was less cradible 25 those mental health prefessionals. If it comes
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1 out of that, and if the Commission wewe to think 1

2 it was a good idsa, would you agree to be some 2

3 kind of & contact ~- it's hard to describe it at 3

4 this point, but a contact person or a mentor or 4

5 a liaison for Pete to discuss his frustrations, 5

6 if he has any to discuss, the pesitive parts, 5

7 just to be an outlet for Pete if it's needed by 7

8 hiw? ’ 8

3 A Yep. Certainly, 9

10 9 How rany years were you & prosecutor? 10

1 A Seven. 11

12 @  Have you ever heard Pete verbalize or say 12
13 anything that led you to believe that he was 13 .
1 anti-law enforcement? 14 {End of sealed testimony.)

15 A No. You know, he, alcng with numerous other 15 ¢ Just before you, we heard from Judge Simko in
16 Judges T*ve been around, have been critical of 16 Sioux Falls, and I asked him the question of
11 law enforcement in specific cases., But no, I 17 whether or not he'd be there to be someone who
18 certainly haven't heard him generally attack law 13 vould visit with and help Pete out if he had
18 enforcament as a whole. 19 issues or questions and so on, and I thirk I
20 ¢ Anything different than your opinion of that 20 asked you that.

2 Wassington officer that we talked about? 21 Would you have any problem, if the
22 & No. 2nd you know, there's - you know, you 22 Commission thought it wes appropriate, for you
23 hear —- T hear it more in my circuit just 23 to visit with Judge Simko occasionally and the
24 talking to judges, and had cne judge that, you 24 two of yon confer and talk with Pete and act as
25 know, in the circuit that disbelieved a law 5 some kind of a team, if need be, just to, you
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1 enforcement. officers so much that he finally 1 know, let him continue with his mental health
2 felt he had to recuse himself on every case that 2 ohjectives and to help him have an outlet for
3 person was in because he couldn't ke fair and 3 those type of cbjectives?

4 inpartial. And -~ but you know, it was an 4 A Hbsolutely. And I'm — I know John well and

5 isolated incident. He didn't broadly attack law 5 we're good friends and would have no problem

6 enforcement. b ching that.

7Q  Now, when you were - at some point earlier in 7 MR. MICHOLSON: T have no further questions.
8 your career, didn't they have a, what I want to 8 CROSS-EXEMINETION BY MR. SCHAFFER:

9 call -- and I think maybe through the Gudicial 9 0  Judge, are you appearing here voluntarily?
10 Qualifications Commission, didn't they have, i A Yes.
i1 vhenever a judoe was experiencing samething 11 9 A I think you told me you set aside a day s0
12 before they, you know — not that — a multiple 12 you could ke here in person —

13 discipline situation, when sowecne was getting 13 A Right.
i their first disciplinary complaint against them W Q -- i that correct? You're not here wnder
15 or a situation was starting to develop, wasn't 15 Subpoena?
16 there something I think you related to me about 18 & o
kY a team of people or judges that would come in 17 ¢ 2nd you're here as a character witness for
18 and maybe help that judge get back on the right 18 Judge Faller?

19 track? 19 & Well, I'm here to answer any questions.
20 {Beginning of sealed testimony.) 20 Q@  But you'd agree you're here as a character

21 21 witness -~
2 22 A Yeah,

23 23 0 - for Judge Fuller? When you drafted the
2 24 Canons, was that recently?
25 25 A Well, the Canons we were involved with strictly
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1 dealt with elections. 1 issues that bring Judge Fuller here, do you?

1 Q Ckay, Gotcha. I'm just going to show you -- 2 & Mo

3 A White versus Minnesota changed everything and... 3 @  He hasn't told you about those?

1Q I'm going to just show you this Camon, it's § A Yo, T haven't talked to him.

5 Canon 28, and ask you to read the last sentemoe 5 Q  Ckay. Do you know if Judge Simko would even be
6 in the record out loud. 6 authorized under the federal system to act as a
7 A A judge shall not testify woluntarily as a 7 mentor for a state court judge?

] character witness. g A Idon't think there's any questicn you could,

9 Q Do you — and read the coment, 9 hut...

10 2 That a judge must not testify voluntarily as a 10 @  You haven't researched that?

11 character witness because to do so may lend 11 & I haven't researched it but, you know, if it's
12 prestige of the judicial office in suppert of 12 okay with Chief Judge -~

13 the party for whom the judge testifies. 13 @ Schreier?
14 0  Had Mr. Nicholson brought that to your attention 14 & — Schreler, you can prefty much do anything if
15 before you stowed up here? 15 you're a federal Judce.

16 A I guess T was — you know, and I had told 16 MR. SCHAFFER: That's all.

17 Mr. Nicholson one time, you know, If you want to 1 MR, WICHOLSQH: MNothing,

18 give me a subpoena, that's fine. But T lock at 18 MR. PALMFR: Any members of the Commission?
19 that Canon as being samething not — many of the 19 One thing fed mentioned to me, I think what I'm
20 instances I prosecuted, judges testified one way 20 going to, Judge Gienapp, is because this record
21 or the other, T look at that as being a pal may be pblic, Jacgue, I'm going to want to seal
22 noncommissioned-type situation. 22 that part or deal with the issue where Judge

23 @ So you con't think that applies here? 23 Connolly's name came up. And we'll make sure
ur Mo 2 that doesn't appear in the record when it goes
25 @  let me ask you this, you said you had a case in 25 wp. 'Thank you. Thank you, Judge.
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1 Tessington Springs where you questioned the 1 (Witness left the room.)

2 credibility of a law enforcement officer. 2 JORN NOOWEY

1A Yes. 1 called as a witness herein, having been first daly

4 Q  Was that in connection with a motion hearing of 4 sworn, was cxamined and testified as follows:

3 some type? 5 DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. NICHOLSOM:

6 A Richt. Yes. 6 Q  State yomr name, please.

7 ¢  That wasn't a jury trial? 7 A Jehn Nooney.

8 A Mo § 0  Ind you practioce law here in Sioux — or in

9 0  Soyouhad to, as a juke, make credibility 9 Rapid City, John?

10 determinations and findings on specific issues? 10 & Yes, I do, Mr. Nicholson.

11 A Right. 11 @ How long have you done that?

12 §  That's different from a juke comenting on a 12 & I'vebsen in Rapid 2 little over 25 years.
13 witness's credibility in a jury trial. 130 Ckay. 2And how long have you been a practicing
14 A Well, yesh. 14 attomey?

15 @ 2nd you told me sbout ancther judge that you 15 A Twenty-six and a half years.

16 knewr that had a problem with the credibility of 16 @  Ckay. Didn't know you were that old.

17 a witness, and he chose to recuse himself 17 A Unfortunately, I am.
18 because he was concernad he couldn't be fair? 18 JUDGE WILBUR: Unfortunately.
19 A After 2 couple, three Instances, I think, and 190 (BY MR. NICHOLSON:) You testified, am ¥
20 whether he's flipped back now, T don't know. 20 correct, before the Commission in a Show Cause
21 §  Bnd just so I'm clear, you don't know anything 21 hearing earlier this yeax?
22 sbout the underlying facts that bring us here; 22 A Yes, I did.

23 is that correct? 23 Q A you were interviewed by Dave Nelson prior to
20 B That's correct. 24 that; is that correct?

25 @  And you don't know anything about the demeancr 25 A Yes, 1 was.
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1 Po you know why Me. Nelson chose to interview 1 recollection, related to the injunctive relief

2 you? Did you do something to prompt that? 2 and then how the case was going to be resolved.

3 No. My recollection is that Mr. Nelson just 3 S0 there were at least a couple hearings, is my
4 called me one day at the office and said he 4 vecollection, tut that's the best I can recall

5 vould like to visit with me and told me the when § aoout. that,

6 and vhere, and T met him and visited with him. ] Ird at some time did Judge Fuller call you at

1 Did he tell you how he picked your neme qut of 1 your office and make scme comments to you?

8 the phone book, so to spesk, or how he fownd his 8 At some time during that litigation, I don’t

9 way into your office? 9 remember when it was, but like T said, the whole
10 T have — he did not say and 1 do not know how 10 thing lasted less than six weeks, I think. I
11 or why. 1 recall having a conversation, a telephonic

12 Okay. I think you related to him, and to a 12 conversation with Judge Fuller sbout some prior
13 certain extent also in testimony here in the 13 Supreme Court precedent as it related to this

1 prior proceeding, that there was an occasion 14 particular cage T was working on.

15 that you had a proceeding in freat of 15 2nd vas that information given to you because —
16 Judge Fuller. I think it had something to do 16 to give you an advantage in the hearing or to
17 with land and the placement of one of the iy kind of give you a heads—up that you were on the
18 coryectional facilities here in Rapid City; is 18 bad side of the law and maybe you should go do
19 that correct? 19 sone research?
20 Yes. T had shared with Mr. Melson my 20 My impression wes that Judge Fuller's question
21 involvement in that litigation. 21 or statement to me was, John, have you
2 Can you tell us what that involvement was. 2 considered how the Supreme Court dealt with this
23 Yes, Back in 2009, the Department of 23 particular case? I think it was a case that
24 Corrections had entered into a contract to buy a 2 Judge Heck had tried down scmeplace in the

25 piece of real property from a client of ours. 25 Sixth Cirauit, is my recollection.
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1 And prior to the closing of that transaction, 1 ind 1t concerned — again, my recollection

2 litigation was commenced by an adjoining 2 is, an issue relative to taxing of gold in the

3 property owner, Mr, Don Percue, to stop or to 3 Homestaka Mining Company, I believe, that Judge
4 get injunctive relief to stop that process. So 4 Ruller had been involved in. It was just more

5 I was involved in representing the setling 5 of a, Jotm, have you Jooked at this case, isn't
6 party's interest in that transaction. 3 this case going to be controlling? How —- you

1 Ckay, And at some point in that proceeding, did 7 know, how are you going to deal with it?

8 it — did a preosdent or authority of prior 8 ind it was more just kind of a question that
g Supreme Court rulings come into play, or was it 9 vas baing raised that he had just called me and
10 part of vhat was going en in & motion hearing or 10 asked me ahout it, so. And I had relayed that
11 some other proceeding? il to Mr, Melson when he and I talked.

12 There was some discussion about prior 12 2nd the case be relayed to you was a case that
13 Supreme Court cecisions on a case that had some 13 ws not favorsble for your position; is that
u relationship to this case, yes. 14 correct?

15 Can you tell us about that. I mean, tell us 15 I believe that to be trme.

16 when it happened and how it happened. 16 Ind did he also bring that case up then later in
17 Involving my contact with Judge Fuller? 1 open court so evexybody heard about the case and
18 Tesh. Yesh, tell me what kind of hearing it was 18 what his feelings about that case were?

19 and how this discussion came up. 19 Yes. And I think — as I mentioned when I

0 1 don't remember exactly, Mr. Nicholson. I 20 testified telephonically back in September, I

P recall that there were a series of hearings on 21 distinctly remember Judge Fuller menticning that
2 the injunctive relief, and then in essence the 22 case of Judge Heck's to all of the lawyers that
3 case was tried within, I think, five or 23 were involved in that process during one or more
M six weeks of the case starting. p1 | hearings, because it did have some controlling
25 So there was a mmber of hearings, is my 25 effects on the litigation, T believe.
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1 A the part of that whole situation that 1 the court and it was a — there was nething
2 bothered you was the call to your office; 2 wrong with the process at ail.
3 correct? 3 @  Did you sense or feel any hard feelings or
4 Yeah, it is. Just with any — whenever a judge 4 retaliation or anything like that towexds you?
5 calls you, that's always something that you 5 & Mo, Mot atall.
] just — it seems awhward, I guess is the right 6§ Q  If you had the occasion to have a civil
7 word you weuld use. 1 proceeding or a family procesding or whatever
g You felt a little vneomfortable that you were 8 type of law that you are representing somecne on
g visiting with him and the other party was not 9 and Judge Puller was dramn as the judge on that
10 the phone at the same time; correct? 10 case, would you have any hesitancy in leaving
11 That would be fair, 11 hin on your case?
12 Was it your sense that it mede any difference in 12 & As a practitioner, I wouldn't have any
13 the outcome of the proceedings? 13 reluctance at all, no.
1¢ Yong whatsoever, I don't think. i Q That's with keeping the best interest of your
15 I think you also said in your interview with 15 clients in mind; correct?
16 Mr. Welson that on occasion, that Judge Fuller 16 & Of course. Subject to the client being apprised
17 can be ~~ and these aren't your words, these are 17 of their right to recuse a judge, yes, I would
18 just my paraphrasing. But he can be harsh or 18 have no concerns myself.
19 critical, blunt, I don't know if those are yox 19 0  2s a lawyer and your knowledge of Judge Fuller,
20 words, but things to that effect. Do you recall 20 you would not feel that there was any reason not
21 that? 21 to leave him on a case?
22 Yes, I recall telling Mr. Nelson that, and I 22 A I would have no concerns with it.
23 think I probably also said to Mr. Nelson, with 23 MR, NICHOLSON: Ckay. I have no further
2 all due respect to the Judges here, that's not 24 questions.
25 uncommon for a lot of judges to have that 25 MR, PAIMER: Mr. Schaffer.
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1 ahility from time Lo time to be that way, so... 1 CROSS-EMIHATION BY MR. SCHAFFER:
2 Okay. In your estimation, in the times you've 2 QM. Nooney, you agree that ex parte
3 been in front of Judpe Fuller, has he been a 3 commmications are inappropriate?
4 competent judge? 1A That's the reason why T made that statement to
5 Yes. 1've always found Judge Ruller fo be 5 Mr. Welson. I felt uncomforfable about it, ves.
6 well-prepared for whatever the subject matter § @  Did you also ~~ I'm locking at Mr, Nelson's
7 is. 7 report - make this statenent: You believe
8 Did — does he get his work done on time? 8 Juke Puller lacks judicial temperament in that
9 That's always been my experience. g he is umecessarily hombastic or caustic?
10 Did you — had you been —- after you were 10 A He can be at times, or had been in the past,
11 interviewed by Mr. Nelson, did you have an 11 ¥es.
12 occasion to be in Judge Fuller's courtrocs?® 12 Q You made that statement to Mr. Nelsom?
13 Yes. I was in front of Judge Fuller on a case il A Yes, I did make that statement to Dave.
1 that we had tried, and then there was a briefing 14 @  Mnd I think when I visited with you after it was
15 period, is my recollection. And I was in front 15 apparent that Judge Fuller knew your name was
16 of Judge Fuller after this process got started, 16 going to be divulged in a report was before that
17 I think, because I was — I believe 1 was aware 17 annowmncement. of the decision in the case you had
18 of the fact that Judge Fuller would have known 18 tried.
19 that I would have talked to Mr, Nelson prior to 19 A Exactly. Because T had called you, Mike,
20 this decision coming down in that case. 20 Mr. Schaffer, and I told you that I had this
21 What was your experience with Judge Fuller on 21 decision coming down, and T cbvicusly was
2 that occasion? 22 soreshat uncomfortable because T had a client's
23 It was fine. There was nothing unique about it 23 fate that was in the Court's -- Court had to
H or wnoomfortable about it. It was, Judge Fuller 24 make a decision, and I had said something, which
5 amnounced his decision in a case we had tried to 25 I didn't mean to affect my client, but T was
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hrought inte this process.

0 You were very appeehensive, weren't you?

A I was apprehensive before the hearing —- before
the decision was announced, ves.

0  Let me ask you this, what do you think your

cbligation would be to your clients in a
circmstance like that where you've offered
testimony in a hearing either favarable to or
wifavorable to a judge?

L Subject to what T understand of the
confidentiality associated with this process, I
haven't determined for myself what that
obligation would be to a client. Because I
dhviously don't have anything in front of
Judge Ruller today, T don't know what my
chligation would be, that's — I'm not going to

WO ~d o LN B W R
s
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Tor, would you please rephrase that. I want to
meke sture I answer the question properly.

I apologize. I have cough drops in my mouth and
they are sticking to my roof.

Just basically on what you think would —
from your perspective and what we've talked
about, do you feel you could go in front of
Judge Fuller and get a fair result even though
he knows that you testified in that prior
proceeding?

1 wouldn't have any reservations because of the
fact I have been here or 1 talked to Mr. Nelson
or T have been in front of this body before.

MR. NICHOLSON: Thank you. I have nothing
Turther,

16 RECROSS-EXAMIMATION BY MR. SCHAFFER:

17 say it's awkward, it's just something I haven't 17 9 let me ask you this question. You're now

18 researched, I quess. 18 testifying on behalf of Judge Fuller; correct?

19 0 You think it's your cbligation or you think it's 19 A Mr. Schaffer, T don't think I'm testifying on —

20 the Judp's cbligation to address it? 20 when T testified before, I didn't see myself as

21 A I don't know the answer to that, Mc. — I don't 21 an advocate then, and 1 don't see myself as an

22 know if 1t's my chligation or the Court's 22 advocate today.

23 chligation, so I'm ~ having not read those 23 1 see myself as someone that has been asked

24 standards, I'm not certain what the answer to 24 to tell this Commission what factually I lnow

25 that is. 25 about certain things. T don't see myself as an
253 255

10 You can agree with me, Mr. Nooney, that it puts 1 advocate, I guess.

2 you and your client in a very awkward position, 7 Q  Well, if you appeared in a case in front of

E} if your client isn't aware that you've testified 3 Jukge Fuller, do you think the other lawyer on

1 in procesdings concerning Judge Fuller, he's 4 the opposite side should know that you appeared

5 sitting on your client's case, something goes 5 en his behalf in this proceeding?

6 wrong from your client's perspective, and he 6 A Idon't -- I'm =~ I just don't have an answer o

1 finds out later that, Hey, you never told me 7 that, I mean, I understand the dilemma,

8 about this. You kmow, I should have had full 8 Mr. Schaffer. I just den't know what the answer

4 information. Can you see the problen? 9 to it is.

10 A No. I understand the dilemma. 10 WR. SCHAFFER: Thal's all.

11 @  Youdon't have an answer to it, do you? 11 MR. NICHOLSON: Nothing further.

12 A T haven't looked at if, s¢ I just -- I haven't 12 MR. PAIMER: Commission members?

13 been faced with that sitvation today. I don't 13 iNo questions were presented.)

Y know what the answer to that dilemma is. 14 MR. PAIMER: Thank you, John.

15 MR. SCHAFFER: That's all. 15 {Witness left the room.)

16 BEDIRECT EXBMINATICN BY MR. NICHOLSON: 16 MR. PAIMFR: Let's take a couple minutes.

17 Q Other than these considerations that 17 IBrief recess was taken.)

18 Mr, Schaffer brought about, you know, the 18 ¥R, PAIMER: let's go back on the record.

19 confidentiality of this and what you have to 19 Mr. Hieb, call your next witness.

20 divulge to a client and so on, you, though, with 20 MR. HIFB: Call Mike Wilson.

2 your knowledge of Judge Fuller and your prior 7 MIKE WILSON,

appearances in front of him, have any reasom not
to take a client in front of him, based upon the
kind of result that you think is appropriate in
a court of law?
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27 called as a witness herein, having been first duly
23 sworn, was examined and testified as follows:
24 DIRECT EXRMINATION BY MR. HIEB:

25 Q

Would you state your name, please.
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the last -- last time he called me before that

1A  Mbke Wilson. i

2 @ Please just identify for the Commission what it 2 was relating to an inquiry for prospective

3 is you do. 3 candidates for judge appointment.

4 & I'man attomey here in Rapid City. 4 % e called me and said that this was vhy

5 ¢  How long have you been an attorney? 5 he was calling me, and he said that he heard

6 &  Twenty-three years. 6 that I had had an experience in a case involving
7 @  Bnd how mach of that time has been spent in the 7 a Custer County case and asked me to relate that
3 Rapid City area? 8 to him, and I did.

9 & Sinee '%2. 9 ¢  Ckay. Would you relate it to the Commissicn

10 ¢ Vhere were you at before then? 10 vhat it is you related to him.

11 2 1 was in Mitchell for about five years. 1 A Well, the report is accurate, first of all, and
12 @ So would it be fair to say that the bulk of your 12 in — I'11 just be very brief so not to waste
13 practics has been in the Seventh Circuit? 13 your time, But in the proceeding, it was a

14 A Yes. 14 motion hearing, and I felt that Judge Puller's
15 @ All right. Mike, what kind of law do you 15 demeznor at the time of the hearing was, I

16 practice, if you were going to describe 16 quess, abrupt, a little aggressive by tone of

17 yoursel£? 17 wice and mannerism, and not in keeping with the
18 &  Plaintiffs personal injury primarily. 18 finest standards of judicial deconm.

19 @ Trial work? 19 @  Now, had you been in front of Judge Fuller prior
0 A Yep. 20 to that hearing on any other cases?
21 @ Or the proosedings that lead up fo the trials? 21 & T hed
22 A TYes, 22 0  Did it take you by surprise? I mean, was it
23 Q  Does that put you into contact with a fair 3 wmcommen, £rom your experience, for him to have
] nmber of judges? 1 acted that way?
2% A Yes. 25 A In my experience, I had cases with Judge Fuller
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1 Q  Inyouw time as an attomey in this area, have 1 before this event and after this event, and this
2 you been in front of Judge Fuller frequently? 2 Was & surprise.

34 T 3 Q  Was it sberrational, from your experience?

4 Q  Ckay. How many cases would you say you've had 1 B Inny experience, and again, my informetion is
5 with him? 5 one little sliver of the whole ple. It was an
5 & T haven't kept track, but less than five, 6 aherration, from my perspective, tased upon my
7 different cases, Some cases have more than one 7 experience with Judge Ruller.

8 natter. 8 9  Yow, I haven't related to you the allegetions in
3¢  Ind so if you have a case with him, you might 9 the camplaint, but I did inform you that, you
10 make repeated appearances in front of him, 10 know, what I wanted to talk to you about was
1 motion hearings, that sort of thing? 11 bench conduct and your opinions about

12 & Right. 12 Judge Fuller with respact to bench conduct; is
13 @ Your name came up in a report that relates to 13 that correct?

14 this matter, which is why I contacted you and 4R That's right.
15 vhich is why I've asked you to testify here 15 ¢ Ind what I was getting at was, this incident
16 today. The —~ have you seen the part of the 16 that's related here, was that indicative of the
17 report that was prepared by Dave Nelson? 17 way you or your clients were treated by

e A Ko, but Dave read it to me after he interviewed 18 Judpe Fuller in court in other cases or even in
18 me and I confirmed for him that it was accurate. 18 that case?
20 @  Ckay. 2nd just generally describe, if you 20 A I think this was the only hearing we had with
pal oould, for the Commission what it is that yeu 21 Judge Fuller on this case.
22 and Dave discussed about that particular case 22 @ Okay.
23 and why it is you were relating that to him. 23 A Ind this was — I think this wes the only time
248 I was surprised that Deve called me. 1 was 24 anything like this had happened in a court
25 sitting at my desk and Dave Melson called, and 25 proceeding in the presence of my clients. Now,
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1 granted, we'd had a couple of other dealings in 1 time, You called me last week and I've been

2 this case that's described in the report. But 2 thinking about that whole thing since the phone
3 the short answer to your question is, Mr. Hieb, 3 rang ard Dave Nelson told me why he was calling
§ this was an isolated cocurrence, from my 4 me, because this is a very wnconfortable

5 experience, 5 position for any advocate who is going to appear
6 Q You related somsthing to me about walking into 6 in front of a jucye going forward, is that

7 his courtroom the next day because you needed 1 question,

8 samething, and I think you described yourself as 8 Ind I have thought about this a lot., And I
g tip-toeing in. Could you just relate that to 9 respect every lawyer in this room. And so I anm
10 the Commission. 10 convinced that Judge Fuller — I have ne

11 A That's true. I don't want to minimize what 11 muestion whatsoever that moving forward, I can
12 happened because, I'11 tell you, my clients were 12 appear in Judge Fuller's court as if this never
13 pretty upset and I was pretiy upset, too. And 13 happened.

1 the next day I didn't know what was coming, and 1 And T'm sure that he will treat me

15 T was a little anxious about that, And 15 aporopriately and my clients appropriately and
16 Judge Fuller was as gracious and as cordial and 16 will make rulings like he sees them going

17 as congenial as he had always otherwise been. 11 forward, and I'm not worried about that. That's
18 And so, and everything went very - you know, 18 the conclusion I've drawn after thinking about
19 just very — it was handled appropriately 19 this for a very long time.

20 judicially, very good demeanor, and he was 20 ¥R. KIEB: I don't have any other questions,
21 perfect. 21 Chairman Nelson [sic].

22 Q  From your exparience, that experience, and other 22 MR. PAIMFR: Mr. Schaffer.
23 experiences where Judge Fuller acted 23 CROSS-FXAMINATION BY MR. SCHAFFER:
24 appropriately, do you believe that Judge Fuller 24 Me., Wilson, I don't know if the report really
25 is capable of being a good judge? 25 tells anybody what happened. So maybe you
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1A Well, T — let me — let's be clear about one 1 should tell the Commission why your client was
2 thing. 1've never been critical of the milings 2 in tears and the ushand was upset and what

3 or the quality of the judicial decision-making 3 exactly Judge Fuller did to cause that.

1 process, You know, we always disagree with the 4 You know, when Mr. Schaffer - when Mr, Nelson
5 judge because there's always a winner and a 5 called me and asked me that and T told him what
6 loser in every motion. So, at least half the 6 I told him and he read it back to me, I kind of
i time I'm upset with the ruling. But my only 7 felt like a crybaby, like, What am I complaining
8 concern was with the way he presided, not the 8 gbout. If you ask my wife that question, she

y decision that was mads. 9 coutd answer —- she could tell you exactly what
10 ¢  And I guess that was a poor question on uy part. 10 was said and how it was said.

i He has presided in cases with you where he's 11 I can only tell you that the tone and the
12 acted appropriately? 12 demeanor was — was inpatient, it was dbript, it
13 2 Oh, absolutely. 13 was agoressive, it was condescending, it was

1 Q  2nd so, I quess, does that lead you to believe 14 rude. 2nd my clients thought he was going to be
15 ke can act appropriately? 15 unfair going forward because it seeamed like to
16 A Absolutely. 16 them, they had been treated very unfalrly that
11 Q  Ckay. Geing forward, I realize that i cay. That was the feeling, Mike, that we had
18 Judge Fuller is no longer the judge en the case 18 abont that after that day.
18 that brought you in contact with Dave Nelson, 19 Ind my client -- you understand she's
20 and that's been reassigned to a different judge. 20 paralyzed. And this ig the most horrible case
21 But going forward, do you have any qualms as an pal I've ever had in my life and the stakes in this
22 attorney about appearing before Judge Fuller 22 case are huge, And she's powerless to do
23 because of your having to be involved in this 23 anything other than to take what scmeone gives
2 matter? 24 her. And she felt like this judge was going to
25 & I've been thinking about that question a long 25 e unfair with her, and she was very, very upset
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and frightened, as wag her husband, as was I.

1 1 abviously, as how that's handled, 2nd to me,
2 @  3nd you shared her feelings? 2 that's a much larger question than do I think
3 B Idid. I was veryupset with the way we had 3 he'll be fair going forward. And I con't have
4 been treated that day. 4 an answer for that.
5 Q  Andyou had sore reluctance to even talk to 5 MR. SCHAFFER: Okay, That's all.
6 Me, Nelson about it, knowing that case was still 6 MR, HIEB: HNothing.
7 peading? 7 MR. PAIMFR: Ry of the Comnissioners?
8 &2 T was reluctant to talk to Mr. Nelson at all, B {No questions were presented).
9 and then T decided that this process is more 9 MR, PAIMFR; Thanks, Mike.
10 important than one case or one lawyer or one 10 MR, MCBRIDE: I do.
i judge, and T decided to talk to Dave and tell it 11 MR, PAIMFR: Ch, Ted.
12 like it was. I didn"t call Dave, he called me. 12 MR. McBRIDE: I'm sorry.
13 But yesh, I was reluctant. 13 E@EMINATION BY MR, McBRICE:
14 @ I think you told me one time when we visited 14 0 M. Wilson, you didn't call Mr. Relsen, did you?
15 that you say: One day Judge Fuller's hot and 15 A o
16 the other day he's —- and you described a swear 16 ¢ You didn't go in to Judge Fuller and say, You
17 word. 17 know what, you were out of line yesterday, did
18 A What was the word I used? 18 you?
19 Q Well, I thirk you said he's a son-of-a-bitch. 19 A I did not.
20 A That's right. 20 @  Can you imagine yourself doing that to a judge?
21 QDo you agree with that? 21 & I don't think I've got the courage.
22 A That day, be was. 22 ¢ Mot many of us in the practice of law do, do we?
23 Q Yes. 23 To go in and tell a judge that they've been out
24 A That day, he was. # of line?
75 @ lstme ask you this, Mr. Wilson, do you think — 75 A There are some who do and there are sone who
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1 this proosading is about Judge Fuller, or 1 have, and I have never done that.
2 what - why do you think you're here? 2 Q  Causes the judge to have an absence of feedhack
3 A Well, I'mnot happy to be here, but I'm— 1 3 when they act in this way; is that correct?
4 guess I'm hers because Mr. Hieb asked me if, 1 That — that fesling. That feeling that you
5 going forward I would have any trepidation about 5 had, he didn't get feedback; right?
6 his behavior and his treatment of my clients and 6 &  Nothing direct. He may have sensed from my becy
i me, and I think that's why I'm here. I think 7 language that T wasn't very happy, but I didn't
8 that's why I was called, was to answer that 8 sass him, and I didn't go info his chambers and
9 question. 9 tell him that he was out of line.
10 9Q Do you think that should be a question that you 10 MR, MCBRIDE: That's all 1 have.
11 shoeld have to answer? 11 MR, PAIMER: Prompt anything, Jack?
12 MR. HIEB: 1'11 object as argumentative. 12 MR. HIEB: No.
13 MR. PAIMER: Overruled, You may answer the 13 MR. PAIMER: Mike?
i question. pt! MR. SCHAFFER: BNo.
15 & Well, T think that you could ask every single 15 MR, PRIMER: Anybedy?
16 lawyer who has appeared in Judge #uller's court 16 {No further questions were presented. ]
17 and you could get a thousand answers and they 17 MR, PRIMER: Thank you, Mike. Appreciate
18 would be what they are. 18 it.
19 But I think the larger question really is, 19 {Witness left the room.)
20 vhere do we go from here? There's been a 20 THOMRS G. FRITZ,
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newspaper article and there's been a man
suspendad and 1t's been secret. And I think the
larger question frarkly is, how do we get from
the mess we're in right now to where we are
ultimately going to go? And that's up to you,
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called as a witness herein, having been first duly
sworn, was examined and testified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. NICHOLSOM:

Q
A

State your name, please.

Thomas Fritz, Thomas G. Fritz,
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1 Q0 Tou're a lawyer, is that correct, Mr. Fritz? 1 probably began to appreciate him and his

2 A That's correct. 2 friendship back then. And we beth went to the

3 Q  And are you in private practice? 3 University of South Daketa together, and I

4 A Iam e joined his fraternity and then followed him into
5 Q  How long have you been a private practicing 5 law school.

6 Lawyer? 3 Chay.

T A Since 1972, 1 So I've known him most certainly all of my adult
8 Q0  Is that when you graduated from law school? 8 life.

¢ A Mo, I graduated in '71. Then I came out and did 9 You kept in regular contact with him over the
10 a one-year clerkship with a Judge Andrew Bogue. 10 years?

1 ¢ W was a federal judpe at that time; correct? 1 I have,

12 B Tederal judge. 12 Visit with hin not only - not only see him in
13¢ Ad-— 13 the courthouse, cbviously, as a practicing

14 & Then I started with the law fim in September 1¢ lawyer, but o you nim into him outside of the
15 of '72, and I had to go in the military for a 15 legal setting?

16 little while, then I came back. 16 Absolutely.

17 ¢ What law fim is that? 17 Ind cen you tell us about that a little bit, the
18 4 Lymn, Jackson, Shultz & Lebrun. 18 frequency? Is it social?

19 @ Can you give us kind of a quick sumary of the 19 Well, he — until he became a judge, he lived in
20 kind of practice you've been in since you 20 Lead; so I didn't see him probably as reqularly
1 started. 21 as 1 would have liked to. But yesh, I knew his
22 A It's been 90 percent litigation. 22 wife, Jacque. She was from Madison, and we atl
23 Q  Have you been active in bar activities, do you 23 went to school together down in Vemmillion. We
24 hold offices, been in organizations, those types 2 were in the same fraternity, our wives were in
2 of things? 25 the same sorority. We had a lot of mitual
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1A 1 have. 1 friends and did a ot of pheasant hunting

2 Q  Canyou tell us about that. 2 together. And then 1'd see him up on the ski

3 A Well, let's see, I quess Charlie Thompson as a 3 slopes vhen he'd do that, and he still does it,
4 mentor, I went through the — T got involved in 4 and T play golf with him every now and then.

5 the state bar and -- as well as the Emerican Bar 5 Did you have any cases against hin when he was a
3 Association, served as the state bar delegate in 6 practicing lawyer?

7 the ABA for 18 years, served on the Board of 7 I most certainly did.

8 Governors of the American Bar Association for 8 Ind have you had cases in front of him since

g three years, and I served as a state bar g he's been on the bench?

it commissioner, and then president of the bar. 10 Yes, T have, severzl.

11 Q  Actually, you were elected in this facility, 1 Do you think with all your history with him and
12 wren't you? Or were you? Or was that in 12 your background both him as a lawyer and as a
13 Sioux Falls? 13 jucdge, that you have a pretty good sense of his
A No, I think I was elected, I think I actually 14 character and who he is?

15 got elected in Pierre. 15 Definitely.

16 ¢ Ckay. That's not relevant to anything. When 16 What's your sense of his integrity?

17 did you first mest Pete Fuller? 17 If you ask me to describe Pete Fuller, that

18 A  Pete Fuller is from Mitchell, South Dakota, as I 18 would be one of the words T would use. His

19 am. So I probably met Pete when I was in 19 integrity is beyond question. He's very henest
20 junior high or younger. My parents and his 20 and I'd trust him with ny Life.

21 parents were very close friends, s¢ we spent a 21 If he tells you that he's going to do something
22 lot of — I spent every 4th of July that I can 22 or wants to do something, does he follow through
23 remenber at the Fuller residence, out at 23 with it? Can you trust him?

[
[

lake Mitchell.

So I knew Pete in hich school, and I think I
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Most definitely,

1 assume that in your practice, you've been in
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1 front of other judges besides Judge Fuller in 1 & I really value my profession, and I really vaiue
2 the 30-some years you've beem practicing, or is 2 the judiciary's role in this legal profession.
3 it 407 Mo, almst 40, high 30s? 3 Ard I have friends who say, you know, Maybe I'd
4 I have been. $ be a judge, or 1'd like to be & judge, and I
5 How does Judge Fuller ccopare, as far as his 5 don't know if I'd encowrage that.
6 competence and knowledge of the law, to those 6 But that has never been a prcblem for me and
7 other judges? 7 Pete Fuller. I wholsheartedly endorsed his
8 Well, I -- I think, you know, Pete is extremely 8 decision to get into the judgeship, I fried to
9 copetent. I was very pleased when he told me 9 help him when he had an election this last time
10 that he wanted to seek the judgeship. He is 16 aromd. So I wouldn't sacrifice what I think
1 extremely competent, and I'd trust any client's i about the profession or what I think of our
12 case that I have in front of him on a competency 1 judiciary simply because he's a friend.
13 basis. 13 MR, HTEB: Thank you. I have no further
14 Was he competent as a lawyer? Did you feel that u questions.
15 he understood the law and the procedire and how 15 MR, PAIMER: Mr. Schaffer.
16 to try a case? 16 CROSS~EXBMDNETTON BY MR, SCHAFFRR:
17 Oh, yeah. 17 Q M. Fritz, do you know anything about the
18 Bave you had an occasion or do you have persenal 18 mderlying allegations that bring us here?
19 experience with any cotplex cases that have been 19 & You know, I know very, very little, Mike. I
20 in front of Judge Fuller? 20 reaily do. If you recall, you asked me what T
21 Well, we finished up the Dr. Schwartz/Dr. Teuber 21 was qoing to say here, and T said I had no idea
22 matter here earlier this year in front of him, 22 because I don't know what the issue is.
23 which was very complex. I thought it was 23 0 You dn't know anything about the allegations?
2 very -~ had a lot of kind of tricky 24 B I — well, there's — no. There's all kinds of
25 medical-legal questions like pesr review, and we 25 everything whirling cut there. That's why I'd
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1 also hiad half & dozen very well-qualified trial 1 like to see this kind of get moving because, you
2 ilawyers who were kind of after him day and night 2 know, I've heard everything from running drugs
3 to either make a decision or screw it wpeor 3 in and out of Nebraska to whatever. I mean,
4 somehow — whatever we trisl lawyers try to do. 4 there's a lot of vicicusness out there as a
5 But he handled all of if, I thought, very well. 5 result of the way this is.
6 I disagreed with some of his decisicns, of 6 Q  Setting aside all of the rmors, do you have amy
7 course, but... 7 persenal knowledge of the wndezlying
8 So in other words, just becamse you're his & allegations?
g friend, you didn't see him throwing anything 9 A T don't know what the underlying allegations
i your direction? 10 are.
il No. I did not. 11 MR. SCHAFTER: That's all.
12 Bave you had — I mean, is he a hard worker, is 12 MR. PAIMFR: Any Cammission members with any
13 he prepared for his cases, does he do his work? 13 questions for Mr. Fritz? Tom, anything else?
14 Definitely. ¥ MR, NICHOLSON: wNothing further.
15 2 have you had -~ have you heard from any of 15 MR, PAIMER: Thank you, Tom.
16 your partners or you yourself experiencing any 16 THE WITNESS: Thank you.
17 ooplaints about him getting his work done? 17 MR, PAIMER: You bet.
18 None, 18 (Witness left the room.)
19 I know you're his friend, and Mr. Schaffer is 18 GREG EIESLAND,
20 probably going to ask you this, but — and 20 called as a witness herein, having been first duly
pal you've known him for an awful leng time, But 21 gworn, was examined and testified as follows:
2 would you be in here talking about his integrity 22 DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. NICHOLSON:
23 and saying — and giving your opinicn about him 239 State your name, please.
24 being & conpetent and goed judge if you didn't 24 B Greg Eissland.
25 think it was so? 25 Q  What's your ocompation, Mr. Elesland?
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1A Lawyer, i them, sometimes we have a hearing on them, and
2 Q  You practice here in Siomx Falls? 2 ve make oar reconmendation to the Supreme Court.
3 A Rapid City. 3 Q  Bearings that are for lawyers rather than
4 Q0  PRapid City. How long have you been practicing 1 julges, but that are similar to what we're doing
5 here? 5 here today; correct?
6 B Sinee 'T1. & A I've done them in this very rcom right here.
70  Areyou with a firm? 7 Q Tt would be fair to say you have an
g A Johnson, Eiesland & Asscciates, 8 understanding of the disciplinary process for
3 Q Bl right. BAnd have you been involved in other 9 our profession and alse probably for judges?
10 law firms prior to that association? 10 & T-—I'mjust kind of assuming it's something
11 & Yes, 11 close to vhat it is for lawyers, and I don't —-
12 Q  Canyou give us a Iittle history of your legal 12 T don't pretend to know what the procedire is,
13 background. 13 but I'm assuming that it, that the Board also
14 & ILaw clerk for Judge Bogue out of law school 14 reports to the Supreme Court and makes their
15 from '71 €c '72. Then in Lynn, Jackson law fim 15 recoprendations.
16 until about 1991. Then in Quinn, Eiesland, i6 Q You understand the need for discipline and for
7 Day & Barker until 1999, and since that time, 17 having some kind of a watchdog over both judges
18 the Johnson, Eiesland law Firm. 18 and lawyers as a profession?
19 @ Primarily what kind of a practice do you have? 19 A Very mich so.
20 A Plaintiffs, plaintiffs personal injury, ‘20 @ And you respect that process?
21 primarily, 21 A Very mch so.
22 @ Ckay. Hoout how meny cases, jury trials, have 22 ¢ How long have you known Pete Fuller?
23 you had in your career, if you know? 23 & T lnew him first when he was practicing up in
26 A It's over 150, 100 ~ maybe 170, something like 24 laad. We had cases against each cther from time
25 that. 25 to time throughout our careers, I don't recall
277 279
19 Just to put a context on that, I think it would 1 if we were ever on the same side on anything,
7 be fair to say that most lawyers that claim to 2 but it runs in my mind that we were, you know,
3 be trial lawyers probably have less than maybe 3 maybe co-defendants on something or whatever,
4 25 in their career. 4 but primarily cn the cther side of cases.
£ A That's -~ that's very frequent. There aren't as 5 Q  What was your impression of his compebence as a
é many trials as there used to be. We used to do € Lawyer?
7 a lot more trials before but still do a fair 7 A Hewss very competent. There is no question on
8 amount . 8 his competency.
9 Q  Have you been active in the bar? Have you 9 Q  Was he prepared?
10 participated in any orgenizations, comittees, A Yes.
11 those types of things? 11 @  Did he -~ did you feel that he understood the
1z A Yeah, bsen active in the South Dakota Bar, 12 law and the procedure that went along with
13 South Dakota Trial Tawyers, and then active in 13 trying cases?
1 some national organizaticns, too. 14 3 Yes, There's no doubt about that.
15 @ Have you held any offices with the Trial Iawyers 15 @ Have you had a chance to be in front of him
16 or the State Bar Association? 16 since he's gone on the bench?
17 A I've been president of both of them, and with 17 A Yezh. The other part, which I — I would want
18 the state bar, I was on the disciplinary board 18 to say for as a lawyer, you could take his word.
19 for six years. 19 You could take it to the bank. If it wes
20 @ Canyou tell me vhat the duties or what you did 20 settled, we did it over the telephone or a
21 or describe what the disciplinary board does. 21 handshaka or whatever. And there are — the
22 A We take complaints that come in from the public, 22 vast, vast majority of Scuth Dakota lawyers, you
23 from a 1ot of times clients, sometimes judges. 23 can do that with, and Pete Ruller has always
24 And we are under the auspices of the 24 been one of those lawyers.
25 South Dakota Supreme Court, and we investigate 25 Q  Have you been in front of him as a Jjudg?
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12 Yes. 1 & T thought he wes — he was fine,

29 I assume it's been all trial work? 20 Did he treat him fairly?

32 Yes. 3R Very zuch so.

4 Q  ¥hat's your impressicn of his compstence as a 4 Q0  Have there heen oocasions when you've noticed

5 Judge? 5 that Judge Fuller can be sarcastic or a little

65 B He's always prepared, he listens to the 3 bit, what I would call, blmt?

7 arquments, he rules promptly. Most of the time 7 & I'd say candid.

8 he would rule from the bench because he was 8 Q Ckay.

9 prepared, and — he was prepared and he knows 9 A Yesh. Rut every court has its own personality
10 the law. He knows the law. He'll grill you on 10 and Judge Fuller is -- you don't have to wonder
11 your cases, which is — I mean, that's fine, He 11 what's on his mind, he'll tell you, He'll tell
i¥4 grills both sides, that I've seen. 12 you the ruling. After the whole hearing gats
13 The latest case that I'we had with him was 13 done, he'll visit with the lawyers almost
14 an alienation of affections case, and 1¢ invariably, you know, both sides. And again,

15 Bill Janklow is the plaintiff's lawyer and I'm 15 it'l1 be right there, open court, I mean, if

16 defending or it. 2nd we were in front of him 16 there isn't somebody sitting, waiting to do

1 with — you know, the arguments were very 17 samething.

18 specific and advocated strongly by both sides. 18 Bit he always does something friendly. Like

19 Bnd he was ready for it, he asked all the 19 I say, I mean, just, How is everything going.

20 questions he needed to, and ruled right from the 20 Or if the other lawyer has driven a long ways,

21 bench. 21 How are the roads, something like that. But

22 @ Do you consider yourself when you go into court 22 sone visiting or talking, and that's the way it

23 a well-prepared lawyer? 23 is.

24 A Tirytobe, Ido. i Q If you bring a motion or some kind of a

25 0 Al right, 25 proceeding in front of Judge Fuller that he
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1 A My mentor was Horace Jackson and he stressed 1 views as not having merit or being, I gquess,

2 that. 2nd I don't pretend to be as prepared as 2 kind of loaded with B.S., is be direct about it,

3 Horace Jackson ever was, but I try to be. 3 in your experience?

4 Q  When you are prepared and you're in 1A I've never had that problem. The hearing I was

5 Juie Fuller's courtroom, do you ever have any 5 just talking about, aliemation of affection

6 trotble with him? 6 case, I lost on that. And, T mean, he didn't
TA No, not at all. Mot at all. 7 take me to task because he didn't agree with me.

8 Q@  Have you noticed that he respects lawyers that 8 After we got done, I remember he made some

9 are well-prepared in his courtroom? g coments about, you know, you'd think that the
i0 A Chy yesh. 10 legislature would do something about alienation
11 Q  Ckay. 1 of affection. South Dakota is one of the few
iz A Haven't. 12 states that has that. 2nd, you know, just
13 Q9 How, have you had Judge Fuller in front of 13 making general coments like a nmber of judges
14 juries? i would.

15 A 1 can't remember if I've — I was frying to 15 9 In those many times that you've been in front of
16 wrack my brain here as to whether or not I have 16 Judges over the years, how would you coupere

11 tried a case, whether we actually have — and I 17 Judge Fuller?

13 can't think right off the top of my head of a 18 A I think he's a very good judge. I think he's an
19 case that we've tried. 19 excellent judge.

20 I've sat threough part of a trial, my som 20 @  When you have a case or a lawsuit that you bring
21 Zaron had a trial and I sat through most of a 21 or that you're defending and you see that

22 day and a half of that trial. So I watched hinm 22 Judge Fuller is the judge that's dram in the

23 and watched the case. 23 case, do you have any hesitancy or any negative
24 Q@ And how was Judge Fuller with a young lawyer 24 fealings about him being on that case?

5 like your son? 25 A Mot at all.
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1 Q  Have you ever felt that way? 1 imvolved the attempted collection of a bill for
2 & Mot atall. Never, 2 a remodel project. It was a substantial

3 MR, NICHOLSON: I have no further questions. 3 remodel. By the time we got to Judge Fuller's

4 MR, PAIMFR; Mr, Schaffer. 4 court, the claim was something in the order of

5 CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. SCHAFFER: 5 %50, 00C vet to be paid,

6 Q M. Eiesland, do you know any of the underlying 6 On betalf of my clients, I asserted

7 factual allegations in this matter? 7 oounterclaims that the work had been not done in
8 A  MNo. I've been speculating in my mind and people & a workmanlike marner, and so the trial to

9 coe up to you, I mean, the public and go — 9 Judge Fuller by stipulation involved those

10 @ Idm't want you to speculate. 10 issues; that is, the effort to collect, and then
11 & Yeah. No. MNo. 1t my client's effort to try to seek a

12 @  It's a simple question. 12 counter-remedy either by way of offset or

13 A Thaveno — I donot know — 13 stand-alone damages.

14 Q  Ckay. 1 It the — and the case progressed very well,
15 38 - why we're here, 15 Judge Fuller was engaged, active in the

16 MR, SCHAFFER: Ckay. That's all. 14 examination, very imvolved in the case.

17 MR, PALMER: Any questions from the 17 Bart Banks, very, very good and competent

13 Comissicn? Anything from Tom, anything else? 13 lawyer, was on the other side.

19 MR, NICHOLSON: Wothing further. 19 At the conclusion of the evidence, there
20 IR, PAIMR: Thanks, Greg. 20 was —— part of the litigation involved viewing
21 (Witness left the room.) 21 the home as well, Judge Fuller, I think, wisely
22 MIKE LOOS, 22 took a look at the house. The Judge ordered
23 called as a witness herein, having been first duly 23 that the plaintiff go and fix the items that we
24 gworn, was examined and testified as follows: bl claimed were deficient or were not done and
1 /1 5 ordered that my clients pay a judgment.
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1 DIRECT EXAMIMATION BY MR. HIEB: 1 And Mr. Banks took that wup on appeal.

2 @ Would you state your name, please. 2 Relevant for, I think, the remand, his position
3 b Mike Locs. 3 was you can't compel a party to specifically

4 @ Mke, I'mnot going to go through some of the 4 perform a personal contract. That the remedy of
5 things that I probably would have addressed with 5 specific performance would net be available

b you, because we've had a lot of witnesses who 3 under these circumstances.

7 have talked about character and competence and 7 And for what it's worth, I thought it was

8 things of that nature. But I contacted you ] a— 1 thought it was really a very qood remedy
9 regarding this matter; is that correct? 3 because in these kind of cases, what vou often
0A  Yes. 10 find is for psople in my client's position, the
11 9  And you were involved in Al Star litigation -- 11 cost to fix these problems is often greatly more
12 1'1] call it the ALl Star litigation, which is 12 than what it would cost the original contractor
13 seething that's referenced in a report to this 13 to do it themselves. And so I think we sort of
14 Commission. 14 cut through the chase and said this would be a
15 & Yes, I represented the defendants in that case. 15 good remedy.
16 0 Ckay. 2And there were -- there are some 16 The Supreme Court, in analyzing the specific
17 allegaticons with respect to Judpe Fuller in iy performance piece, adopted a rationale not —
18 relation to that case, vhich relate to — I 18 not advanced by gither party. The Supreme Court
19 thirk the case was appealed and then it came 19 said under Rule 150} or (¢} or |d}, that the
20 back to Judge Fuller, Could you just describe bl case —— there was not proper notice, and that
pal for the Commission your recollection of the il the issue of specific performance was not tried
22 procadural ups and downs with respect to that 2 by implication, which to me was — really sort
23 case. 23 of came out of left field, because that's not
24 A Sure. Like I said, I represented the 2 what Mr. Banks advanced.
25 defendants, husband, wife, homeowners. The case 25 % the case was remanded, 2nd I can't
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interaction between the Judge and Mr. Banks was

1 recall if there was a hearing —- well, I'm sure 1

2 there was a hearing, But the second ruling from 2 consistent with Mr. Banks® interaction with

3 Judge Fuller was an attempt to make a better 3 almost anybody.

4 record, if you will, on the issue of trial by 4 MR. HIFB: All right. I've got no further

5 implication, because ne one had talked about 5 questions. We talked about the - I was going

6 that, and was probably not correct. I mean, our 6 to ask him about the Schwartz cases, he was

7 record was replete with opportunities to talk 7 involved in that and other witnesses have

8 ahout, specifically perfoming the workmanship 8 already done that. I won't even go there.

g issues. And Mr. Banks took an appeal of that 9 Thank you.

10 issue, and the case settled, 10 THE WITNESS: 1 can certainly state that was
1 The question I have for you, the allegation has 1 very, very challenging from a judicial substance
12 heen that Judge Fuller believed the 12 and administrative standpoint. If you've

13 Supreme Court was wrong in deciding the appeal 13 glready heard about it, it — if was

L and then went and pretty much issued the exact 14 extracrdinary and I think very competently

15 same cecision again. 15 hencled.

16 Did you get the sense that there was any 16 MR. PALMER: Mr. Schaffer.

11 sort of an in-your-face type of attituce by 17 CROSS-EZMINATION BY MR, SCHAFFER:

18 Judge Fuller with respect to that, or was he 18 ¢ M. Loos, you didn't see any conduct of any

1% attempting to craft a ruling that he theught, 19 wntoward nature in that proceeding?

20 from your standpoint, was consistent or at least 20 & The ALl Star?
7 could be in line with what they sent down? 21 Q  Yesh,
22 Yesh. I mean, T think it was the latter, 22 A I did not.
23 because Mr. Banks took five issues up on appeal, 23 Q  Did you se2 any comments or hear any coments
p and it wasn't fust the specific performance 2 that Judge Fuller made you thought were
25 piece that came back, 2 garcastic, snide, or that type of thing?
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1 We had a prejudgment interest issue that 1A I quess nothing of a serious rature. MNothing

2 came back, and there was no sort of effort to, I Z that would make me think this is strange or I'm
3 think, indicate that that was improper. 3 vorried about how this procesding is going to

4 Mo, It was just this idea, and it was 4 Q.

5 Judge Barmett, who was sitting by designation, 5 Q  ILetme ask you this, the Supreme Court ordeved
6 that wmote the decision. And I den't want to — 6 prejudment interest to be awarded in that case;
7 I believe Judge Fuller thought that the initial 7 correct?

8 decision was just not supported by the record, 8 A T think that's true.

g and T think that's a fair thing to say. 9 0  They said you can't get arowd it as a txial

10 nd then the second opinion was basically to 10 judge by calling it something like specific

11 try to make clear there was a record, and maybe 11 performance; correct?

12 get to the point of the merits of whether or not 12 & I believe that was their rationale.

13 specific perfomance could be ordered in this 13 ¢ And then on remand, did Judge Fuller award

U kind of a case. 14 prejudguent interest as the Supreme Court

15 I also wanted to ask you about that prooseding, 15 directed him?

1% that trial with M, Barks, because there were 16 & You know, if you've got the judgment, I'd look
17 allegations about bench conduct in respect to 17 at it. My sense was that my clients paid

18 ‘that. Do you recall anything out of the 18 something on the order of $20,000 of interest.
1% ovdinary between Judge Fuller and Mr. Banks -—- 19 @ Well, we had testimony from Bart Banks in a
20 T don't. 0 previous hearing where he said that Judge Fuller
2t — of a serious nature, animosity flying back 21 refused to oxder it, and basically he had %
2 and forth or anything? 22 appeal the case because he refused to follow the
23 Mo. Imean, Idon't kncw what & serious nature 23 Supreme Court: decision. Are you disputing that?
pL would recessarily be. But Mr, Banks has a huge 24 B Ibelieve he appealed, and again, I mean, it's
2% personatity, and I -- my sense of the 25 all public record. He for certainly took an
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1 gppeal on the oxder of specific performence 1A Since Buqust of 1971, I think; 39 years.

2 twice. T recall that the judgment included 2 @ What kind of practice did you have?

3 interest. And if vou've got a docment that 3 A I'dsay it was a general practice with emphasis

4 will say that it wasn't awarded, I'd -~ 1'd 4 en trial work.

5 agree with whatever the judgment says, but I 5 @  Did you get an occasion to appear in front of

6 don't remember, 6 Judges on what I would call a frequent basis

7 ¢  Well, when I interviewed you in preparation for 7 over those 39 years?

8 this hearing, you told me that what Judge Fuller 8 A Pretty frequent.

3 did the second time arcund was what you called a § ¢  During your time as a private practitioner, did
10 head-scratcher. Do you recall that? 10 you ever work with Fete Fuller?

11 A Yeah, 1 think — yeah, I do. 1A I did.
12 @ In other words, you were puzzled by how come he 12 0  Is a co-comsel against him, under what roof, so
13 did what he did when it came back from the 13 to spesk, did you work with him?
14 Supreme Court? 14 B Peteand T tried a case together up in Deadwood,
15 & That's frue. 15 I know, back in the 18 -- probably mid to late
16 MR, SCHAFFER: That's all. 16 1970s. As a law student, first trial T ever
17 REDIRECT ERMENATION RY MR. HIEB: 17 went to, I think, was a case between Pete ad
16 @  I'l just follow wp on that briefly. Mike, is 13 Rick, where Pete was on the other side.
18 that inconsistent, though, with what you are 13 ¢ You're spesking about Rick Jotmson?
20 saying here today? The result, you don't often 20 A Rick Johnson, yeah.
21 9o back in front of the judge and have them take 21 Q@  Over the years, have you had what you thirk or
22 another bite at the apple in an attempt to clean 2 would characterize as a good relationship with
23 things wp? Is that what you are — 23 Fete Fuller?
24 b True. Both - both awards, the second award of 24 A Ch, Pete practiced in Chavberlain for a period
25 specific performance wag what the lawyers say is 25 of time when I was —-
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1 sua sponte, on the court's own initiative. That 19 Ckay.

2 was -~ that was a head-scratcher because I 7 A — 3 law student, and I don't remember exactly

3 didn't request it. I think it was defensible, 3 when he left and went to Deadwood. And we kind

4 hut T didn't request it. 4 of lost track of each other along the way there,

5 MR. HIFB: I've got nothing further. 5 but I did have a snowmobile case out in the

6 MR. SCHAFFER: I have nothing further. 6 Hills and we associated on that.

7 MR. BAIMFR: Any members of the Commission? 7 @  Have you always gotten along with Pete?

8 {No questions were presented.) § & Verywell.

9 MR. PAIMER: Thanks, Mike. 9 0 I think I asked you this question when I called
b {Witness left the room.} 10 you one day, and you said you vere not aware of
1 JUICE WALLY ERLUND, 11 what the CourtSmart system is.

12 called as a witness herein, having been first duly 12 &4 I'mmot.

13 sworn, was examined ard testified as follows: 13 Q  Ckay.

14 DIRECT RXAMDNATICON BY MR, NICHOLSON: 14 A Still, I've heard of it.

15 ¢ State your name, please. 15 Q I think I explained to you that it's a recording
16 & My name is Wally Eklund, 16 or technology system that can record the

17 @ What's your cixvent position? 17 activities in a courtrocm.

18 A The newest Seventh Circuit judge. 18 And I'm not asking you to give any opinion
19 @ How long have you been an the bench? 19 on the CourtSmart system since you don't know
20 & Easy. June 18, 2010, 20 what it is. But if it was possible to have

21 @ Prior to that, what did you do? 21 Judoe Fuller's courtroom monitored by the

22 A Practiced law. 22 CourtSmart system, and 1f tapes or (Ds or
230 Yhere at? 23 however they came out of that system were made,
24 A At Gregory, Seuth Dakota. 24 would you be willing, assuming that the

25 Q@  For how many years? 25 {omission were to ask you to or it was
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1 appropriate as a part of Judge Fuller being 1 asked, you to sit and listen to 40 howrs of tape
2 allowed to go back o the bench, would you be 2 ar apything. Just so there's a clarification.

3 willing occasionally at their direction to take 3 You know, I ~ like we say, I don't know what

4 the time to spot-check that tape occasionally to 4 the CourtSmart system is. I don't know whether
5 determine what Judge Fuller's demeanor happened 5 it's strictly transcript or cral. I hawe no

6 to be during those spot-check ccrasions? 6 idea.

7 A I think I would be willing to do that. I'mnot 1 Bnd again, with the permission of the — crat
8 exactly sure how that would work. 8 the direction of this Camission and, of course,
$ Q  But, and I'masking -~ I'm not asking how it 9 the chief judge in your circuit, who's on the
10 would work. 10 Coomission, we'd ask for that first, as part of
11 A I don't know vhat kind of a record you get to 1 the question.
12 look at, quite frankly. 12 MR, PAIMER; Anything else, Mr. Schaffer?
13 Q I guess the question is, if it would be at the 13 MR. SCHAFFER: No.

1 direction of samebody else, you're not the u MR, PAIMER; Eny Comrission members?

15 technician, but if — all I'm asking you is if 15 {No questions were presented.)

16 something like that could be arranged, would you 16 MR, PAIMER: Thank you, Judge Eklund.
17 ke willing to do it? 17 {Witness left the room.}
1% & Twould, Tmean, I... 18 MR, - NICHOLSON: Just a procedural question,
13 §© Do you feel you have a good enough relationship 19 1 have Judge Young's affidavit. Should T just
20 with Pete where, if you sensed a little bit of i mark that ard submit it now?
21 inappropriate tone of voice or comments or those 21 MR. PAIMFR: 1 think that's a great idea.
22 types of things coming out of those tapes, would 2 MR. NICHOLSON: I gave a copy to Mike. I
23 you feel good enough about your relationship 23 don't know if he sent it to the Commission. I
2 with hin that you could address him, talk to him 24 have some extra copies.
25 about it, and show it to him? 25 (Exhibit L was marked for identification.)
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1A I haven't had that big of problem doing that 1 MR. NICHOLSCN: At this time, T would offer
2 with my — anyone, really. 2 Exhibit I.

3 MR. WICHOLSON: I have no further questions. 3 VR. SCHAFFER: No cbjection.

1 MR. PAIMER: Mr. Schaffer. 4 MR, PAIMER: Fehibit L will be received.

5 CROSS-EAMINATION BY MR. SCHAFFER: 5 MR. NICHCLSON: I would like to point cut

6 Q  Judge Eklund, are you here pursuant to a § one thing in the exhibit. In paragraph

7 subpoena? 7 Marber 6, of course Judge Young isn't here to

8 & I'm not., 8 state that, but I think it's pretty obvicus that
9 Q Do you know how mch time it would take to 9 when he typed that, he made a typographical

10 review transcripts of the CourtSmart systen? 10 error. ‘There appears to be either an Loral
11 A I have no idea. 11 before the word "number” in the paragraph, which
12 Q Do you know if as a judge, you'd even have time 12 makes 0o sense to be there. So I would just
13 to b it? 13 point that out as a part of the record,
L} I don't. 14 MR, PAIMER: Ckay. Thank you. dust soI
15 Q Do you know whether you'd have to clear that 15 umderstand, where are we at here procedurally?
16 with the presiding judge? 16 Do you have other witnesses other than
17 A I'm sure you have to do your work. 17 Judge Fuller?
18 ¢ Do you know anything about the facts of this 18 MR. NICHOLSON: Mo, And I think our
19 case? 19 arrangement or what Mike wanted to do is, he
0 A I don't. 20 indicated since he was going to call
n MR, SCHAFFER: That's all. 21 Judge Fuller on his part of the case, that he
2 MR. PAIMER: Tom? 22 wanted to have that opportunity before we called
23 REDIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. NICHOLSON: 23 hin.
M Q I think, Judge Fuller [sic], my question to you 24 MR, PAIMER: Okay. Let's just take a very,
P is, would you spot-check it? I don't think I 25 very short recess, iike no more than five
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which was — the date agaim?

1 minutes. 19

2 {Brief recess was taken.) 2 B March of "03.

3 MR. PAIMER: Let's go back on the record. 3 Q  Now, did you deaft the answer to the complaint

4 Mr. Schaffer, are you calling -- | that was submitted in this case?

5 MR. SCHAFFER: I'11 call Judge Fuller, 5B Mo, I did not.

& JUDGE A. PETER FULLER, 6 Q You signed it?

7 called as a witness herein, having been first duly 7 A IreaditandT signed it, yes.

§ sworn, was examined and testified as follows: § ¢  Okay. BAnd I just want to mske clear, because I
9 DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. SCHAFFER: 9 read through it again and I notice you appear to
10 Q  Judge Fuller, I'm going to cover a little bit of 10 dispate a mmber of the factual allegations that
11 your background and meke sure that we've got il you admit that you violated the Canons of

12 this covered, You graduated from law school in i2 Ethics; correct?

13 what year? 13 A Ididn't — no, I don't know that T did that.

14 A 1968. 14 Q  Ckay. Because I got the impression when

15 0  And practiced where? 15 Mr. Micholson gave his opening statement today
16 A In Chamberlain for three years. 16 that you are not disputing the factual

17 @  With shat fim? 17 allegations in this case.

18 & Morgan & Fuller. They were in Mitchell and I 18 & That was my understanding of the answer, the

19 was an associate in their firm. 19 allegations in the complaint and my answer. I
20 ¢ Did you practice with that fim in Mitchell? 20 thought T acmitted to the factual allegations
2 A Briefly, yes. 21 and admitted to viclating Canons 1, 2, and 3.
22 Q@ Wiy did you leave to Chanberlain? 2 Q  Ckay.
23 B Wy did I leave Chamberlain? 23 A That's the way [ read my answer.
24 Q  Why did you go from Mitchell to Chamberlain? 20 ¢ Ind you agree, Judge, that there is clear and
25 & My father died and the Morgans asked me to come 25 convineing evidence that you viclated Cancns 1,
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1 to Mitchell. 1 2, ad 37

2 Q0 No. The gmstion, vhy did you leave the fim in L. Yes.

3 Mitchell to go to Chamberlain® 30 Do you adnit that you flipped the bird, gave the
4 A Ididn't. I went to Chamberlain when I got cut 4 middle finger to Bart Banks in the presence of
5 of law schocl. 5 his client from the bench in a legal proceeding?
6 0 8o you went directly to Chamberlain? $ & Yes. T said that at the Show Cause hearing,

7 A Yes. 7 ¥es.

§ Q I thought you were with the fim in Mitchell for 8 Q  Chay.

9 a period of time. 9 A I also called him an asshole in chambers.

19 A I was. I was associated with them. T used to 10 0  Ind I'munclear on this All Star Construction

11 go in every Saturday morning and they would help 1 versus Koolm case, My understanding was the

12 me with the files T had. 12 Suprens Cowrt sent: it back to you with a mendate
13 Q0 Is that vhile you were in law school? 13 that you were required to award prejudgent

14 & Ho. I graduated from law school in '68, and 14 interest and you refused to do that.

15 then I moved to Chamberlain in July of '68. And 15 & Again, I'm like Mike Loos, If T had my order, I
16 in Chamberlain, 1 was associated with Morgan & 16 oould tell you whether T did that or not. I

17 Ruller in Mitchell, * 17 don't remember,

18 0  Did you ever practice in the Mitchell office? 18 Q  You vexe here this morning when Carol Foster

19 & 1 did for a brief pericd of time after my father 19 testified?

20 died in 1970, 20 A Yes.

21 0 Ckay. Gotcha, Then you went to Lead when? 219 Do you adnit that you swore in gpen court?

22 & IndJulyof 19, 22 & Idonot.

21 @ And you practiced law there wntil your 23 Q  You deny that?

24 appointment to the bench? 24 A Idenythat., I — T don't use the vord

™~
en

A Correct.
302

]
(%]

"Coddam," I don't use the Fword. So I deny
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1 that I said that to any clerk or to the clerk in 1 aggression, either.

2 the hallway. 2 So knowing ze, knowing me, I am confident
10  Well, you hat Mr. Nelson's report for some time, 3 that the court service officer that testified

1 haven't you? 4 thought that I was, because of being irritated

5 A Yes. 5 and being arnoyed, that I was engry. And

6 0  BodMr. Wicholson said at the begimning of this 6 because of my tone of woice, she thought I was

7 hearing that you weren't dispating the facts, 7 acting inappropriately and aggressively. I

8 and that was one of the facts that was alleged 8 agree with what she's described,

9 in Mr. ¥elson's report, is that Carol Foster was 9 Did you rot recognize it at the time, Juwkge?

10 in court, that you used the word, Goddamn clexk, 10 I don't — I did not, T ¢id not recognize that
11 Goddamn schedule, quote, unquote. i1 this annoyance and this irritation, which In

12 & Right. 12 this program, it's like —- well, actuaily it’s
13 ¢ And you saw that? 13 like right now, Mr. Schaiffer, I'm feeling fense
14 & Correct. 14 in my arms and across my chest, which is a
15 @ So today is the first time that you've come out 15 signal that I've learned that I ncw have to

16 and actually denied that you ever said that? 16 think. I've learned I now have to think, I

17 A 1 deny that I said that, yes. 17 have to — I have to think of other thoughts, I
180 Chay. 18 have to take — I have to breathe, I have to

19 A I don't deny Carol Foster's testimony about my 19 think. 2nd I did not recognize that before,
20 demeanor, my rucdeness, or my arrogance, or 20 correct.

Al treating her or any of her staff 21 Is it your testimony to this Commission that all
22 disrespectfully. I don't deny that. 22 of the behavior that was described by these
73 @  Ckay. Do you agree that you created a hostile 23 court persennel, you did not reslize what you
Pl work emvirorment down there at that courthouse? 2 were doing or that you were offending these
25 A T don't know that I did. T had no sense that T 25 people at the time?
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1 did. But Carol said I did, therefore, I did. 1 That T was offending them, no, I did not know

2 0 Ckay. When you worked as a lawper, did you ever 2 that,

3 have occasion to deal with individuals who 3 You didn't have a clue?

4 created hostile work environments? 4 I did not.

5 A Mo 5 Ckay. And have you ever apologized to any of

6 Q  Mever have? 6 these folks for how you behaved?

TA Mo 1 Mo, I have not. You asked me that at the Show
8 Q Do you dispute Tonia Fischer's testinony in this 8 Cause hearing and I -- I still haven't. I think
9 proceeding where she said you were rude and 9 my attorney — because I asked him, I said,
10 demeaning to her? 10 would you ask Mr. Schaffer if I could begin
11 & No. I — what I have learmed from Bob Holmes is n apologizing o these people? And I never heard
12 that — if T may? 12 back. But T went ahead and I have — I have
3¢  Tes, 13 written — I have written my apology letters.

U A He showed me the anger scale, 0 to 10, and when 1 In fact, T even added cther lawyers to the list.
15 he described it to me, he said that at the i5 You heard the testimomy of Judd Thompson about
16 bottom of the scale is irritation and annoyance. 16 the safety concerns, and his testimony was your
17 That is anger. T know that I act irritated and 17 response was, Well, we'll wait to ses what
18 amnoyed, and T didn't know that that was a part 18 happens, wguote. Do you remepber that?

18 of anger. He — 19 My response wes — that's part of the response
20 Q  Well, let me ask -~ go ahead. 20 that I did give him. Dennis, who is the person
21 A Te then explained to re in the agoression side 21 that brings the people from the Juvenile Service
bri of it, again the 0 to 10, and at the botton 22 Centar, he's the transporter of these people,

23 scale of that, he explained to me that my body 23 and he brings himself and typicaily one,

[ ]
W

language and that my tone of volce and my

sarcasm 15 aggression. I didn't know that was
306

[SCI XY
[

depending upon how rany, two. T asked Demnis,

vho is in law enforcement, if he felt that it
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1 was a problem when if first came to my 10  BEdI— the question I'm asking is very sisple.
2 attention, 2 Is there a fair inference that you put that wp
3 And it first came to my attention by the 3 to sort of thumb your nose at the Commission or
1 oourt. service officers that were in my 4 soeeone else?

5 courtroom, that they were concerned especially 5 A Mo, Ko

6 by the people that would be standing behind them 6 Q  Is that mot a fair inference?

7 33 they were seated at the counsel tables, so I 7 A Mo, that's not a fair inference.

8 asked Denmis about that. And he's the one that 8§ 0  And how long had you had that picture?

9 said, Well, it'snot a problem, why don't we see 9 A Well, T was in Mitchell at a meeting of our 50th
10 if anything does transpire. And that's what I 10 high school reunion, and that's when Pat gave it
1 thought: I told Judd is what Dennis had told me. 11 to me because she was practicing law, and she
12 The Commission has seen the picture of the nine 12 was not going to practice anymore, and she
13 guys with wigs on a -~ on it, nailed to the 13 handed it to me and she sald, Do you want this?
14 bench. 14 ind T said, Sure, great. So I thought that was
15 The nine merbers of the bar, yes. 15 in —- I think in Bugust. It might have even
16 Ckay. 2nd I think — do you agree that you 15 been before.

17 nailed it up sometime between the 20th and 17 Q Of 20107

18 28th of Septenber? 18 A Oh yeah, 2010, right. Because next year is our

19 You know, I don't remember when I put it up. 19 S0th.

20 It's a gift from a lawyer, Pat’ Economos from 20 Q  Ckay.

21 Mitchell, She gave me that as a present. 21 A S0, 1o, it was — it had nothing — it had

22 Ind just for the benefit of the Commission, you 22 nothing to do with these proceedings at all.

23 were served with a formel complaint on 73 It's just a picture of nine barristers, sitting

24 Septenber 8, 2010. You acknowledge that? 2 at the bar in the 0ld Bailey in Iondon.

25 Yes. 25 @ You heard Mr. Krattermaker testify that you hit
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i 2nd that had a copy of Mr. Nelson's report, 1 him wp for a thousand dollar contribution. Do

z vhich had a reference in it to you wearing a 2 you dispute that?

3 powdered wig. Do you recall that? 3 B Ch absolutely.

4 Yes. 1 Q  You deny that?

5 And then the hearing for the Cxder to Show Cause 5 A Oh, absolutely. There's no question in my mind

6 was held on the 30th? 6 I didn't ask him for that.

7 Do you want — do you want to know — I did 79 You didn't even meke a casual comment to that

8 that., That was my first year when I was a 8 effect?

9 juvenile judge in '03. Judge Delaney was in 3 & That would be completely improper.

10 plays, the Black Hills Commnity Theatre plays, 10 Q  Okay. Who circulated your petitions to put you
11 and he gave me that powdered wig, 11 en the ballot?

12 And it happensd to be — we did juveniles on 12 & Gee, you know, T don't remember. Dennds Todge
13 Fridays, and it happened to be Halloween on that 13 started until T found out he had it and T took
1 Friday. And when the kids came ir from the 14 it away from him,

15 Juvenile Service Center, I was sitting up on my 15 9  2nd he was your court reporter at that time?

16 bench, and I did have my powdered wig on, which 16 A Yes.

17 I then took off and threw it in the drawer and 170 I assume they are on file someplace?

18 I've never worn it since. 18 B Ch, I'm assuming they are, tco.

19 But that pictre went up on the bench between 19 Q Okay. You were here when Lara Roctzel testified
28 the time you got — 0 about the probable cause bumper sticker and she
21 Yezh, 21 made the comment quoting you that you zeferred
22 -- the conplaint and the time of the Order to 2 to law enforcement as sons-of-bitches, uncuote?
23 Show Cause hearing; correct? 23 A Correct. I heard that.

24 T don't remesber when I put it up, so I'll agree 24 Q Do you dispute that?

25 with you. 25 A I deny that.
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1@ Chay. 1 that I'd like to have a polygraph. And I told

2 B Can I explain something to you? 2 them, You talk it over with your clients and let
3Q MNo. I'mjustasking if you deny it or not. 3 me know.

4 A Ch. { 1 pelieve it was like at noon, because the

5 Q  End you heard her testimony about the juvenile 5 hearing was over in the morning, and at noon we
6 case where you ordered the victim and the ] met in my courtzoom, and I said, What have you
7 parpstrator to be polygraphed? 7 decided? They both said no.

8§ B I heard her testify to that, ves. 8 Ind T did say — I did say just what Lara

9 Q Do you dispute her testimony? 9 Roetze] did say, is that I said to them, I think
04 Ido. 1 that's unfair. And Dr. — Mr. Holmes —

11 g Wy 11 9 Excuseme. I'mgoing to ask yom another

12 A (athy Mattson represented the 13-year-old boy, 12 question about it. 2nd I'm locking at

13 and Roxie Erickson yepresented the, I believe 13 Mr. Nelson's report, page ten where he refers to
i the 11-year-old girl. This is a juvenile 14 a statement that he got from Cathy Mattson, the
15 hearing, this is not a jury trial. It'sa 15 other lawyer opposite to the state’s atbormey?
16 juvenile hearing. It's closed, everything, 16 A Right.

17 And the young girl testified, and I 17 ¢  2nd you've seen this report, haven't you, Judge?
18 conscicusly made a decision when she got all 18 & Yeah.

19 done, I said, She is absolutely credible. I 19 Q@ In this report it says: Judge Fuller directed
20 mean, she — she listened to the questions, she 20 that the 14-year-old alleged delinguent and the
21 artionlated clear answers. You know, she didn't il 11-year-old aileged victim each submit to
22 waver, 22 polygraph examinations. ¥hen the lawyers
23 And then they called the young boy, and he 23 refused to facilitate the polygraphs, the Jidge
24 articulated the questions — or the answers. He 2 asked whether, quote: You're meking me make a
25 was clear and concise, he was — he was as 25 decision based on what T have before me,
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1 credible as this young girl was. And they got 1 wquwote, And the lawyers said, Yes, Judge

2 done with the testimony, and they said that they 2 Fullex said, quote; That's not very fair to the
3 Tested, 3 Court, unquote. Did you read that?

4 And then T said, You hawe no further 4 A Did I read that,

5 evidence? I see a note in here that Dr. Strong 59Q Yes?

6 had done an examination. Aren't you calling 6 A Yes, I did.

7 Dr. Strong? And Ms. Roetzel said no. So I had 79 That's exactly what Lara Roctzel testified to

8 a he said/she said question — or, hearing. 8 foday, isn't it? And this came from the defense
9 I was — I was very emctionally involved in 9 lawyer.

10 these two young people that I was going fo have 10 & 1 thought lara Roetzel testified to more than

1 to make a decision based upon 2 he said/she 11 that. MNow, that's my impression.

12 said, and two witnesses were credible. I talked 12 @ Well, in substance she testified to the very

13 to Jidge Davis about it because of that, because 13 thing that Cathy Mattson informed Mr. Nelson,

i I was having a real problem. 14 A And I thought T just said that.

15 Bnd Judge Davis suggested, Well, you coculd, 15 Q  Well, you said you never crdered a polygraph,

16 if you wanted to, you could recuse yourself 16 B Well, she didn't say I ordered it either. She
17 right now, and they'd have to retry it to 17 sald I directed it. And again, we're quibbling
18 another judge, I said, Mo, I've heard the case, 18 with words. I'm sure that Cathy Mattscn and

19 T have to make a decision. 19 Poxie thought that I ordered it, But had I

2 And T thought if the two young people would 20 ordered it like Lara Rostzel sald, then wouldn't
21 agree to each take a polygraph, potentially that P they have done it?

2 there could be a resolution without me making a 2 I'm not arguing Cathy thought I directed it.
23 decision. 23 I'm just telling you what precipitated me asking
! S0 T let Roxde know that I would like to 24 for that and what it was. And that's why I

25 have a polygraph, and T let Cathy Mattson know 25 want -- that's what — just so you lmow, that's
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1 what ¥r, Holmes, in his workbook — 1if you look 1A  That I ordered it.

2 through the workbook there’s — I think it's 20 Ckay. )

3 like on page 12 or something. 3 A Bub I'munot telling you, Mike — this is the

4 There's a circle of -~ and it's what occurs, 4 thing you have t¢ understand. I'm not telling

5 and then one of the things in there is unfair. 5 you that when somebody hears any judge ask for

6 Ind T told Mr. Holmes when he got there, I said, 3 something or direct scrething that they don't

7 1 did the classic. I did exactly what you said 1 have the clear understanding or impression that

8 1 have to change and control by what you're 8 the judge ordered it.

g teaching me, is that, I responded fo something § That's why that whole thing was completely
10 that I thought was unfair. And I used the word. 10 improper is because of the way I approached it.
1 I did it to them, and that's completely 1 2s opposed o being aware that when they said
12 improper. 12 m, you Jjust say, Thank you. Ckay. And you —
13 It's the wrong way to handle sitvations. 13 you doni't react the way I did.

14 Tt's the wrong way for anybody to have the anger uQ You were here for Me. Bremer's testimony?
15 come, and then through my tone of voice, through 15 B Yes.
16 1y body language, and through my sarcasm is to 16 Q@  Are you disputing any of his testimony?
17 show that arger. And I did it. 17 A The only dispute I'11 meke is I'm not familiar
18 0 Judge Fuller, I'm going to ask you back to the 18 with the quote that he attributes tome. I'm
19 question about the credibility determination. 19 not familiar with the quote, so T -- I don't
20 Isn't that the essence of being a judge, is to 20 know why I would have said that to ¥r, Brenmer
21 meke those calls? 2 when I don't even know the quote.
22 A Yes. 22 Q  Were you here when Alicia Ramsdell testified?
39 Ind isn't it the essence of being a judge, if 23 A Yes.
24 you've got evidence that you can't decide which 24 Q@ Do you dispute her testimony?
25 way to go because it's evenly balanced, that 25 A Mo

317 319

1 perhaps the person who has the urden of proof 1 Q  Did you tell her that the legal profession was

2 loses? 2 better off before women were allowed to enter

3 A That 's what I did, 3 it, or words to that effect?

4 Q0  Ckay. { A o, I'msure I did.

5 A But let me explain something to you. 5 ¢ And you know that's totally imsppropriate, don't

6§ Q M. I'mgoing to ask you a question, 6 you?

72 Mo, serious — 7 A It is. Especially if I was serious about it.

§ MR, NICHOLSC(N: I'm going to object. He 8 @  Well, even if you weren't sexious aboub it?

9 asked a question, he should answer, 9 & That's what I just said, especially. I said,
10 YR, PRIMER: Whoa. Whoa. Whoa, ouys, time i especially.

il ogt. I want — Mike is asking questions. I 11 @  Ewen if you wexen't serioss, it's still a

12 think you answered the question Mike asked. 12 problem?

13 Tet's try and stay with the question-and-answer. 13 A Right. I agree with you. 2And I have z daughter
14 You're going to have plenty of time to do yours. 1 that's a lawyer.

15 THE WITNESS: I'm sorry. 15 @  Well, her name is Alecia, too, isn't it?

16 MR. PAIMER: That's ckay. 16 & Yes. And I certainly don't think my daughier

17 @ (BY MR. SCHRFFER:) But this Commission, based 17 should not be a lawyer.

18 on the testimny and evidence that's been 18§  I'e gotten the inpression from the questions
13 presented, could decide that you did order a 19 your lawyers have asked other attorneys that

20 polygraph. They could make that finding; 20 there's some attempt to get you back on the

21 corvect? 21 bench and have lawyers that have appeared here
22 B The answer to the question is, yes, they could. 22 to practice in front of you. Is that a fair

23 @  2nd based - 23 statement. of what wa've been listening to tocay?
24 A But it would not be a proper finding. 24 A Mo

25 Q  And you would dispute it? 25 Q  It's not?
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1 A The first part is. 1 clients?
2 @  Ckay. Do yms -~ who should meke the decision 2 " MR. NICHOLSON: I'm going to object at this
3 whether or not any lawyer that's participated in 3 point. It's a total mischaracterization as to
4 these proceedings should appear in front of you, q why those lawyers were called. They were called
5 if you're allowed back on the bench? 5 to demonstrate the character of Judge Fuller and
$ b The two lawyers involved and their clients. 6 whether or mot, based on his character, he was
7 Q  Youdm't think you have any responsibility? i fit to stay on their cases.
8 A Yes, I do. g MR, PAIMER: Well, I think it's a fair
9 0  Vhat is that respensibility? 9 question. I'm going to overrule your chjection,
10 & To tell them about this, that I've been in 10 and you can go ehead and answer the question.
1 proceedings where sc-and-so testified and 11 & Do I think it's only my responsibility? I would
12 so-and-so testified and that they should be 12 have to say no, that's not only my
13 telling their clients. It's the same that I 13 responsibility.
14 have — I live at the Sandstone Condominiur, and 14 Q (B MR. SCHAFFER:) Well, do you think it's -~
15 there's a lawsuit pending, And I'm - I'm — 15 A Kell, because —
16 okay. So I have told lawyers on both sides or 16 @  — inpart your responsibility?
17 one, maybe only one lawyer is there, we've had 17 A What?
18 discusstons about this. Is it - it's my 18 ©¢ Do you think it's at least in part your
19 responsibility to advise the parties and the 19 responsibility?
20 lawyers that there's a potential of a conflict, 20 A Ch, absolutely. We just talked about that.
21 and 1f you wish me to remove myself, I will db 21 Because the key word there is impartial, I have
22 so. 2 to be impartial. And I don't thisk I wouldn't
73 @ Have you ever read the Canon regarding 23 be impartial, But if anybody else did, then I
24 disqualification of a judge? P! should voluntarily, not by an affidavit, remove
25 & I'dsayno. 25 myself. But if the litigants and their clients
321 323
10 Okay. I'mgoing to read you part of it, Juke: 1 feel T can be impartial, then why wouldn't I be
2 Canon 380, Disqualification: A judge shall 2 ale fo stay?
3 disqualify himself or herself in a proceeding in 30 IguessIzead the rule to suggest that it's the
4 which the judge's impartiality might reasonably 4 Court's responsibility. It says "shall"
3 be cuestioned. 5 disqualify himself where his impartiality might
6 A Uh-huh. 6 reasonably be questioned.
7Q Do you see that? 7 Bnd my question is to you, if Glenn Brenner
83 A Id 8 showed up in your court in lignt of the fact
$ Q0  And inasmach as a mmber of people have appeared 9 that he filed the complaint and testified in
10 in these proceedings, perhaps testified against 10 these proceedings, under that rule would you
11 you, perhaps filed coeplaints ageinst you, if 11 disqualify yourself?
12 they — if their case comes before you, would 12 & If he called -~ if he asked me to, I would, yes.
13 you agree with me that it's your responsibility 13 ¢ M. Fo. I'msaying —-
14 to disqualify yourself because your impartiality 14 A HNo, I-—
15 oould reasonably be questioned? 159 - msolicited. If he showed wp in your court,
16 & T agres that is a topic that should be discussed 16 would you take it upon yourself and assume the
17 with the attorneys. And if that attorney, ke it 11 hurden that it's your responsibility to
1 the one that testified for ne or the one that 18 disqualify yourself because your impartiality
18 testified against me, or whatever you want to 19 could reasonably be questioned?
20 characterize it as, that if there was any 20 & Iden't know.
2 question, T would remove myself, yes. 21 Q  And lara Roetel, if she appeared in your court,
22 Q@  Shouldn't that be your responsibility to take it 22 would you take it upon yourself wnder that Canon
23 wpon your shoulders to make the decision to 23 to disqualify yourself?
24 ramove yourself and not foist it wpon the 20 4 Well, I think I've answered it and I'm going
25 lawyers to have to discuss it with their 25 to — that would be my answer, That, if lara
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1 Roetzel had a case before me, she and I would 1 disagree with your decision, but they thought

z have a discussion, do you wish me to take mysélf 2 they had a fair hearing, and it was

3 off the case because you feel that I camnet be 3 well-presented, and the decision was made from

4 impartial? And if she said yes — in a 4 that.

5 conversation now, not by affidavit — I would 5 0 ind do you understand that to lay pecple the

6 remove myself. But if she felt that I could be 6 appearance of justice may be more important than
7 impartial -- that's my problem, I don't know 7 vhat your actual ruling is?

g that I would, onmy own, in all cases. 8 A  Yes.

9 For instance, all the Glenn Brenner, Lara 9 Q  And you've heard the testimony of Mike Wilson

10 Roetzel, or any of the other deputy state's 19 where his clients were texribly upset and

11 attorney's that were interviewed, I — I wouid 11 offended?

12 have to say no, I don't think I would just on 12 8 Yes.

13 all state's attorney cases take myself off. And 13 ¢ 2nd you've also heard the testimony from the

1t 7 think Mr. Brenner kind of talked about that 14 prior hearing about the woman who walked out of
15 with the Comission. 15 the court wondering how her child could ¢et a
16 Q¢  Well, Jude - 16 fair hearing when you referred to them as Little
17 A That he — that he would remove me, but he would 11 peckerheads. Do you remenber that?
18 let the other state's attorney's make thelr own i8 & Yes. That was in Dave Nelson's report, yes.
19 decision. 19 0 In the report from Dr. Armnio he said you qeit
20 ¢  Ind my question to you is, is it your bawden or 20 drinking in 1986; is that right?
21 is it the attorney's burden wxer these 21 A Yss. ‘
22 cireumstances? 22 0 B then in the report from Mr. Holmes he said
23 A Both. It's got to be discussed, Mr. Schaffer. 23 that you quit drirnking after the suspension so
2 It can't be ignored. p1! that you could be on the top of your gare. Do
25 Q At the Order to Show Cause hearing your defense 25 you remember that from his records?
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1 vas, quote: I forgot that I was a judee, 124 Correct.

2 maqote. Do you remenber that? 2 0 Sowere you still drinking back then?

33 Ubheh, 3 A Back when?

4 Q  Yes? 4 Q0 In 2010, the swmer of 2010.

53 I'm sorry. Yes. The answer is yes. 5 A Yes,

6 @  And now we know from the memoranchm, e-meil from 6 Q0  Soyou hain't quit drinking in —

7 Carol Foster, ard her testimony that there were T & 1 stopped drinking in 1967 until 1995 when

8 a lot of problems back in 2004 at least down in 8 Alecia went off to school.

g Fall River County. You'd agree with that? 9 Q  Then you started up again?
10 A I viould agree that I was all of — T was mde, 10 A 1 did.
11 and I was demeaning, and all those things to her i1 @  And have you stopped again?
12 and her staff. 2 A 1 have.
i3 @ And that was early on in your career? 130  Ckay.
14 b Correct. 14 A It's - yes, The answer is yes.
15 Q S0 it wasn't a question of forgetting later o 15 Q@ Ere you claiming that for any of the problems
16 in your career, it's something that happened 16 that bring us here?

17 early on, too? 17 A Mo, not at all. Tt's just a factor. I have

18 & That T was that way, yes. Yes. 18 friends who are recovering alcchclics and
19 ¢ Ckay. Judge Fuller, do you understand that 19 I've — we've — we talk about this. And it's a
20 Judges not only have to do justice but they must 20 factor that, if you can eliminate it, it's just
21 appear to do justice? 21 the best thing to do. So that's what I did when
2 A Yes. 2 T had the fomzl corplaint.
73 QW is that inportant? 23 Q0 Mow, I think when we had the Order to Show Cause
24 & 'To show the Impartiality of the court so that P hearing you agreed that we were not talking
pi] when people leave the courtream, they might 25 about: a single incident but a pattern of conduct
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1 on your pert? 1 A I expect them — I prepared a remediation plan
2 You asked me that question and I sald yes. The 2 for me, and I gave it to my lawyers. And I
3 evidence that they had at that hearing showed a 3 expect them to address the proposition that the
i pattern, yes. 1 Judge is remorseful, and I am. I'm absolutely
5 And this evidence does as well, does it not? 5 ashamed of myself., I'm ashamed of myself for
6 I don't know. I'd have — they would have to 6 what I have dore. I brought disrespect to
1 make that decision, hecause you've had other 7 this - to the Court, I brought disrespect to
8 people testify that, at least I guess my 8 attomneys, I've affected ny family. I'm
§ impression was, that it's not a pattern. g ashared.
10 So you don't -- 10 So I think — and T'm hopeful that these are
1 Mike Wilson's testimony, for instance, was in 1 things that -- I know they can be, I canbe
12 that regard, I thought. 12 changed, because I — in my plan, I put in that
13 So you don't think you have a pattern of 13 a CourtSmart system is available for monitoring
14 mistreating people, treating them rudely in a 14 for anybody that wants to monitor it.
15 condescending, demeaning ramner? You dispute 15 Apparently, according to Mr, Krattermaker, it's
15 that? 1% on every day.
17 Let's back up. let's just take the year 2010, 17 So, my calendar is public, you know, 50
18 this year. Okay. Did I treat people rudely and 18 everybody knows when I'm in court. I mean, the
13 disrespectfully, with a tone and with sarcasm? 19 CourtSmart system would know when T'm In court,
20 The answer is yes. Did I not treat people that 20 be it short cause days or court trials or any of
21 way? The answer is yes. 21 that. So T can be monitored to see that I have
22 So until Mr. Holmes told me that, and I've 22 changed.
23 said that, wntil T learned that irritation and 23 A mentor, somebody 1ike Jucge Gienapp or
24 annoyance is on an anger scale, I did not 2 Judge Simko that I could talk to. Judge Davis
25 realize that I was treating people angrily 25 is my presiding judge, he has court personnel,
329 3R
1 because of my tone, becauss of my body language, 1 he has staff, he has the court service officers,
2 and because of my sarcasm. 2 he has the clerks. You know, they could report
3 And now T know that when people hear me say 3 directly to him about if I haven't changed or if
4 those things, they think I am angry and that I'm 4 I've gone back to my bad hebits.
5 showing aggression toward them. I now know 5 I don't know, I quess I hope the Supreme
6 thet. 6 Court feels I'm worth saving.
7 You're not claiming that's some type of excuse 70  Jule, the CourtSmart system, is that what was
& for your behavior? § on when you referred to the police officer as a
9 th, o, 9 racist?
10 Because the Code of Judicial Conduct governs 10 A MWell, it had to be because you have a transcript
1 conduct, not what the underlying reasons might 1 of it.
12 be for why you got there. You agree with that? 12 @ End vas it the CourtSmart system that was on
13 Ch, sure. That but — right. The answer is 13 when you had the discussion with Heidi Limgren
14 yes. 14 prior to the court session, sbout getting your
15 And I guess the question that comes to my mind 15 ass in a sling with the Judicial Qualifications
16 is, how does this Commission, the Supreme Court 16 Commission?
7 deal with this case if it goes public and the 17 A There's a — yes, there's a transcript on it.
18 pdlic is advised through the media or whoever, 18 0  So the system was working, it's just a question
19 that we have a judge sitting cut here in the 19 now you think if somebody could go through it
20 Seventh Cirenit who has flipped the bird from 20 and monitor it, that they might be able to stop
21 the banch, who the Commission may find has swomn 21 you from doing these things?
22 at staff in open court, who's been rude, 2 A To.
2 dareaning, and mistyeated court services 13 @ Or catch then?
2 wotkers? How do you expect the Comission and 24 A I'mgolg to step myself. I'm stopping myself,
25 the Supreme Court to address that situation? 25 (Okay. They can monitor the fact that I have and
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¢h, boy, whenever he retired, he moved out here,

1 they - and again, the court personnel for sure 14

2 has access to the presiding judge, if T haven't. 2 he sat on some cases. It would be early on when :
3 They don't even need a court services -~ or, 3 he was sitting on same cases where there were

4 excuse me, a CourtSmart system for that type of 4 conflicts in our circuit. And if my courtroom

5 a report, 5 was available, or any other judge's, he'd use my
6 @  But your testimony is, you never realized until 6 courtroam and he wrote that one onmy ~- on my
7 you went to this anger management program that 7 Fhibit M.

8 you were doing these things or offending these 8 0  Judge Martin wrote that on?

4 people? 9 A Yes.

10 A I did not recognize that I was offending them, 10 @ Is that based on sore cheervations he had or
11 correct. 11 some discussions he had with you?

12 MR. SCHAFFER: That's all. 12 A No. He just - he told me, he said, You forgot
13 MR. WICHOLSON: Try to reposition myself 13 one.

14 here so Judge Fuller can talk te me and the 14 @  Ckay. So this has always been right in front of
15 Comissicn at the same time. 15 you?

16 (Discussion was held off the record.) 16 A Yes.
1 (Brief recess was taken.) 17 Q  The entire time you've been on the bench,

18 MR, PRIMFR: Go ahead, Mike. 18 hasically?

19 {Fhibits M and N were marked for 19 A Yecth, Whoever took it off the bench would know
20 identification.) 20 exactly where it is. I have a computer here.
219 (BY ¥R, SCHAFFER:) Judge Fuller, I'm going to 21 @  It's staring you right in the face, im't it?
2 show you what the court reporter has marked as 22 A This one is right over here, and then the next
23 Exhibit M, which is a copy of a document that 23 gxhibit is the cne beside it.

24 was taped to your bench as you lock out. Was 24 9Q Yes.

5 that on your bench? 25 A Yeah.
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1A Yes. 10  Id Bhibit N, is that the exhibit that is right
2 MR. SCHAFFER: We'd offer Exhibit M. 2 beside the Ten Camandrents?

3 MR. NTCHOISON: Which one is ¥, Mike? 3 A Yes. They sit on ny bench like this.

4 MR. SCHAFFER: Ten Commancrnents. 4 MR. SCHAFFRR: We'd offer Exhibit N.

5 MR. NICHOLSOM: Okay. 5 MR. NICHOLSON: Mo objection.

6 MR. PAIMFR: Do you have any cbjections, 6 MR. PAIMER: N will be received.

7 Mr. Nicholson? 70 {BY MR. SCHAFFER:} And Exhibit N is an

8 © MR. NICHOLSON: Mo objection, i] evaluation of you in 2004, it looks like; is

9 MR. PAIMER: M will be received. 9 that right? )

10 Q (BY MR. SCHAFFER:} And I'm — this says the Ten 1t A Correct.

1 Commardinents For The Mew Judge. Have you had 11 §  Is this the evaluation that Lara Rostzel

12 that always taped to your bench? 12 testified was posted in your chambers?

1334 Yes. 13 A I don't know that because it wasn't posted in my
14 0 Ind it has the Ten Commandments: Be kind, be ! chartbers.

15 patient, be dignified. I mean, cbvicusly you 15 Q  You dispute that part of her testimony?

16 violated a mmber of these, haven't you, over 16 A Yesh, This was on my kench.

1 the years? 17 @ I this was in front of you since it came out?
i A I've not always been kind. I have definitely 18 A Yes., 3ince Judge Davis {sic] went over these
19 not always been patient. I have not been 19 with me, ves. Excuse me, Judge Young, I'm

20 dignified. 20 serry.

21 ¢ A I'm locking at the last handritten 71 9Q  Ckay.

22 comtancnent, mmber 11, it says: If you canmot 22 A Which would be 2004,

3 improve on the silence, don't spesk. 23 ¢ Ad in comment three, it says: Pay closer

U B Judge Martin gave me that one. 2 attention to the letter of the law and be more
25 Q  Bnd how long has that been on this poster? 25 respectful of people appearing before him, in
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1 whatever capacity they are there. 10  Ckay. Judge Fuller, how old are you?

2 & That's what it says, yes. z A I'm 67.

3 Q@  And thet was also staring you in the face since 3 Q0  Ind how long have you been married?

4 at least approximately 2004? 4 A 46 years.

5 A MNo, Since 2004, yes, that's correct. 5 Q  IAnd your wife's name, we've heard it here in the
6 0  So these would have been reminders to you of 6 courtroam a few times, is Jaoque?

7 things that, if you would have folloved, would 74 Yes.

8 have kept you out of the trouble that brings us 8 I take it you've only been married orce?

9 here? 73 Correct. As Tom Brokaw said, I married my

10 & If I would have — yes. The answer is if I 1 trophy wife the first time.
1 would have been kind at all stages, and patient 11 @ Do you have any children?

12 and dignified, and I think the other one — and 12 & Four,
13 not be condescanding to lawvers in the 13 ¢ Can you tell us sbout them, who are they, what
1 oourtroom, yes, from the report that we have 14 are their ages?

15 from Mr. Nelson ard the testimony, that is all 15 & Ch, wow. Ckay. Oldest son, Brook, he's 43.

16 correct. 16 He's an inspector for the United States Postal
17 MR. SCHAFFER: Okay. That's all. 17 Department. He's in law enforcement, married,
18 CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR, NICHOLSCN: 18 has two children and three adopted children.

19 @  Judge Fuller, just so that we'ze fresh on the 19 Jason, is 40, I think. He's 41. He's 41.
20 same topic, Exhibit N which is the evaluation, 20 He's in Austin, Texas, he is a chircpractor. He
pal says at the top, Evaluation of Judge A. Peter 21 is married and he has two children,

22 Fuller 2004. Is that the evaluation that Judge 22 Thad is married, he has four children, and
23 Yourng specified in his affidavit as being the 23 he's in the construction business in
2 one that was — you took heart to? 24 Tead/Deadwood area.
25 A Yes. 25 Ind Alecia is 36, so Thad is 39 — 36 and
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1 Q  Have you read Jude Young's affidavit? 1 she's merried and she has a baby daughter and is
2 A I'versadit. I — T can't answer particular 2 going to have another child in July, and she's a
3 questions. 3 Lawyer.

4 @ I think one of the comments he made in the ¢ Q  She'd be the fifth generation of the Fullers; is
5 affidavit was that you ranked in the growp of 5 that correct?

5 judges that had positive coments about them. 6 A Yes,

7 nd there were some judges that he put in the 7 Q  What year did you go into private practics?

8 group that had negative comments about them. 8 A 68,

9 Did you read that in Judge Young's eval — or 9 0  Bnd I think Mike went throagh some of that

10 repart or affidavit? 10 history, but can you tell us what primarily your
1 1 think I did, ves. i1 practice involved, what kind of cases you tock?
12 Q  Ckay, 2nd what was the <- and did you also see 12 & Iwasa general when I started, Is that what

13 in Judge Young's affidavit that he indicated 13 you're talking about?

u that when he gave you this evaluation form, that 4 @  Yedh.

15 he took it as a positive step that you would 15 A Al right. ¥hen T started, I was a general

i6 take out the negative ones rather than the 16 practitioner. We did — we, the firm, we did —
17 positive cnes and use that as a quideling? 17 1 did seme plaintiffs work. Basically I did

18 A I read that. 18 wostly plajintiffs work, I did some contract

1 ¢ Ckay. 2nd was his depiction of that acomate? 18 dispute work, contracts for small businesses in
20 B Acourate in what way, please. 20 Chamberlain, some wills at thet time before it
21 Q@ In the fact that you -- when he indicated that 21 became very complicated. Just, you know, a

22 he felt you pulled out the one negative and not 22 general practitioner. Did criminal defense wark
23 all the positives, is that accurately what 23 in Brule County, over in Iyman County.
24 happened? 24 0  Did you at some time evolve into a practice that
25 A Yeah, Yes. 25 was more trial oriented?
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1 A BActually, there was — 50 percent of my work in 1 ghout what he did when he was on patrol. And

2 Chamberlain would be trial work, and then the 2 it's in that transcript, and that's exactly what
3 answer is it evolved even further when I moved 3 happened.

4 to Tead to join Mr. Xeller and Mr. Driscoll 4 And as I listened to him testify, I became
5 there. 5 irritated and annoyed frcm what he was telling
6 0  And did you still contime to have a general 5 me. And I definitely got a tone of voice and my
7 practice in addition to your trial practice? 7 body language was, I'm sure —- I do not lmow

8 A Really changed a lot when I got to Lead because 8 that T had that body language. But if Cfficer
g our primery client was Homestake Mining Company, 9 Twedt or the other people said that's what my
10 so they got sued a lot. But they had more 10 body was doing, I'm absclutely confident that's
il reguiatory confrontations in front of the Board n what I was doing, that T was reacting to what I
12 of Mineral and Enviromment, or the Board -- the 12 was hearing.

13 Water Board in Pierre, or with the Mine Safety 13 Q  Did you think — it was your impression at the
1 and Health Administration. 1 time that the stop that he was involved in was
15 There was also a union, United Steelworkers 15 improper?

16 vepresented the workforce there, so we had 16 & Correct.
17 arbitrations that were involved, and those are 17 ¢ And do you think it was appropriate to — even
18 in front of an arbitrator, but it's a 18 though you felt that way, d you feel it ws
19 trial-setting type situation. 19 appropriate to use such strong language ina
20 And then it evolved — then that evolved, 20 courtroom with Officer Twedt there, and alse
2 and then also it evolved in to actually doing 2 considering the ramifications to him and his
2 the labor negotiations with the steelworkers. 2 job?
23 And then also it evolved in to some very large 23 A Did I think it was appropriate?
24 contracts. 4 Q@ At the time, how did you feel?
25 And also from the very begimning, I did all 75 B Bt the time T must have because I did it,
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1 of the Workers' Compensation claim work for 19 Ckay.

2 Homestake Mining Company up until 'S8 or '99. 2 A Tdidnot — I did rot stog, I did not think, I
3 2rd then other — myself and other attorneys 3 reacted to what I was hearing.

4 usad to o it, too. 4Q Given what you've learned now, from your mental
5 Q  Af some point -- let me rephrase that. Wy did 5 health experts, how would you handle that

6 you want to become a jude? What caused you to 6 situation today?

7 seek that position? 7R T would listen, I would — if the tension was

8 & I thought I — because of my experience, 1 e coming to ny arms and my hody, I would have the
9 thought I could do good things, frankly. That g immeciate signal that I was becoming irritated
10 was my mindset: I could contribute. The 10 and T was becoming annoyed. And I then would
1 profession has been very good to me, and I 1 stop and think, where an I, what's the
12 thought I would be —- I thought I would be a 12 situation, you know. And I would not have
13 benefit to the public and to the bar. 13 responded or reacted at all at that hearing.
14 g I vant to talk about some of the inappropriate 14 @  BEnd I'm assuning whatever ruling you made in
15 things that Mr. Schaffer pointed cut that you 15 that particilar hearing would remain the same
16 have indicated that you participated in. Can 16 regardless of how you handled the impression of
17 you tell me what was going on vhen you made the 17 Officer Twedt's testimony?

18 coment about Officer Twedt and the racist 18 & Yes. My ruling would have been the same,

19 remark? Tell me what that hearing was about and 19 correct.,
20 how that coment came about. 060 Ckay.
21 A Actually, the transcript you have describves it. 21 A Tt's the way I did it.
2 But it wag a juvenile hearing, again, so it's 22 @  Canyou also —~ I'm just going to go down the
pX] not a public hearing. The juvenile is present, 23 list to some of these things, and I want you to
pi] and the juvenile’s lawyer, and the juvenile's 2 tell mo about it. You made the comment about,
25 parent, and he would -- well, he was testifying 2 my little peckerheads; correct?
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1 A Yes. Yes, Idid. 1 @  Did it have anything to do with how you really
2 @  Is that appropriate? 2 felt about him?

3R Mo 3 A  Oh m. Oh ro.

4 Q  What context and what particular instances? I 4 Q  Okay.

5 assume it was made more than once. Did you make 5 A N

6 those coments? 6 Q  Now, John Nooney was in here. You heard him

7 A Friday is juvenile day and sometimes pecple 7 testify it made him uncomfortable when you

g would say, ask me, What's on your calendar ] called him at his office about a case that might
9 today? Ind I did say that, Today is my little 9 have been instructive in a prooseding be had in
10 peckerhead day. 10 Front of you. Did you hear that?

11 ¢ ¥hat was your intenticn in saying that? I mean, 1A Idd

12 vhat was the meaning behind 1t? 12 ¢ Wy did you teke it upon yourself to call him at
13 A Srart aleck remark. 13 his office? What was your thinking behind that?
14 Q@  Ckay. At the time, did you think about that or 1¢ A Because the case that I was familiar with that I
15 did you have any raticnal thought about what you 15 thought to be dispositive was not in his favor
16 were doing when you made those comments? 16 and 1 vanted to tell him that, and to tell him
17 A Mo 17 that he neaded to address that case before the
18 §  ¥hat's the situation with Mr. Banks? And 18 hearing. Because if there's law contrary to

19 evidently I don't know if they have -- how close 19 this, I'm going to need to know that before I
20 in time they heppened, hut there's an incident 0 make a decision, That right now I thought it
21 where supposedly you flipped the hird to him and il was qoing to bhe reselved ard it was not going to
22 then you called him an asshole later in your 7 be in his favor, and I wanted to give him the
23 chanbers, I beliewe? 23 opportunity to prove me wWrong. '
24 A T think that's all in that period, that short 24 Q0 You wanted to make sure that the full extent of
25 period of time. 25 the law was in front of you and presented to you

345 347

19 Chay. 1 by the lawyexs so you could make the proper

2 A Yeah 2 ruling?

3 Q0  Canyou tell me what context flipping hin the 3 4 That's right.

4 bird was made in? 4 @  Did you handle that intent improperly by calling
5 A 1 really can't remenber. I know that Bart Banks 5 him?

6 testified and I think he — I think the world of 6 A HMbsolutely. Yes,

7 Bart Banks. Let's start there. And he — he 7 Q  How would you do that today?

8 and his father, for sure. 5 A I'd call them both. Yeah, both. In that case
9 And then the cowple of cases T had with Bart § there were two.

10 before I went on the bench, he and T, we had a 10 @  Had you ever done that before, ex parte, or

11 banter going, and I took it to the bench. 1 called lawyers in their office sbout cases?

12 That's the bottom line. I took it to the bench, 12 A Mot — not that I know of. Do lawyers and I

13 and I shouldn't have. 13 have conversations about matters that the other
14 I covicusly -- I embarrassed him in front of 14 lawyer is not on? The answer is yes on that.

15 his client, he was very uncomfortable in front 15 Like, I might call a lawyer saying, How you

16 of his client. I was rude. Cbviously it's 16 coming on the case? Is it still going to be —
17 rude, and it should not have happened. It did 17 are wa still qood to schednie? I know I do

1§ happen. 18 that.

13 @ By either ome of those events, were you 19 Q  Have you had conversations though with lawpers,
20 intending to, by flipping him the bird, was that 20 e lawyer without the opposite side there

21 your intent to show some aggression or what? 21 sbout —-

22 Were you being flippant with him? 2 A Mo

23 & T was -~ another smart aleck remark, is what it 73 Q - mibstantive matters that are in frent of you?
24 was. I qot - I erronecusly got caught up in 24 & M. That's — mo. No. I'il say no.

25 the banter and forgot T was a judge. 5 Q  Ckay. MNow, there's been some talk about this
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1 wig incident. Was that — I think, if I 1 one of my cad's pieces that he had in his

2 remenber the testimony, that happened one time 2 office.

3 in 2003; is that correct? 3 Byl then the jury — or, excuse me, the

¢ & That's — 2003 I was a juvenile judge. That's 4 witness stand is right here. Ad I have a -- I
5 wien I got the wig from Judge Delaney and that's 5 have the poster of the tribute to Governor

3 when I wore it, yes. 6 Mickelson and the other people up there.

7 Q0  That was seven years ago; correct? 7 Then I have George Washington, the classic

8 A Well, yemh, 8 George Washington piece behind the witness. And
9 0  Have you worn it in the inferim peried? 8 then T have the ~- I can't remenber the name of
WA M 10 it, it's the Americen flag. It's by itself and
11 @  This picture that Mr. Schaffer presented, i1 it's down. It's another classic plece.

12 Bxhibit G? 12 And then over on behind the jury I have four
13 A Yes. 13 of the Governor Mickelson posters that he had

it Q That was on the front of your bench? 14 for his Governor's Hunt. A then in the

15 & Yes. 15 middle, when Denny Dodge was my court reporter,
16 ©  That was posted there by you seven years later, 16 a person gave him a picture of a B-1B borber

17 have anything to do with that original wig 17 flying over a Glacier lake. So all the way

18 incident in 2003? 18 around in my courtroom is art.

19 A No. It was another piece of art. There's a lot 19 @  You heard Mr. Fratbermaker talk about the
20 of art in my courtroom. 20 coment: that you made about, This is where I
21 @  And who gave this to you? 21 hang my Indians.
22 A Pat Economos, a lawyer in Mitchell, 22 & Yeah.
23 Q  You told me dbout that, and that was given to 23 Q  Did you hear that?
2 you at approximately the same time you put it w 24 B Idid
25 o your bench; correct? 25 9  2And I assume that's the art that you're
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1 A Right. 1 referring to that's kind of on the —- what I

2 Q Does it have anything at all to do with the fact 2 guess would be on your right sice?

3 that you were facing these procesdings in front 31 A Yeah.

1 of the Commission? 1 Q  Bsyou're locking out towards the courtroa?

5 A No. Never, never came to mind. 5 A Right.

6 0  Did you ever tell anybody that it did? § @  Is that correct? Those are the pictures he was
TR Mo 7 referring to?

8 @ Do you have any idea why Mr. Krattemmaker or § A Yes.

9 M. Schaffer or anybody else would think that? 9 Q  Can you please tell me what you meant when you
104 I don't. 19 rade that comment.

11 Q@  Tell me about the art in your courtroom. 11 &2 Well, T can tell you — I can tell you — here,
12 &4 Well, you can see some of it in the wider 12 if you look, is where the WIFL, or the audio

1 picture. 13 visual system that is in courtroom, it would sit
14 @ I think it's Exhibit F. 14 right here in the courtroom. This is the screen
15 A Eshibit F. This picture shows the art on ny 15 over here,

16 court side, and this is a Bev Doolittle print, 16 S0 before a trial and people were using it,
11 one of her older ones. It shows when she used 17 we would — I would take my — these three

18 the aspen trees as a part of her art. And these 18 pieces down and put them behind this bench. And
19 are Native Americans who are stealing some 19 then T remember doing it. Then I — when the
0 horses from this Cavalry line. 20 trial is over, T go — I would go back and hang
21 This is a copy of the museum plece of 21 my, these three pieces that T took down.

2 Sitting Bull. This is a copy of a miseum plece 2 And T remember saying — I did not remember
23 from a chief on the Rosebud reservation. This 23 that Mr. Krattermaker was there. But I remember
2% is a8 — I think his name is Corbett, who does 2 saying, again in a smart aleck deal, This is

pi] the law kind of etches. And those are sore — 25 where I hang ny Indians, And I immediately
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1 said, Fold it, that's completely ingppropriate. 1 You've got to remember, this is a 1974
2 I'm sorry. 2 Volkswagen, and it's orange, and it's
3 And that's the cne time I said it. I've 3 conspicuous, and I drive it.
4 never said it agein., And I didn't know that 4 Do you mean anything aggressive towards the law
5 Mr. Krattenmaker was even there, but he could 5 enforcement or anybody else by that license
6 have been there, 6 plate or by your van -
7 We weren't in court. We weren't in court, 1 MNo.
8 we weren't in session. I'm in there just g By driving an old van?
9 hanging that stuff up, and he manages that 9 Mo. No. In fact, the law enforcement pecple
10 system, that audio visual system, He brings it 10 that have approached me think it's funny. They
11 in, instructs people how to use it, he takes it 11 think it's funny.
12 out and stuff. 12 It's kind of hard to dispute that everyons is
13 Q@  Rather than the neqative inference that was made 13 entitled to probable cause anyway, isn't it?
1 by M. Frattermsker by that comment, are those u It's just a '74 orange Volkswagen bus going down
15 plctures of Native Zmericans hanging in your 15 the road, with a 9.2 surfboard on the top of it,
16 courtroom because of your respect for the Mative 16 sith bumper stickers on the back and things like
17 Hrericans? 17 that.
18 A That's why I put them up, because I see lots of 18 That's what Delaney -- that's why he gave it
19 Native Americans, especially in the juvenile 13 tome. He said, That's probeble cause going
20 area, and that's why I hung then because these 20 down the road. 2nd that's why I did it.
21 are leaders. 71 Was Judge Simke's testimony about the — why you
2 Q M, Rrattenmaker also took issue with the fact 22 have that van and vhere it came from, was that
23 that you had - and I believe that Chief Deputy 2 acourate?
24 State's Attormey also, that yon have a license ! Yes.
P4 plate that says Erchable Cause on it? 25 Can you tell us about your brother and how you
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1A Yes, 1 got the van?
2 ¢ Tell me how you got that licemse plate, 2 {Pause.) Tet's -~ can I just leave it that John
3 A Got that from Judge Delaney. 3 was accurate and it's how T conmect with ny
4 Q  Ckay, Youdidn't buy it or chose it yourself? 4 brother?
5 A Well, he — let's put it this way. He asked me 5 ckay. How — just, you've been on the bench for
6 and I thought it would be funmy, In fact, can 6 seven years, right?
7 I ~ may I tell you the fimniest story? 7 Yes.
8 Q Yes. Yes. 8 Ind during that time period, have you handled
9 &  After T got the license plate, I'm driving I 9 juvenile matters on a regular rotation?
10 think on a Monday, or some morning, I'm driving 10 I think s0. T don't know. T was on in ‘U3 and
11 down from Lead after the weskend of being up in 1 then I care on in 2010, and I con't know if
12 the Northern Hills. 2And I'm driving down the 12 that's regular or irreqular.
13 interstate and a highway patrolman puils me 13 But you've been -- I guess, you've been an
14 over. Ind he comes up -- and right by the weigh i juveniles off and on for the seven years?
15 station there. 15 Just those fwo times.
16 He comes up o the window, and I said, 16 Ckay, And you heard the — can you tell re
17 What's up? And he sald, Well, you invited me. 17 shout the evolution of how you handle juvenile
18 T said, Oh, my license plate. And he said, 18 corrt and the caseload and the mmber of people
19 Yeah. Oh, by the way, I did call your plates in 19 that coms before you and how that's either
20 because you don®t have your tags on. 20 increased or decreased over the years?
21 2nd T looked in my glove compartment and 21 I—Idon't — I have a sense that it's
2 they were there. He said, Put your tags on your 22 increased but I don't know. I know that those
23 license plate. And he said, Have a good day. n kinds of statistics are kept and are availsble
24 It's the ICI, drug enforcement pecple, they — 24 through the court system.
25 they giggle about it, about the van. 25 T had never done Jjuveniles before "03, so I
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was learning in '03. T was learning how to

1 1 We developed a schedule for juveniles, and
2 handle it, I would like —- I have a prepaved 2 they are in sections. And so the first section
3 document to advise juveniles of their rights and 3 comes in, I — there's never been 100 paople in
4 the burden of proof and all those things. g my courtroom. But there's prebably been 40 for
5 Okay. 5 sure in my courtroom. Because that's the first
6 And we have them in sections. So every section, 6 section.
7 the first thing I do is advise them of their 7 Ind then when they are processed, then we go
8 rights, which I — they are entitled to a closed 8 to the next section, et cetera. So I db it in
g hearing. I tell them that at the first of my 9 sections, Then we have all heerings in the
10 advisory, Then I tell them the rest of my 10 afternocn.  All of the juvenile hearings,
11 script that I give every time. 11 adjudicatory hearings, the suppression hearings,
12 And then at the end I say again, if vou want 12 things like that, we do that. '
13 to have a closed hearing, all you have to do is 13 So that's something that we all developed,
i tell me. 2And most of them do not want a closed 14 and that's the process I was using. There's
15 hearing. 15 mot — there's not a lot of conversation between
16 Everyone that has ever said they wanted a 16 myself and the court service officers during the
17 closed hearing has been given a closed hearing, 1 juvenile hearings because I — 9%.5 percent of
18 and that includes the people that cowe from the 18 the time do what the recomuendation — they
18 Juvenile Service Center to my courtrcom also. 19 Tecommend,
20 And that's — we start with them and then we go 20 At the bottom of their sheet, they give me
21 through it. 21 recommerdations. 8o I merely set forth the
22 The juvenile conferences — conference that 22 recompendations that they give, the
23 I went to and the things that I read and 23 digpositions.
24 recently I was involved in a mesting with the 24 i do say a comment. T have -~ and maybe
25 Casey Family Foundation and T — when T say 25 this is a misinterpretation. I do say a
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1 recently, that was June or July. I can't 1 comment,  Anybody that T send to the Department
2 remenber exactly when they were here, 2 of Corrections, after they have been through my
3 Bnd listening to — I think we were going to 3 juvenile — you knew, the juvenile, through the
4 be a pilot project for this Casey Family 4 court service officers, and through the
5 Foundation in the juvenile area. And the 5 professionals, the alcohol and drug people, and
3 gentleman who was heading it up or something, he 6 the psychological people, and the other
1 was discussing sbout juvenile matters, and he 1 comnseling people that we have, I tell them, I
B was talking ebout detention and jail and things 8 do — and this is something I picked up at the
9 like that. 9 conference that I went to.
10 And what I learned at the conference that I 10 I tell them that, We have provided you all
1 went to and through the reading and from what he i1 of the services that we can provide you, but our
12 said, I have acopted a philosophy that T — I am 12 funds are limited. So I say this, I say, So we
13 the least effective in changing behavior of 13 have failed to be able to change your behavior,
1 juveniles. 14 We failed you. And I have to apelogize ¢ you
15 The court service officers and the other 15 for it. We tried cur best. And the only other
6 professionals in that area are the ones that can 16 place that has the funds that can hopefully tum
17 effectively change behavior of juveniles. That 17 you 15 the Department of Corrections. So that's
18 a judge who sees them in a passing setting doss 18 where I'm sending you.
1% not really have that kind of affect. 19 And anybody that T do send to the Department
20 So this year when I starfed talking with 20 of Corrections, that's what I tell them.
21 Roxie and with Carla and Dennis at the Juvenile 21 Judge Fuller, prior to this complaint that
22 Service Center — Roxie is the deputy state's 22 you're in front of the Commission on, have you
2 attorney that handles all juveniles over at 23 ever had a judicial complaint filed against you?
24 Pennington County. We developed — and Jack at 24 Idon't know, MNo. I've mever got — I got a
25 the state's attorney's office. 25 letter from the secretary after this about a
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aboutscmebodyvmohadmcbaomplamtagamst

1 person, about a sentencing or something, and 1

2 that's the only other letter that I've ever 2 you in her office because she recognized the

3 gotten from the Comission. 3 hendwriting. Did you recognize the handwriting
4 Q A that letber just was a sumary, a dismissal 4 on this one evaluation you kept back?

5 or expgenent of the complaint? 5 No.

6 A Yas, I quess so, because it didn't go anpwhere. 6 Okay. You know, and you're going to have to

7 Q@  Cther than that, have you ever had a complaint 7 explain this to the Comission, Judge Fuller, I
8 against you in front of this Commission? 8 can just give you the fonum to do it. But you
9 A IfIhad, if I have, they've not brought it to 9 would aduit that, and My, Schaffer asked you

10 my attention. 16 this, that some of your actions that we've

11 @  Ckay. Have you ever heen disciplined? 1 talked about, your words, your demeancr, the
122 T 12 forum that you did them in, created an

13 @ Yow, these evalustions that we talked about that 113 appearance that you were not a fair individual
1 Jukpe Young had the affidavit about, are those i or you were biased in some instances. Would

15 volirtary evaluations? In other words, you had 15 that be a fair comment?

16 to submit yourself to those voluntarily? 16 Yes.

iIT A Yedh. Yeah 11 Tell me how you view yourself as far as actually
i3 @ 2nd were you interested in seeing what other 18 being hiased ar actually considering cases that
19 lawyers thought about you? 19 come in fromt of you.

0 A Yes. 20 I consciously listen to the evidence before me,
21 Q And by and large, you got positive feedhack; 21 T read the briefs of the attorneys, I do a lot
22 correct? 22 of my own research, too. I go read the cases.
22 8 That's — that's what Judge Young characterized 23 Sometimes attorneys don't give you the case, and
24 it as when he was talking te me and showing me 2 I want to read the case because, especially when
25 the evaluations, which he then took back. But I 25 you're in crininal law, you know, the facts
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1 took that — I asked him if T could have that i drive the constitution. The constitution does

2 one, which is an exhibit. 2 not drive the facts.

3 Q  Infact, Juie Young I think in his affidawit 3 You've got —- the facts you have to have.

4 said he was impressed enough with you that he 4 So when somebody cites to me principles of law,
5 then supported you in your nun for election in 5 I have to read the facts to see why those

§ 2006; correct? 6 principles were applicebie. 2nd so that's why I
T A He did. 7 do a lot of my own research, too, because

8 @  And part of that I think he said was based upon 8 sametimes you don't get that from the lawyers.

9 those evaluations? 9 In example of that is when I called Jom

10 & I believe he said that in his affidavit. 10 Mooney. I went and read that case agein, and
11 ¢  In looking at it from today's perspective, ina 1 that's why T —- in my mind it was dispository.
12 way those evaluations thwarted in a way any 12 Idon't — I don't feel a bias or a prejudice or
13 progress you made in recognizing some of these 13 an impartiality against anybody.

i mental health issues we've talked about today; 14 I think — I think Heidi Iinngren kind of

15 correct? 15 summarized it in her testimony at the Show

16 & Idon't know, I didn't make a conscious 16 Cause. I made these comments that she testified
17 association that way. 17 about the law enforcement officers and things

1% Q 1 quess, the point I'm trying to make is, at 18 like that, and they don*t 1like to bring this to
18 least at that time, you were wder the 19 me, or they don't like that.
20 impression that the lawyers that appeared in 20 T've signad every search warrant that law
21 front of you had a positive impression of you? il enforcement has brought to me. T think she

2 A Yes, I cid. Yes. 22 said, I don't like what he says but he's

23 Q@ And those evaluations were anomymous; corvect? 23 never -- never niled against me in a criminal

24 A Yeah. Right. 2 case. So I don't carry it. I don't carry it to
25 Q  Evidently the chief daputy state's attornsy knew 25 the decision.
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19  Youwnderstand the discomect between what it 1 can change that behavioz.

2 appears like and what's actually going on in 2 A They can — you cen expect it because now I

3 yor head when you make these comments? 3 immediately recognize it. There's absolutely no
4 A Yes, Absclutely. Zbsolutely. Absolutely. ¢ situation -- I"ve only had an opporiunity

5 @ Do you view all the cases, every case that comes 5 because I've not been on the bench to — Jaogue
6 in front of you as being an important case? 3 has been a great feedback because I share with
7 A 1 do. 7 her what Bob Holmes has been teaching me. And

8 Q  And I noticed in the Ten Commandrents that you 8 so she's helped me because she's tuned in to it.
9 have in front of you that it says, mmber seven, 9 nd 0 when I — and I'm really getting good
10 Remerber there are no wnimportant cases. Is it at feeling the thing he called the feelings, the
1 that a tenet that you follow, doing the 11 adrenaline that Holmes told me sbout, because I
12 studying, reading the cases, and being preparved 12 apparently have — am very, say, emotional,
13 for the hearings that come in front of you? 13 because 1 can feel right away in my ams and
14 A That's my goal. Thet's what I try to do, 14 across my chest the tension caused by this
15 @ Somctimes you get immersed in these cases and 15 adrenzline, this irritation, and this annoyance.
16 you're reading everything, and then things come 16 And it's — it's just interesting when somebody
17 in front of you, there are frustrations that 17 points it out to you.
18 develop; correct? 18 Md T now think, and I now pause, and I now
19 A That's correct. 19 breathe. Instead of responding, T wait. Like
20 @  And that's what's caused some of these comments 0 Bob Holmes told me, he said — he told you about
21 and inappropriate demsanor items? 2t drinking the water. He says, Don't have & glass
22 A Correct. 22 of water on your table, He'sald, Have a pitcher
23 Q0 Have you ever had your honesty or anpbody ever 23 and pour it, Take the time to pour the water
24 question whother or not when you give your word 2 into your glass. Set it down. Pick your glass
25 or you say something, that you don't mean it or 25 up, drink your water, set it back down,
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1 that you've gone back on it? 1 and in that time, because of who you are,

2 A I've never had anybody tell me that. 2 you will be able to reflect upon what's

3Q  Chkay. Has it been kind of one of the things 3 happening right then and there. 2And you would
4 you're proud of through your career that your [ ¢ be — you'll be able to recognize how you should
5 integrity and honesty is above reproach? 5 respond gppropriately. And he says, You've

6 A Well, it's important. I started in 1968 and I 6 never done that before.

7 had the blessings of a lot of old timers, and 7Q M. - or, Dr. Arnio would not indicate — or

8 that's what they taught you, and so I learned 8 excuse re. I guess it was Mr. Holmes would not
g it. 9 indicate on the record who was behind the

10 @  Tell me agein, and I want you to explain to the 10 crossed-out mark, but I think everybody here
11 Commission, you've had complaints in these 11 knows it was your wife, Jaoque; correct?

12 pepers, we've read shout sarcasm? 12 A Yep. Yep.

13 A Yes. 139 You know, are you practicing —- I shouldn't say
14 Q  Onyour part? 1 practicing it. You need it in your marriage, I
15 A Yes. 15 assume so, she won't —

15 Q Arger on your part? 16 A let —

17 A Yes. 17 Q Yeah,

18 @  Frustration? 18 A That's right. See, that's the beauty of it is
19 A VYes. 19 that's what we've developed now, is this same —
200§  Correct? 20 I've developed in our relationship the same

21 A Yes. 21 thing that T need, that I've developed and will
22 Q  Inappropriate hmor? 22 use when I'm on the bench.

23 A VYes. 23 Q I know this is a sisple little example. It's

24 Q  Tell me, and explain to the Commission as they 24 wrelatad to courtroom, but would you explain to
Vi) are sitting here, why they can expect that you 25 the Commission kind of the — I don't Ymow if
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1 you call it an epiphany, but when the Llight bulb 1 She knows me pretty dam well, So if mast have
2 went off during a cribbage game with your wife? 2 deteriorated because she's the one that said, We
3 A Well, actually, it didn't. It — the epiphany 3 need to go and get some help. Our relationship
4 came, I believe, the next day or the day after 4 is becoming — it's kind of like I'm living with
5 when I was with Mr. Holmes. 5 a roomate instead of a husband. nd 1 said,
6 @  All right. 6 Iet's go. let's cbo it.
7 A Jacque and I play cribbage. Jacque is mot a 7 Now the conseling you got with Dr. Arnio 25
8 good counter. I mean, I do play a lot of 8 years ago was to help you deal with a difficuit
g cribbage, and when you play cribbage, the 9 situation in your £amily at the time, correct --
10 counting is — it's part of the game. And most 10 Insolutely.
1 pecple that play cribbage can count quite 11 -- with yor son? 2nd the reason you quit
12 rapidly wher they play, and say they have 16 or 12 drinking at that time was just to basically be
13 12 or, you know, whatever, 13 mere attentive and be a better father; correct?
14 So Jacgue, she's about to doubie skunk me, 14 Well, plus it was a factor. So I eliminated the
15 and I've been counting her hand for her. And 15 factor until 1995, in there, when Alecia went
16 I — this is what I - this is very early. This 16 off to college.
17 is, like, before the second mesting, the first 17 So you didn't drink from the meeting 25 years
18 meeting, or whatever, 18 a0 1w until the time your last child was gene;
19 And T said to her, T said, I'mnot going to 13 correct?
20 comnt your hand anymore. She said, Well, I need 28 Correct.
21 your fielp. I sald, I'm not going to sit here 21 Were you ever diagnosed, or did anybody ever
22 and count your hand so you can beat me. You're 22 tell you that you needed treatment or that you
23 going to have to do it all by yourself. 23 were an alcoholic?
2 S the next hand is dealt and she locks at 2 No,
25 me and she says, I need your help. So I, with a 25 You did that on your own 25 years ago?
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H tone of woice and my body language, there's no 1 Yeah.
2 doubt in her mind now that I'm angry. Anyway, 2 And vhen you just stopped recently again, you
3 she did, she double shmksd me. 3 did that on your own also; correct?
| 3 I'm at Holmes' and we're talking about 4 Ihsolutely. It's just mot —- it shouldn't - I
5 this irritation and this tone and these things. 5 don't want it to be a factor, so if you
6 Ind T said to him, I've got o tell you, and I 6 eliminate that concept, you know.
7 told him that story, i Ckay. The -- Mr. Schaffer asked you earlier
8 And he looked at me and he said, Would you 8 whether or not you had apologized to some of the
9 rather be married to someone who can't count 2 9 pcple that have been affected by your behavior.
10 cribbage hand or be married to a jerk like you? 10 Do you remenber that question?
11 Well, that angwer was easy. We now play 1 I do.
12 cribbage and we have a lot of fun at it, 12 2rd you have -- it's been your intent and you
13 0  I'mquessing that one of the reasons that you 13 have wanted £o apologize since the beginning,
u started comseling last sumer with Jacque is 14 haven't you?
15 because the behavier that finally menifested 15 Since Mr. Schaffer first asked me at the Show
16 iteelf in front of the court was becoming a 16 Cause hearing. He asked me if T had apologized
17 problem in your marriage? 11 to them, and I sald that I have not apolegized
18 A Yes. 18 to them but — which, he's the one that sparked
19 Q  Ckay, 2nd I'm assuming that during that time 19 the thought, since we were as long as we were
20 period that it was not -- o, that it was 2 20 between hearings as to whether or not I could
21 problem in your merriage, you didn't realize 21 send those apologizes out now — then, a month
22 that it was your fault becamse of youwr demeanor 22 ago or S0.
23 and your actions? 23 Did I advise you not to send them because you
24 A It must have deterigrated because, you know, 24 weren't to have any contact with the people
25 Jacque arel I have been married for 46 years. 25 involved?
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You know, I don't remember. If you did, then

1 1 & Ithink Ido. I've really worriad about her for
2 you did, I don't remember that you did. It's 2 what I've done to her.

3 just that I -~ it just becawe a nothing. I 3 Q  ¥hat do you mean by that?

4 nean, I didn't. 4 A She doesn't have a judge.

5 You asked me the question of whether or not you 5 Q At some point during these procesdings, I think,
6 could send them; correct? 6 or just after the complaint was brought against
7 Right. Yeah. T you, did Judge Davis suggest or write a mmo

8 Okay. Yeu had some pecple testify against you, ] gbout how assigrments could be done in your

3 I guess that would be about the only way we 9  cizouit?

10 oould characterize it, They said negative 10 & Yeah. That would be after the complaint that
11 things about you both in the Show Cause hearing i1 Glenn Bremner and the chief of police and
12 and here today and also in Mr. Nelson's 12 Sheriff Holloway filed, yes. That's the Officer
13 investigation; correct? 13 Twedt matter,
it Yes. 1t (Exhibit © was marked for identification.)
18 End you're aware of every one of those people 15 Q (BY MR, NICHOLSON:) Would you look at what's
16 that have made those comments about you? 16 been marked as Exhibit 0.
17 Yes. 17 A Yes.
18 Do you harbor any ill feslings towards them for 18 Q I3 that the memo or the schedule that Judge
19 participating in this process? 19 Davis proposed starting September 14th wntil the
20 No. I held no animus toward anybody who has 20 end of the year?
21 testified, hold no animus towards this 21 A Yes.
22 Commission for what — they are doing their job. 22 @ And this was as a result of the complaint
23 I —Idonot. Thet is not in my character. 23 against you by the state's attorney's office?
b In a sense, it's been an awakening, a positive 26 A T think this -- the state's attomey in 2010 I
25 step that you've been driven to these mental 25 think, as we discussed at the Show Cause
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1 health profiessicnals. Would you agree with me? 1 hearing, it appeared to me that there was —

2 It's — if has definitely turned out to be a 2 they were systematically filing against me, and
3 positive step. Whatever the decision is, 3 then it got a little worse where they were —

§ whatever the recommendation is, whatever the 4 seemed to be escalating that they were filing

5 Supreme Court does, I have the tools to change 5 agzinst me.

6 and I™m going te. 6 And then Roxie Erickson filed against me as
7 Ard these comments that have Leen made about you 7 a tuvenile, and that's when Judge Davis came and
8 in this conplaint is part of what caused you to 8 said, Well, we have to do something about that.
9 recognize that you needed help? 9 And he asked me if T would be willing to o this
10 Hsolutely. 10 and I said that T would, this schedule.
11 You know, I think there was some comeent about 11 ©  According to my notes here, the formal complaint
12 that your court reporter, since this complaint 12 filed against you by the Camissicn was on
13 care out, indicated at least wntil you were 13 Noverber — ewcuse me, Septenber Tth, is that
1¢ suspended from the bench that you were no fum, 1 pretty close to your recollecticn of that event?
15 Do you remember that? 15 A It's the Tth, Bth, or %th. I know that.
16 That's what I fold Bob Holmes, yes. 16 0  Inod this memo would have been diring that
17 Is that because you are attempting not to — 17 process or just after that process was started;
18 your deweanor in the courtroom was lacking this 18 correct?
13 flippant attitude that you've talked abeut? 19 A it's the 14th, ves.
2 Yes. 20 ¥R. NICHOLSON: T would offer Eghibit 0.
21 Have you ever had any problem with your court 21 MR. SCHAFFER: No cbiection.
2 reporter? 22 MR. FAIMER: O will be received.
3 Ch, no. 23 ¢ (BY MR. NICHOLSON:) 2s a part of this process
2 Do you have a good relationship with your court pl} that you've — you now wderstand you ned to
23 reporter? 25 think about when you're angered or your
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1 frustration starts to overtake you physically, 1 the end of this hearing some proposed findings
2 or you can feal it physically, I think one of 2 of fact and conclusions of law to the
3 the hints to you was to find ways to divert by k| Commission. And as an exhibit to that eshibit,
4 pouring a glass of water or taking a bresk? 4 or those findings and conclusions would be, T
5 Right. 5 think, what you gave us as what you would
6 And then possibly, if you take a break, having 6 sugrest based upon your current knowledge of
7 sceone, if there's enough of a gap, to call and 7 what conditions you would want imposed wpon you
8 be able to vent some of your frustrations maybe 8 if you were back on the bench; correct?
9 between court, between hearings, those types of 3 A That's right.
10 things. Do you think that would ke beneficial 10 @  And T think on that list, and I - and the
1 to you? 1 Commission will sea it when we submit the
12 Yeah. Yes. 12 firdings. But I think you indicated that you
13 If you had a — 13 felt a complete psychological exam and follow
14 If 1 had somebody to talk to, if I was — if I 14 all recommendations should be part of any
15 was wnable for sure —- if I was unable to 15 conditions if you are reinstated?
16 recognize that I was falling backward, for sure 16 A Yes.
17 that would. If T had semebody to talk to that I 17 @ And that you enroll and successfully complete an
18 oould tell or explain what was happening, that 18 anger wenagesent program —
19 would be helpful and — yeah, that would be. 19 A Yes,
20 You heard Judge Glenapp and Judge Sizmko saying 20 Q  — correct? I that you follow through, if the
2 that they would be agreeable to visiting with 71 Commission allows you to have that contact, with
n you or helping in any way they can. Did you 2 letters of apology to all of the people that
px hear that testimormy? 23 might have been adversely affected by your
2 Yes. A behavicr?
25 Would you be confortable in confiding with them 2% A Yes.
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1 and bouncing ideas off them and using themin a 1Q And that a mesbor or a team of people, possibly
2 form that would be helpful to you? 2 Dave Gienarp talked sbout that, or whatever
3 Yes. 3 process in that regard is appropriate to the
4 Do you have any problem with -- if you're on the 4 Commission, would be either appointed or you
5 bench again, that there be some monitoring 5 would submit them to the Comnission so that they
6 sysbem by the CourtSmart system or whatever 5 would aid you in avoiding that type of behavior
7 other system the Cormission would think 7 that qot you here in the first place?
8 appropriate? 8 A Yes.
9 Ho, T think they should have something like 9 Q  And that you — I don't know what we call this,
10 that. They —- I know that I have changed and I 10 vhether we call it judicial probation or
11 will continue to change, but I — that's me 1 Judicial conditions or discipline, but that
12 telling you. I think you should have a system 12 would contime until your retirement, vhich
13 that could monitor and check to see if Tam 13 would be at age -- the last -- the end of the
14 telling you today the truth, that I have and 14 year at age 70; correct?
15 will continue to change. That's my promise to 15 & What I wrote was, that —
16 you. 16 @  Yesh,
iy 2nd do you have any problems with the fact — I 17 A — the Supreme Court place me cn probation until
18 mean, that that would affect your ability to 18 I retire December 31st, 2010,
19 make independent decisions on the bench? 19 @  That's this year 2010. Do you mean -
20 Mo, I would continue to do what I've done in A Excuse me, 2013.
2 that area. 21 @ And you're what, 68 years old?
o) And the part that would be changed would be the 22 & 67, I'l11be 6§ in February.
23 dereanor and the coments? 23 Q  Ad there's mandatory retivement in the year
24 3 Right, the dareancr. [ would become a judge. 24 that you reach 70; correct?
25 Q  You kmow, there's — we're going to submit at 25 A That's the way I'm reading the statute, That if
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1 I'm 70 in February, I get to [inish the year. 1 information so that the Commission has it. If
? If T'm incorrect, the refirement pecple will 2 you retired now, what would your benefits be?
3 teill me. But I remember asking Justice Sabers 3 I got that from the South Dakota Retirement

4 if he finished his 70th year and he said yes. ¢ System becanse you asked for it.

5 So that's — and if — I don't konow. The 5 (Bxhibits P and Q were marked for

6 retirement people tell us. 6 identification. }

7 Q@  But in any event, you're proposing that this 7 MR. SCHAFFER: I'd offer Exhibits P and Q.

8 probation stay wntil whatever that retirement 8 MR. NICHOLSQN: I'm going to cbject based —
9 day is? g for tWo reasons. Nuwmber one, ¢n relevance, I
10 A Absolutely. 10 don't know why it makes a difference as to what

119 Ckay. 1 kind of judge you can be based on his
12 A Yes. 12 retirement, but mmber — based cn his
13 @  2nd if the Commission deems it appropriate, that 13 retirement benefits.
14 you be — contimually have the ComrtSmart system 14 Brt mmber two, you know, I don't know how
15 on during your peobation, and that someone — 15 pblic that is. I don't know if one of us could
16 Wally Fklund said he'd be willing to do it, he 16 go Google that or something, Bub to me that's
17 doesn't know anything about the system. But 17 private information, and this may become a
18 there are audio tapes, the way I understand it, 18 public transeript.
19 and we know about a transcript here, So you 19 MR. SCHAFFER: I would defer to the
20 wouldn't have dbjection to amybody spot-checking 20 Comnission if they want to somehow -~
21 ~ that from time to time to see if they are seeing 21 MR, PAIMER: I think we can - if the
22 anything in that system that would cause 22 pblication of it's any issue, we can protect it
23 congern? 23 and note it in the transcript that Exhibits P
24 A No. Rny way that the Commission or the Supreme 24 and ( are submitted for the Court's review only
25 Court deered appropriate to monitor me would be 25 with our recomendation, not for public, because
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1 satisfactory to me. 1 it's somewhat, I guess, proprietary. That's not
2 @ And would you be open to any other suggestions z the right term probably, but I don't have it
3 by the Commission or the Supreme Court that you 3 right now,
4 haven't thought of? 4 JUDGE WITRR: Financial information, it's
5 A Oh, sbsolutely. 5 private. I agree.
6§ 0  Judge Fuller, just about done here. But the § MR. PAIMFR: Yeah, I agree.
7 remrse and shameful feelings that this has 7 MR. NICHOLSON: I guess I would also object
] brought upon you, would you ever want to go 8 on relevance. I don't know what it has to do
4 through that again and experience it? If you're 9 with why we're here today.
10 back on the bench, would you ever conscicusly 10 MR. SCHAFER: Retirament is one of the
11 put yourself in a position where you would 1 possible sanctions.
12 abarrass and basically destroy your emctional 12 MR. PAIMFR: I think from the standpoint
13 mekep the way this has done to you? 13 that we have to consider the full realm of
14 No. I'd never do it. 14 sanctions, and maybe a couple people on the
1590 How determined are you to make sure if you're 15 Commission know and understand how that works, I
15 put back on the bench that you recognize and 16 for one don't.
17 solve and keep yourself, so to speak, on the 17 So I quess from that standpoint, unless the
18 straight and narrow and be the type of Judge 18 Commission has a contrary feeling, I'm going to
19 that you're capable of? 19 o ahead and receive Exhibits P and Q, subject
20 A I'mabsolutely focused. 20 to making them confidential financial
21 MR, NICHOLSOW: I have nothing further, 21 information.
22 MR. SCHAFFFR: I have just a few questicns, 22 ¥R. SCHAFTER: Do you want me to just give
23 Judge. 23 them to you?
24 REDIRECT EXEMINATION BY MR, SCHAFFER: 24 MR. PAIMER; Yes, I do.
25 Q@ I asked your atbormey to have you get this 25 MR. SCHAFFER: Okay.
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1 MR. PAIMFR: Thank you. 1 MR, NICHOLSON: HNothing further.
2 (BY MR. SCHAFFER:) Judge Fuller, I want to make 2 MR. PAIMER: * Members of the Commission?
3 sure the record is clear on this. Is it yowr 3 EXAMDWITCN BY JUDGE WILE(R:
4 testimony that the first time you considered $ @ I justhad a cowple questions about that
5 apologizing to any of these pecple was when I 5 fudicial evalvation process, which I went
6 raised that question during the Show Cause 5 through, too. 2nd it's kind of fuzzy to me, bat
7 hearing? 7 I have all of mine in my desk. I went through
g You asked me if I apologized to Officer Twedt, g it two or so times before Lee Anderson died and
-9 and T told you I cid not. 2And then you asked me 9 it's kind of fallen off the wayside. But I have
10 if T should, and I said yes. Scmething about — 10 all those evaluations that the people sukmit.
1 1'd have to see the transcript, but something 11 Did you say that you do or you don't have thent?
12 ghout I didn't know that the timing was right or 12 & Idon't have them.
13 sometning like that, 13 Q  Ckay.
14 But is that the first time that the thought of 14 3 I would have brought them if I had them, I
15 apologizing to Officer Twedt crossed your mind? 15 can't even find the letter, you know., Judge
16 Correct. When you said it. 16 Young would —- would — well, at least with me
17 2nd with respect to apologies to any of these 17 he came with a letter and he sat down with me.
8 other pecple, the first time that crossed your 18 Ind I don't even — I couldn't even find the
19 mind was during these hearings? 19 Jetter in 04 or the letter in '06 or the
2 Probably the same time. 20 evaluations, so. And I thought he took the
21 Ind as far as having the ability to contact or 21 evaluations back and left me the letter.
22 talk to other judges, you always had the ability 22 Q  Ckay. Yesh. I'mkind of furzy about it but I
2 to call Judye Gienapp or Judge Simko at any 23 know I've got them in my desk. Maybe we had
pl] time? 24 different processes in different cirenits, so.
25 Yes. %5 R I don't know.
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1 I mean, that's something that you had back in 1 @ Do you have any idea why Carol Foster, Judd
2 2004 and wp throuch the present time? 2 Tharpson, Jeff Xrattermaker, Lara Roetzel, and
3 Correct. T alsc had five other judges in my 3 Glenn Brenner would all come in here today and
4 cirauit, £oo. £ take an cath and then lie about what you've
5 That you could have talked to? 5 said? Could they be that mistaken? Wy would
6 Correct. Absolutely. 3 all thess pecple do that?
7 et me ask you —- did you? Did you avail 7 A Well, let's... Carol Foster is a — 1 believe
8 yourself of that opportunity? 8 Mr. Krattenmaker sald she's a clerk of clerks.
9 Mo. And that gets back to what we started out 9 She is. I don't know why she sald I used those
10 with, is my lack of recognizing my irritation 10 words. I don't use those words. Mow, you said
1 and annoyance evolving into what was perceived n Carol Foster and then?
12 as anger and rudeness and abrasiveness, and I 29 Judd,
13 believe somebody even said bullying. 13 A Judd, But did Judd say I swore?
14 Ad T just want to make sure this is clear in 149 No. But about what -- he made a remark — you
15 the record. I'm going to show you a copy of the 15 made a remark to him about the safety concerns,
16 Suprems Court decision, All Star Constructicon 16 A Correct, I did. I said I did, If it wasn't
17 Corpany versus Koehn, K-O-E-H-N, 17 clear, yes, I did to him, saying, We'll take
18 741 NW.2d, 736, It was decided in Decenber — 18 care of it when it happens, And I tried to
1 or, October of 2007; correct? 19 expand on that. I thought the conversaticn was
20 Yes, That's what it says, ves. 20 more about my conversation with Demnis from the
2 So this incident with Bart Bamks where you 21 JSC in the conversation with Judd.
2 flipped him the bird would have occurred prior 22 ¢ Sowhen Judd testified that you said, We'll just
23 to that? 23 “wait until scmething happens, that's -- you
24 Correct. 24 think that you said more than that?
25 MR. SCHAFFFR: Okay. That's all. 25 A Yes. That's my point there.
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velicle had been searched, and you and sanecne

1 Q  Ckay. S50 essentially, though, you're saying 1

2 he's wrong about what was said? 2 else in the van -~ T don't remerber whether he
3 A Yes, 3 said your wife or someone else with you —- had
4 Q  Ckay. 4 to sit roadside while a search had taken place
5 A  Hedidn't — let's put = I'd say this, he 5 of the van. Did that happen?

6 didn't remember all of the conversation that we 6 Yeah.

7 had about the topic. That's what I'd say. 7 What was the circmstance there?

8 @  And you categurically denied that you hit Jeff 8 Ckay. Jacque and I had — we had gone to Mexico
9 Frattermeker up for the campaign contribution? 9 and we took the van. And we were coming back,
10 A You know, I don't know why he would ever say 10 we had left Taos, New Mexico and —

11 that because T know I didn't., I didn™t., I 1 (Brief interruption in the proceeding.)

12 didn't ask anybody for money because if's — I 12 We were between Taos, New Mexico ad Walsenburg,
13 thought it was improper. I didn't ask anybody 13 Colorado, and a state trooper in Colorado pulled
i for money. i us over in the van. And I've told this story.
15 @  And then Lara Reetzel's coment about your 15 He pulled us over and then on his bullhorn he

16 remark down by the van, sons-of-bitches. She 16 said, Remain in your car, stay with your hands
17 rade that up? 17 on the wheel.
18 A Idide't say that. 18 So Jacoue —- my wife, Jacgue, we did. Then
19 Ckay. 19 he instmucted us to, Get out of the car slowly
20 A T had a good relationship with law enforcement 20 with your hands over your head and come to the
21 dout my old 74 Volkswagen. T did not have a 21 rear of the car. So we did.
22 bad relationship. 2 Now, he 1s - his patrol car is behind the
23 Q  Then Bremner's testimory that you disagreed with 73 old bus, and he has his ddor open like this, and
24 was regarding the Sabers quote about the wind in pl| he has his pistol pointing at us when we are
25 the prosecutor's back? 25 coming to the back of the bus.
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1 &  Yesh, Idon't know the quote, that's what I'm 1 And he said, Is there anyhody in that van?
2 saving. So I don't — I couldn't have quoted it 2 And 1 said, No. And he said, Keep coming

3 to him since I've never read it until I read it 3 Torvard. S0 we kept coming forvard. He said,

4 in Mr, Nelson's report. Never. Don't even know 4 Tay down on the ground. So Jacque and I are

5 the quote, Yes, that's what I'a saying to you. 5 down on the ground, with our hands out, on the
6 Q0 S0 alot of coincidences about what these pecple 6 ground on our stomachs.

7 are saying. I guess that's — that's kind of 7 And he went down in the ditch and was

8 confusing to the Court, to the Commission. 8 walking toward the bus, and he says, Do you have
9 & Ijust... May T ask a question? Do you think 9 any weapons or quns in there? And I said, No.
10 I'm being untruthful? 10 Then another patrol officer, ancther Colorado
11 @  That's what we have to decide here, don't we? 11 patrolman pulls up beside his car now, and he
12 Because we have factual disputes before us, so 12 gets out the door with his door open, ard he

13 that's what I'm asking you for, some help in 13 pulls his revolver on us. And then I lose sight
14 trying to decide that. 14 of the first officer.

15 A Yeah. 15 2nd we stayed there on the ground, and then
16 MR, DRAVELAND: Question, 16 the first officer said we could stand up. e
11 R. TAIMER: Yes. 1 stood wp.  And he said, I need your license --
16 EXBMINATION BY MR, DRIVELAND: 18 or your license and insurance. And I said,

19 9 Juke, when Mr. Krattemmsker testified, hs also 19 Well, my license is in my billfold and the

20 made zention -- this is back to the wehicle 20 insurance stuff is in the box between the two
21 license plate issue and the conversation that he 21 seats in the car. So I pulled out my driver's
22 had at that time, I wrote a note that said that 22 license and showed him that, and he told me to
23 he felt there had been a law enforcament contact 23 oome around and show me where that was.
24 with you shile you were driving your van, and 2 S that was an incident in Colorado near
25 that possibly you had been stopped and the 2 Fort Morgan going over la Veta Fass with a
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i Colorado Highway Patrolman. 1 with whatever their standards were, that he had
2 Q  bid you have the probsble cause plates oh your i complied, that ended it for me.

3 van at that time? -39  Okay.

4 A T think T did, ¢ A The rest of the thing about the Volkswagen is

5 Q  Did you have the surfhoard mounted on top of 5 just — it's meant to be a joke, and has been
6 your van at that time? 6 until these allegations, for the seven years

7T A  MNo I did not. 7 that I've driven it.

8 Q Did that bother you? ¢ EXAMINATION BY MR. PAIMER:

9 A Scared the dickens out of me. ¢ Q  When was that, Judge Fuller?

10 @ Yesh, I would imagine. But did it bother you? 10 A What was what?

i1 2 Oh, veah. And we filed a complaint with the i g That incident in Colorado.

12 highway - the Colorade Righway Patrol. 12 & Oh, boy, years ago.

13 Actwally, if T may, it was at the encouragement 13 Q  Were you on the bench at the time?

14 of my son who's in law enforcement. He said, 14 A Tobe very frank, I'1l have fo ask Jacque. I
15 You should file a complaint. Be factual, 15 don't remember.

16 don't — just be very factual about what 6 Q  Okay.

17 happened. ' 17 MR. PAIMFR: I'm sorry. I didn't mean to
13 And T said, Well, you know, it was very 18 interrupt.

19 disturbing, we were frightened. He said, Well I 19 MR. DRAVELAND: No, that's okay.
20 can see that, He said, I will say this for you, 20 EXAMINATTON BY MR. DREAVELAND:
21 Dad, when you and Mom came to the back of the 21 Q I think just cne other question, at least for
by bus, he should heve imediztely recognized what 2 now. End cbviously we've heard a lot of
23 the situation was and kind of went — cooled px] testimony today and a lot of discussien, be it
24 down a little bit. Because, you know, we are 24 from court sexrvice workers, state's attorneys,
pid trained, He said, We're trained. We can be 25 other bar persomnel, folks that are in and out

393 395

1 right beside you and be in control of you. 1 of your court.

2 I mean, he drew the qun to start with but, 2 There's also been a lot of testimony about
3 again, I think the sitvation changed when you 3 the fact there's been numerous recusals or

4 got to the back of the bus. So you should just 4 requests of recusals from you of cases. Did

5 be factual and file a complaint. 5 that ever start -- did you ever start to think
6 And we did. We get a response from the 6 about, Well, why are all of these folks wanting
1 captain thanking us for the complaint. They 7 e off of these cases.

8 investigated it, found that he acted 8 Or, didn't it — dide"t it ever, I quess,

5 appropriately. g ring a bell to you that there's got to be a

10 ¢ I guess what I'm looking for is, you know, in. 10 reason that all of these folks are saying, I

11 your mind -- and I'm asking a very cpen—ended 11 don't want Judge Fuller hearing my case, I don't
12 question hare. But cbvicusly there's been other 12 want to be in front of Judge Fuller.

13 discussion about, you know, an anti-law 13 A Right. That happened in 2010.

14 enforcament perception of you. 140 Ml of the recusals?

15 A Yes. Yes. 15 B Yes. We get recusals - now, don't

16 @  Has any of this incident from Colorade and that 16 misunderstand me. ALl of us get recusals.

iy] stop carried over o other incidents that you 17 We're asked to remove curselves, and if we don't
18 have had with law enforcement, be they in your 18 wluntarily do it, then you can file an

19 couxrt, or in the sally port or —- 19 affidavit, and then you must rewove yourself
20 A Mo 20 when the affidavit is filed.

71 ¢ -- the other things that we're hearing? 21 Q0 Chkay.

2 A No. M. I considered that over when we got 22 A And records are kept and, at least in oqur

px] the — when the captain of the, whoever, my 23 circuit, at least they've been kept as to the
24 memory is — when he reported that he 24 mmbers of recusals, in other words, affidavits
pi) investigated it and said it was in accordance 25 that have been filed and things like that. So
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1 we have —— until 2010, at least the last time I 1 to me that there's quite a gap in here from 2004
2 checked, I was on the low end of judges being z to 2010 without any kind of perception on your
3 asked to ramova themselves. 3 part that something negative is going on with

1 In 2010 when the state's attorney's office, 1 people that you deal with.

5 not —- not other lawyers, but the state's 5 A After T was in Fall River County, and I don't

6 attorney's office started what I perceived to be 6 remenber if it was the next year or the year

1 a systematic filing of affidavits, I went to 7 after that, I went to Custer County and there

8 Judge Davis and told him, I said, I don't know 8 was previcus testimony from the clerk of courts
9 vhat's happening but I think we — I'm — I 3 of Custer County that I was rude and

10 think I have a preblem here, or we have a 10 disrespectful to her and to her court persomnel.
1 problem, because this seems to be systematic. 11 9Q  Ckay.

12 And then when it got ~- it got worse, The 12 A But T -- I've never cone a sequence, so I can't
13 mmbers of requests that I remove myself, there 13 tell you. But the request that I remove myself
14 were more of them. And T brought that o the 1 from criminal trials escalated in 2010,

15 attention of my presiding judge also, 15 Q  Ckay.

16 And then in early Septesber is when Roxie 6 A Mot before.

17 Erickson, who's the deputy state's attomey that 17 @ 2 right.

18 does juvenile matters, she started filing 18 A That's not to say I did not get requests. I

19 against me in juvenile matters which 19 did. And others judges, we all get them.

20 precipitated this Exhibit O where I would be 20 MR. DRAVELAND: Thank you.
21 removed from the criminal calendar and the 21 EXAMINATION BY MR. McERIDE:
22 juveniles and T would take a larger percentage 22 Q@ Juke, you say you haven't had any complaints
23 of civil cases. 23 filed against you that you're aware of to the
24 Ckay, Well, T guess where I'm going with this 24 Comtission; is that right?
25 is, it seems rather odd to me that going bhack to 25 A The Qualifications Commission?
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i 2004, which we have a marked exhibit that shows iQ Yeah, You sarved on the Camission; is that

2 that there was an anorymous, of course, survey 2 right?

3 dore of you that says you are abnpt, you're 3 A Correct.

4 belligerent, you made soreore med enough to 4 Q My experience sinoe I've been on it is, the vast
5 wite in a survey that there were issues with 5 majority of the complaints don't come from the
6 your demeanor, 6 lawyers. lawyers just dom't meke complaints,

7 Correct. 1 Is that what you foumd® Do you recall of any
B Also in 2004, 2005 in Custer County, the clerk 8 lawyers filing complaints?

9 of courts office was so upset that basically § A I don't remember.

19 they said, ®e really dom't want you arcend. In 10 9  You've heard the phrase something to the effect,
1 fact, the only persen that would deal with you 11 If you're going to shoot at the king, be mure
12 in court was the clerk of courts herself. She 12 you kill him?
13 wanted the rest of her staff isolated from ik, 13 A Have I heard the phrase?

14 1 didn't know that. Nobody brought that o my 4 Q That phrase.
15 attention. 15 A Yes, I have,
16 Well, I understand. But where I'm going here is 16 @ Do you wnderstand that could be operating with a
17 that then it appears that there's this gap in 17 Judge who is abusive to lawyers? That that

18 bere frem 2004 to 2010 where things were good? 18 cperative concept is there?

19 There weren't any issues going on, there wasn't 19 & Yes.

20 any that was perceived or found to be untoward 20 @ You understand the lawyers who got hauled in
21 or out of the ordinary until 2010, 2 heze or got interviewed, for the most part they
22 T know you may not have been aware of it, or 22 didn't come forvard, did they?

23 at least that's what you are saying, is that you 23 A 1 don't know any of them that did.

2 weren't aware of it, But there were other 24 Q It's a pretty extraordinary circmstance, isn't
25 pecple that were aware of if, and it just seems ‘ 25 it, that we're sitting in today?
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1A Yes. ) 1 too.
2 MR. MCBRITE: That's all I have. 2 B Yeah. Thank you.
3 MR. PAIMFR: Sally? 3 MR, PRIMFR: Judge Fuller, I have 2
4 EAFMINATTON BY MS, CHRISTEMSON: 4 question.
59 I have a question, it's kind of after the fact 5 EAMINATION BY MR, PAIMER:
6 now, hut it was when we were talking, we had the 6 0 TIquess I'm just trying to think this through,
7 testimony from Carcl Foster and then Jeff 7 following a little bit on what Sally just said.
8 Krattermaker, BAnd Carcl Foster kind of tried to 8 hen once this entire record goes to the Supreme
9 deal with i, ard then she turmed it ower to 9 Cowrt and is public and you have all of this
10 Jeff. 2nd Jeff then tried to handle it, and 10 testimony that's now public, how do you think
11 then he said that he turned the problem over to 11 that's going to im -~ I mean, maybe it's just a
12 Judge Trinble at that time which would have been 12 wild question. But how is that going to inpact
13 in 2004, I believe? 13 how the rest of the bar and other litigants are
14 A Right, 2004. 14 going to feal ahout coming into your courtroon?
15 @  Did Judge Trinble ever talk to you about things 15 A Idon't know the answer to that. T quess I'd —
16 that were going on or maybe ways that you could 16 if the Court —- if the Court would detenmine
1 improve® Did he ever have a discussion with 1 that my — the Canons, the vielations of the
18 you? 18 Canons 1, 2, and 3 is the reason for my being
13 A Th 19 disciplined, if you will, and then if I'm
0 @ Then I have, I don't know, it's not really a 20 aliowed to come back on the bench, T quess I
1 question, it's more comrents that I have here. 21 would be — I quess we could make it a positive
22 We've heard a lot of testimony today and 22 by saying to the public that mmber one, Judge
23 throughout the other days and, you know, the 23 Fuller has not denied that he has made mistakes;
24 demeanor and the abuse and the treatment of # and number two, I'm convinced that he is
25 woren and all of those kinds of things, and 25 rerorsefil and sorry for his conduct, And I
401 403
1 we've heard your side also. 1 think alsc that Judge Fuller has the ability, in
2 But there are — you know, there is evidence 2 my opinion, or in — to change, and I think he's
3 in here, and so we have to — as we talked with 3 going to change and he's going to be a better
g Judge Wilbur, we have to decide what's right and 4 judge for this. 2And that we as the public
5 vhat's wrong. But the bottom line is, there are 5 should give Judge Fuller an opportunity to prove
6 g 1ot of things in here that you probably did do ] to the public, because I would — I would
7 WEong. 7 probably be under the microscope then, too, even
8 End so we look to the future, and T think 8 by the public or, iet's say, by the press. Sc
9 of, What is the public going to say out there? 9 it's a — really what I'm asking for is an
10 You know, there are people that are watching 10 opportunity. That's what I'm asking for.
11 judges all the time just waiting to leap on il MR. DAIMER: Sure. Okay.
12 them, judges watching judges. 12 EXRMINATICN BY MR, McERITE:
13 8o I say to myself, I hope you do get 130 Iguess I'mgoing to go just a little further
14 better, and T hope a1l of this turns around for 1 with that because, Judoe, you know, I want to
15 you. And then I say, does the court system, 15 believe you're going to get better, and I'm
16 does the Seventh Circuit, do they have the time 16 ging to assime you're going to get better.
17 and do they have the money and the energy to see 17 It this point, with the perception that's
18 you through all of this? 18 out there, particularly as it relates to law
19 And that’s a question T quess we have fo all 13 enforcement, at this point there's sowe other
20 ask ourselves and you have to ask yourself, too. 20 things, too, but the law enforcement, that
21 What would be the time frame for you to come to 21 perception, I - a judge should hold law
22 crips with all of these issues that were before 2 enforoement to the highest standards. A Jjudge
23 you and still, you know, run a good court and be 23 should implement the constitution when the facts
24 a good judge? And those are just some of the 24 come into play that implement the constitution.
25 coments I'm dealing with and I'm sure you are, 25 A judge should give every defendant a fair
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specific about that, because I did not get that

1 break. I fimly believe that. 1

2 But with the perception that's there, how 2 impression. I apologize. I think Mr. Bremmer

3 are you going to avoid the law enforcement side, 3 said he could not and I think Ms. Rostzel said

¢ the prosecution side thinking that what would 4 that she could net.

5 otherwise be a fair but tough decision on them 50 I think they said Mr, Bolsen came back and said

6 isn't based upon bias? And the flip side, if 5 te can't.

1 you back off, if you're now kinder, if you are 7 A  I-—vwhat I read in Mr. Nelson's report was

8 kinder — 8 aout the way — my demeanor in treating him,

9 A Right. 9 S0 if T changed my demearor in treating him —-
0 9Q -- to the prosecution — 10 0 M concern is that they seem to be inextricably
11 A Right. 11 intertwined at this point.

12 Q - is the defense going to say, They backed him 12 A h.
13 dovm — 13 ¢ And that's my concern and that's what I -~ I'm
1A Rigit, 14 trying to Figure out how we can get over that.
15 @  — they got him, he's no longer a stalwart for 15 A Ch I understand.
16 the congtitution, for the rights of defendants? 16 MR. MCERIDE: Thank you.
17 & Rigut. 17 MR. PAIMER: Other guestions from the
18 @  That's the terrible dilemm I'm sitting here 18 Comission members?
19 facing right now, how that's — how that's going 19 EXAMDNRTION BY JUDGE WILEIR:
20 to be overcoe, 20 §  Ckay. So this is kind of a silly questicn
21 A Right. Well, historically, I have been the 21 maybe, but when you've got a roamful, 40 or so
22 stalwart of the constitution, just as you said. 22 juveniles and some parents and officers in a
23 But T don't — I don't know if there's been one 23 courtroom and it's packed, and you - do you
28 or two of my decisions in the criminal area that 2 have them come up alphabetically or how do you
25 have even been appealed to the South Dakota 25 take their cases?
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1 Supreme Court because I was wrong on the law. 1A they are on a 1ist. They are on a scheduled

2 Ind T think the appeals, if I'm correct, 2 list.

3 that have gore up have been from the defense 3¢  Sothe first child that comes up with parents

4 counsel as opposed to the prosecution side. So 4 and has heard rights and says, I'd like to have

5 historically, I have not been anti-law 5 a private — I'd like a cleared courtroam, do

6 enforcement. My decisions have not been 6 you clear the courtroom right then --

1 anti-law enforcement. They haven't been pro 73  lo

8 defendant, either. They've been what I believed g Q -~ and take that child up?

9 ard inferpreted the law te be, 9 A No.

10 So I thirk — if I may. I think what I'm 10 @  hat happens to then?

i hearing from the state's attorneys, not 11 A They sit back down.

12 necessarily Ms. Roetzel or Mr. Bremmer, is that 12 @  And when does their case get taken wp?

13 it's my treatment of them in a courtroom setting 13 A When we get through the group.

1 as opposed to my treatment of them because they 19 So they go to the end of the line -~

15 are law enforcement. 15 B Yeah.

16 It's just I'm — and I — that might be a 16 9 -- basically?

] close hair, but T don't think anyhody has ever 17 A Ch, yesh.

18 said that I have been pre defendant or pro 8 Q Ckay. I just didn't know logistically how that
19 prosecrtion in any of the testimony you've 19 wirked.

0 heard. 20 B Right.

21 @ 'that was certainly what I got out of it from 21 Q You suppose that has a chilling affect on

2 Ms. Rostzel and Mr. Bremper, that there is a 22 anybody exercising their right to a confidential
23 feeling in their office that they can't get a 23 hearing?

2 fair shake. 24 B It hasn't seemed to. The ones that have sald
25 A 25 they wanted a closed hearing have been very,

Oh, T wish — T wish they could have been more
' 406

408




409-4132

1 very positive about it. 1 you were talking, Mr. Nicholson, abcut you have
2 JUDGE WIIBJR: OCkay. Thank you. 2 findings and conclusions you want to submit?

3 MR. PAIMER: Have any of these questions 3 MR. NICHOLSON: Yes.

g prompted questions for either of vou? 4 MR. PAIMER: Becsuse the Commission is

5 MR, SCHAFFFR: Ho, Your Homor. 5 chligated to provide findings to the Supreme

6 FECROSS-EXRMINATICN BY MR. NICRCLSON: 3 Court once we make our decision. So if you have
7 Q  Iwent to clear soaething up hecause I dm't 1 somgthing you want for our consideration —- and,
8 Jnow that you've been asked this question. I 8 Mr, Schaffer, I'11 give you the opportunity to

9 'just want to clear the record based on Judge v see what he's got, too.

10 Wilbar's guestion to you. 10 MR. NICHOLSON: I think probably the best

11 Lara Roetzel testified that you made the 11 way to handle this —
12 comtient about your license plate, pointing at 12 MR. PAIMER: That is the hest way.

13 the probable cause, something to the effect, Let 13 MR, NICHOLSOM: — is just to give them to
14 the senrof-a-bitches see that and - oh, let the 14 you to pass out.
15 son-of-a-bitches remember that when they pull me 15 MR. PAIMER: Would you give Mr. Schaffer a
15 over. Remember that comment she made today in 16 copy of those to start with,
17 testimny? 17 MR, NICHOLSOM; Ycu know, I hope there's
18 & Correct. 18 enouch copies to give him ome out of that stack.
19 @ And did you meke that coment? 19 MR. PAIMER: If mot, we can give him one of
20 & No. 20 these. Does anybody else have anything for the
21 Q@  Ckay. And I wanted to make that clear on the 21 record?
2 record, because I don't think -~ at least I 22 MR, HIEB: Yes. I would once again — first
23 didn't ask you that question. Maybe 23 thing T'd like to ask you, did you get the trial
pz] Mr. Schaffer did. 2 brief that we submitted?
25 A I did not say that £o her, 25 MR. PAIMER: We have the trial brief and I
409 411

1 Q  Youknow, also Judge Wilbur asked you guestions 1 have that, T put that in what T call the

2 about Carol Foster's testimony. This comment 2 original file that I've been maintaining at my
3 from Lara Roetzel, we already know that she's - 3 office.

4 well, strike that. 4 MR. BIEB: And the other thing I have,

5 You know, what would be your advantage in 5 Chairman Palmer, thanks for indulging me, I made
6 denying those things if you thought you made 6 this point back at the beginning of the hearing
1 them? I mean, they are nmo -~ are they any 7 with respect to the Dave Nelson report.

8 different than the flippant and improper remarks 8 Dave Nelson is a great friend of mine.

9 that you made involving the racist or any other 9 We're on the parole board together. T think

10 of these other comments we've talked about? 10 Dave took down what he heard. But as I pointed
11 & Well, yeah, If I - if I call somehody a 11 out to you at the beginning, and I think it was
12 son-cE-a-bitch, or if T use the F word to 12 borne out in Lara Roetzel's testimony today,
13 somebody, or T say Goddarm clerks, that's a lot 13 some of the comments that people have been

14 different than — that's a — that is beyond 14 taking as a given were not made.
15 mde. That's ferrible. 15 I mean, and this goes to Judge Wilbur's
16 9 A other than wanting to tell the truth to this 16 oomment. about, well, why would these people come
17 Commission, would it -- in your mind, would you 17 in here and say that? I don't know the answer
18 gain any advantage whether those statewments were 18 to that. I'm not going to call amybody a liar.
19 true or false? 19 But folks, T looked at this transcript and it
20 B Idon't know that., I just — I just — I don't 20 doesn't come close to saying that this man on
21 talk like that. 21 the — in front of the jury, on the record,
2 MR. NICHOLSON: I have no further cuestions. 22 called Dr, Looyengs a hired whore or a State
23 MR. PAIMER: Okay. Let's talk about just 23 whore.
24 for a minute -- let's stay on the record, We're 4 Mow this report asserts, by Lara Rostzel,
25 going to adjourn this proceeding. And we're —- 25 that she recalls during -- that during a DUI
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1 jury trial, she recalls it. Now, oovicusly that 1 JUDGE WILBUR: Are there any other instances
2 was discussed between her and Mr. Schaffer Z like that in there that you can peint us to for
3 before this hearing, because they went to the 3 Dave Nelscn's report? [ thought he was going o
4 trouble of going and getting this tramscript. 4 be a witness, but then I was told you stipulated
5 Now, she didn't bother to correct it with 5 that the report could come in. T don't know if
6 this Commission on direct. And it wasn't until 6 that's accurate or not.
7 1 talked about it on cross that we found out, 1 MR. HIER: Well, and I'm not going to speak
8 oh, there is the transcript and we're going to 8 for Tom. 1 stipulated — what I thought we
9 mark it now and put it in. 9 stipulated to was that the testimony that was
10 Then when I looked at it, and I would 10 given before the Commission at the Show Cause
1 encourage the Commission Lo leok at it, it 11 hearing — and T apologize for my voice — that
12 clearly says, first of all, the following 12 could all be put in 50 that those people didn't
13 proceedings wers held out of the presence of the i3 have to testify to the same things again. And
1 ury, 1 50 if -~
15 MR. BAIMER: You're talking about Exhibit H, 15 JUDGE WITBUR: 'That's different than the
16 page 292 16 report, though, because Dave Nelscn would have
17 MR. HIEB: Correct. 2nd it - the word 17 to come to testify about the report. I thought
18 “hore" is not used anywhere in this, In fact, 18 you said he didn't have to because the report
19 I think what he does here is something T've seen 13 could come in. Am I wrong about that?
20 judges do frequently in commenting on the 20 MR, HIEB: And if — if that was the
21 credibility of a witness. 21 imression that was given — I didn't have the
22 Ard so my point in saying that is, you know, 22 discussion, Tom did, but I would make this
23 we didn't go throuch this thing sentence by 23 comnent, Judge Wilbur.
24 sentence today. We could be here all week. But 2 1 don't question that Dave Nelson took down
25 I think everybody here understands the rules of pi) exactly what was given. You all, you folks all
413 415
1 evidence, they understand why we have them, 1 have the training to understand the difference
2 End T would be extrenely concerned if Dave 2 between a first-hand cosment and something
3 Nelson's report goes to the Supréme Court as 3 somebody else said, which is very much the same
q sare sort of a docment that the veracity of it 4 as when the clerk talked sbout how, Somebody
5 is completely unchallenged. 5 told me that he said that in the hallway.
b We dealt with what was in the body of the 6 And what I was responding to was your
7 complaint, and if it was my mistake or Tem's 7 coment to the Judge about, why would these
8 mistake for not somehow in the body of that 8 people come in here and lie? T don't know that
9 answer challenging the efficacy of some of what 9 they were lying. They are repeating stories
10 was in here, then that's our mistake. 10 that they've heard.
11 But I don't believe we ever stipulated to il But I think in this particular case, we had
12 the accuracy of all of this. We did stipulate 12 it. We knew that what was in that report wasn't
13 to the testimony that was given &t the Show 13 accurate, and it didn™t come out until T brought
it Cause hearing, And we've heard from these 14 it out.
15 witnesses, and I think this points out that, in 15 JUDGE WILBUR: But you can't peint to
16 some cases, some of this stuff was pushed maybe 16 anything else in that report with the same
I a little too hard, or sore of it's taken -- you 11 certainty that you do with that lara Rostzel
18 kng, you see it on paper and you assume, man, 18 comment?
19 wow, that's bad, that must have happened. 19 MR, HTER: I think that's fair, as I sit
20 And with respect to this report, some of the 20 here right now. But this is one of the few
21 second-hand, third-hand stuff we —- I have a 1 things in this report that's docurented in the
22 problem with it, and T wanted to make sure I 2 transcript, in fairess.
23 made that record on behalf of the Judge. 23 JUDGE WLLBUR: Ckay.
24 Bacause I think it's cbvious in at least this 24 ¥R, HIEB: And that's what I'm saying and
25 one case that if didn't happen. 25 that's the record T wanted to make.
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1 MR. PAIMFR: Rnything you want to make for i what it's worth, folks. Don't assume that every
2 the record, Mr, Schaffer? 2 sentence written in here is acourate because

3 MR. SCHAFFER: Well, I would just say, Your 3 it's obviously not.

4 Honor, that I had a stipulation with & Md I do - and T did want to make that

5 Mr. Micholson that all the testimony and 5 record. Because I sit on the Board of Bar

6 evidence presented at the Show Cause hearing 6 Examiners. We have character and fitness

7 would bagome part of this record. i hearings. They are very similar to these.

8 Dave Nelson testified at the Show Cause g T don't view my role in that, T don't ever

9 hearing, his report came in, his report is also 9 view the role as being anything other than,

10 appended to the forral complaint that was filed. 10 let's get to the bottom of it collectively.

11 Undar the rules of this Commission, you can hire 11 Thig is not a mirder trial where you

12 an investigator to go out and conduct an 12 represent one side or the cther and play, well,
13 investigation., If you get a complaint, that's 13 let's see if they can figure it out, AdI

14 what you do, that's what Mr. Nelson dic. 14 assume that's the process we're using here, and
15 Now, if I didn't put it in on direct, that's 15 I hope that's the spirit of it.
16 my mistzke. I mean, I'm going through here 16 The Roetzel disclosure bothered me, and I'm
17 trying to get all the evidence in. When I found 17 just going to say that for the record, The fact
18 out that she claimed that that was sald, I 18 that that was not affimatively brought cut when
19 ordered the transcript., Znd I found it and I 19 that was determined to be completely wrong,
20 qave her a copy of it. 20 without me having to do it, bothered me. And 1
21 2nd T sent it to her and I sald, Look at 2 just wanted to say that. Thank you.
22 this, this isa't what it said. You know, nmber 22 ¥R. PAIMFR: Ckay. We've got the record.

23 one, you weren't thers; mumber two, it was not 23 Anything else for the record?

24 in the presence of the jury. And that's why I 24 {Nothing further was presented.)

25 had the transcript here, and that's why we e %QPEI;%};& ﬁél O;lnglhltl @Wgtagfogdg?ﬁeﬁ-
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1 offered it, so the record is clear. 1 CERTIFLICRTE

2 T did the same thing with Tonia Fischer who Z

3 made the coment that, He never said I was 3 SIATE OF SOUTH DREOTR } -

4 stupid, And I think Cormissioner McBride caught § COONIY OF PENNINGTON 1}

5 that. He mever said that. But that's how she 2

6 felt. b

1 But that's exactly — and I had the same i I, Jacgueline K. Perli, Court Reporter, do hereby

certify that the witness was duly sworn by me prior to

g gpportunity as these lawyers did, T mean, if i ;EE @_Eigéﬂgoogﬂ;esognmt?g 2 tﬁgx‘gilg;trt;;g :gl ghe matters
9 anybody wanted to contact anybody, they could I ghrggzﬁggsr:;rf mgatgntmiggo?nﬁgggiﬁly and

10 have, to find out if there's something else Y :ggeggsnifgg; ';{;21; Ktjhg ffghrgqg';gg ;éi‘;sgfizﬁ itg ihzrggst
it that's not correct and call them in here and 1t of my understanding and ability.

12 correct the record. 12 I further certify that I am meither counsel for,

related to, nor employed by any of the parties to this

13 MR. PRIMER: Just for the record, from the 13 Eggeoxdmhfw:‘e no interest, financial or otherwise, in
1t Commission standpoint if was, at least my & 1 RITHESS WHEREOF, T have hereunto set my hand
15 understanding, in the course of trying to sort 15 ﬁsﬁgﬁegar;yogoggrﬁef%m_ petine K. perti _
16 this out zhead of time and to not have to call 1 _ﬁ_(;’;:jfmhmﬁa e mreied
17 hack all the witnesses that had testified, that L Copy Without RED Stamp
18 the transcript, and all of the evidence taken, i MIE&PERH

19 and all of the exhibits appended to it would be X g;t;:{m ngﬁ; cxpirs:
2 part of the use for the Comission of this, 20 May 9, 2013

21 which included Dave Nelson's report. 21
22 MR, HIEB: The cnly comvent I want to 2

23 make -- I'n not disagreeing with you. 23

2 MR. PAIMER: Ckay. et

25 MR. HIEB: What I'm saying is, take it for 25
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